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State Water Resources Control Board
Office of Chief Counsel

Attn. Adrianna M. Crowl

1001 "I" Street, 22nd Floor
Sacramento, CA 95814

Re:  Water Quality Petition requesting State Water Resources Control Board’s
Review of Region 2’s Re-Issuance of Municipal Regional (Stormwater) Permit
(NPDES No. CAS612008)

To Whom It May Concern:

Please accept this Petition for Review of the California Regional Water Quality Control
Board, San Francisco Bay Region’s (Region 2°s) November 19, 2015 action in adopting
NPDES Permit No. CAS612008, better known as Region 2°s reissuance of the San Francisco
Bay Municipal Regional Permit for stormwater discharges (MRP 2.0).

MRP 2.0 includes as co-permittees 76 San Francisco Bay area municipalities that
collectively serve over 5.5 million Californians. To better coordinate their efforts, 15 of
those co-permittees located in the Santa Clara Valley previously entered into an agreement to
form the Santa Clara Valley Urban Runoff Pollution Prevention Program (SCVURPPP).!
Likewise, to provide coordination and assistance with respect to compliance with their
NPDES stormwater permit, another 21 co-permittees previously formed the San Mateo
Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program (SMCWPPP), which is administered under
the CityZ{County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG), a joint powers
agency.

' The 15 municipal co-permittee agencies comprising SCVURPPP are: the cities of Campbell, Cupertino, Los
Altos, Los Altos Hills, Los Gatos, Milpitas, Monte Sereno, Mountain View, Palo Alto, San Jose, Santa Clara,
Saratoga, and Sunnyvale; the County of Santa Clara; and the Santa Clara Valley Water District.

> The 21 municipal co-permittee agencies comprising SMCWPPP are: the towns of Atherton, Colma,
Hillsborough, Portola Valley, and Woodside; the cities of Belmont, Brisbane, Burlingame, Daly City, East Palo
Alto, Foster City, Half Moon Bay, Menlo Park, Millbrae, Pacifica, Redwood City, San Bruno, San Carlos, San
Mateo, and South San Francisco; and the County of San Mateo.
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This Petition is submitted by SCVURPPP and SMCWPPP on both of their behalves for the
benefit of their respective members.”

All information the State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) requires for a water
quality petition of this nature is presented below.

1. Name, address, telephone number and e-mail address (if available) of the
petitioner:

Names of Petitioners: the Santa Clara Valley Urban Runoff Pollution Prevention
Program (SCVURPPP) and the San Mateo Countywide Water Pollution Prevention
Program (SMCWPPP).

Mailing Addresses:

For SCVURPP: * ¢/o Robert Falk, SCVURPPP Legal Counsel, Morrison & Foerster
LLP, 425 Market Street, 3™ Floor, San Francisco, CA 94105

For SMCWPPP: c¢/o Matthew Fabry, PE, Manager, San Mateo Countywide Water
Pollution Prevention Program, City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo
County, 555 County Center, 5™ Floor, Redwood City, CA 94063

Telephones:
For SCVURPPP: 415-268-6294
For SMCWPPP: 650-599-1419

Email Addresses:

For SCVURPPP: RFalki@maofo.com

For SMCWPPP: MFabrvi@smegov.org

* SCVURPPP and SMCWPPP are collectively referred to herein as the “Petitioners.” Co-permittees that are
members of SCVURPPP or SMCWPPP reserve their rights to file petitions concerning MRP 2.0 on their own
behalves. The City of San Jose, California will be filing such a petition, incorporating aspects of this Petition to
the extent it determines it efficient to do so.

* Although SCVURPPP requests all communications concerning this Petition be directed to its legal counsel,
whose contact information is shown above, its direct mailing address is: Santa Clara Valley Urban Runoff
Pollution Prevention Program, 1021 S. Wolfe Rd., Suite 185, Sunnyvale, CA 94086. Its direct telephone
number is 408-720-8811.

sf-3603638



MORRISON FOERSTER

State Water Resources Control Board
December 16, 2015
Page Three

2. The action or inaction of the Regional Water Board being petitioned, including a
copy of the action being challenged or any refusal to act, if available. If a copy of
the regional board action is not available, the petitioner must explain why it is not
included.

Action Being Challenged: Adoption of MRP 2.0, NPDES Permit No. CAS612008, by
Region 2 on November 19, 2015,

The version of MRP 2.0, including its Fact Sheet and other attachments, that was last
publicly noticed for adoption by Region 2 and an associated Errata sheet that was
released to the public several days in advance of the November 18-19, 2015 adoption
hearing, are available for download at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water issues/programs/stormwater/Mun
icipal/mrpwrittencomments/November/Revised Tentative Order 11-10-

15 _Attachments A G.pdf and

http://www . waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water issues/programs/stormwater/Mun
icipal/mrpwrittencomments/November/Errata_and_Clarifications.pdf ).

The following additional documents, which modified the above and were adopted as part
of MRP 2.0, present issues raised for review herein include: (1) a “Staff Supplemental”
first made available to the public at the hearing location just prior to the beginning of
Region 2’s meeting on November 18, 2015 (provided as Attachment 1 hereto), and (2) a
“Chair’s Supplemental” which the Chair of Region 2’s Board first revealed and made
available to those present at the adoption hearing only after the agenda item in question
commenced on November 18, 2015 (provided as Attachment 2 hereto).

Because its effect was, for the first time on the record, to officially characterize the nature
of the “numeric performance criteria” for mercury and PCBs load reductions set forth in
MRP 2.0 and its Fact Sheet as “numeric effluent limitations (NELS) rather than numeric
action levels (NALSs), we also include the Region 2 staff’s Response to Comments
document concerning these permit provisions (available for download at

* Hard or electronic copy of these documents are not being provided at this time due to the lengthy number of
pages/size of the data files invelved, but they can be provided under separate cover and/or .pdf upon further
request.

¢ To avoid overwhelming a firewall due to the large number of pages/amount of data involved, all Attachments
referenced herein are being provided only with the hard copy of this Petition being sent via UPS delivery.
Electronic {.pdf) copies of any of them can also be provided under separate cover upon further request.
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http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water issues/programs/stormwater/Mun
icipal/mrpresponsetocomments/C11-12_Response _to_Comments.pdf ).’

Collecti;rely, all of the above documents are further referred to herein as “Final MRP 2.0
Order.”

3. The date the Regional Water Board acted, refused to act, or was requested to
act:

Hearing conducted on November 18-19, 2015; vote taken on November 19",

4. A statement of the reasons the action or inaction was inappropriate or
improper:

A. Adoption of Final MRP 2.0 Order emerged from a serially flawed and biased public
participation and hearing process that did not comply with the requirements of law.

B. Region 2’s inclusion of NELs as opposed to NALSs for mercury and PCBs load
reductions in Final MRP 2.0 Order was the result of the flawed public participation
process and inaccurate statements by Region 2 staff and counsel concerning the State
Board’s position on the issue. Beyond this, the NELs in question were otherwise not
adequately justified on the record and their adoption therefore reflects an abuse of
discretion.

5. How the petitioner is aggrieved:

Petitioners and their member agencies (and other MRP 2.0 co-permittees and interested
persons) were deprived of the full public participation (e.g., notice, comment, and open
meeting observation) rights to which they are entitled by applicable federal and state law.
Requirements and, in other cases, official interpretations of requirements, are included in
Final MRP 2.0 Order that would not be included if the public participation process
resulting in its adoption was not so flawed. Petitioners and other co-permittees were also
deprived of a vote on MRP 2.0°s most controversial provisions by a full, fairly

7 This document can also be provided in hard copy or .pdf under separate cover upen further request.

% On December 10, 2015, Region 2 posted an announcement making the adopted version of MRP 2.0, as
incorporating the errata and language reflecting the Staff Supplemental and Chair’s Supplemental, available at
the foilowing link:

hitp://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water issues/programs/stormwater/Municipal/R2-2015-
0049.pdf". This lengthy document will also be provided in hard copy and/or .pdf upon further request. (Other
archived documents associated with the development and adoption of MRP 2.0 are also available at
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water_issues/programs/stormwater/Municipal/mrp sw reissua
nce.shtml . If necessary, hard or .pdf copies of any of these can be provided on request.)
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constituted, and representative Regional Board. Had flawed public participation and
inaccurate Region 2 staff and counsel representations made at the adoption hearing not
occurred, the numeric performance criteria for mercury and PCBs load reductions would
not have been characterized or be legally enforceable as NELs. Petitioners’ member
agencies would then have been able to ensure compliance with MRP 2.0 through
implementing required initial and follow-up actions on a timely basis, and not be subject
to third party lawsuits if mercury and PCBs loading reductions fall short of their non-
transparently calculated and speculative marks.

6. The action the petitioner requests the State Water Board to take:

The State Board should conduct further public hearings on MRP 2.0 to provide the
proper and fair process and absence of bias to which the Petitioners, other co-permittees,
and all members of the public are entitled. As part of this process, and as it did in the
construction and industrial general stormwater permits it has adopted, the State Board
should convert the numeric performance criteria for mercury and PCBs set forth in
Provisions C.11 and C.12 of MRP 2.0 from NELs into NALs with an accompanying set
of appropriate exceedance response action requirements (ERAs) if these benchmarks are
not met in the first instance.’

7. A statement of points and authorities for any legal issues raised in the petition,
including citations to documents or the hearing transcript of the regional board
hearing if it is available.

A, Adoption of Final MRP 2.0 Order emerged from a serially flawed and biased public
participation and hearing process that did not comply with the requirements of law.

Federal and state law entitles regulated entities and other members of the public to
certain fundamental public participation rights in regulatory permitting proceedings,
including in the NPDES context: adequate notice, a meaningful opportunity to
comment based on what has been properly noticed, and a full, fair, and transparent
hearing. 33 U.8.C. §§ 1342(a)(1) and1251(e); 40 C.F.R. § 124.10; Cal. Gov. Code §§
11120 et seq., 11400 et seq., 11500 et seq. and 23 Cal. Code Regs. § 647 et seq.
Those rights were materially abridged in these Region 2 proceedings, including as
follows:

i. Two members of the Region 2 Board that were not required to recuse themselves
from the MRP 2.0 proceedings due to their prior or current employment by two of the

? Indeed, there is even more reason for the State Board to utilize NALs here. Unlike in this Clean Water Act
section 402(p)}(3) MS4 permit, NPDES stormwater permits for construction and industrial activities must
address the less flexible requirements of Clean Water Act section 301(b} 1)(C).
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ii.

iii.

76 municipal co-permittees, nevertheless recused themselves due, at least in part, to
erroneous direction one of the individuals received from the Board’s legal counsel.'®
Given their municipal experience, these two additional Board members could have
brought important diverse perspectives and practical insights into the Region 2
Board’s deliberations on MRP 2.0’s requirements and influenced the final vote.
Their exclusion from the process, when not required by law and as tainted by Board
counsel’s prior erroneous advice that recusal was legally required, flies in the very
face of the rationale for their appointments by the Governor. It in and of itself gives
rise to the specter of biased decisions being made thereafter by a less diverse and less
representative Regional Board. Indeed, the outcome of several key contested issues
relative to MRP 2.0 might have been materially different had these two duly

appointed and unconflicted Region 2 Board members participated in the proceedings.

Due to one of the recusals, the Region 2 Board lost a quorum for the June 10, 2015
public hearmg on all aspects of the draft permit other than its trash management
requirements.'" Instead, the proceeding continued immediately and was conducted
by a subcommittee of the Board that was constituted at the spur of the moment. As
such, there was no advance notice to the public that this less representative procedural
device might be invoked, and there was no meaningful opportunity to object to it or
the potential bias it might create with respect to the remainder of the permitting

process. '

Following the June 10, 2015 hearing, two members of this subcommittee apparently
exchanged emails with each other concerning the testimony they heard and the report
and reconunendatlons they intended to provide to the Region 2 Board and staff with
regard to it."> The content of these emails and any related communications between
these two subcommittee members and other members of the Region 2 Board have
never been disclosed to the public. The third member of the subcommittee, who may
have brought a different perspective on the same testimony to the table, did not
participate in these communications or otherwise have input into the subcommittee’s
report and recommendations; nor was she present when the subcommittee’s report
and recommendations were more officially presented to the Region 2 Board at a

10 Reporter’s Transcript of Proceedings June 10, 2015, Item 8 (RT-June, Attachment 3 hereto) at 6:3-8, 7:9-11;
Reporter’s Transcript of Proceedings July 8, 2015, Item 6 (RT-July, Attachment 4 hereto) at 6:2-7:14; Email
exchange between Region 2 counsel Yuri Won and Robert Falk and Gary Grimm July 6-7, 2015 (See
Attachment 5 hereto), discussing Cal. Gov. Code § 82030(b)(2) and http:/ag.ca. pov/publications.coi.pdf at

p.14.

" RT-June at 7:7-8:1.

214

¥ RT-July at18:8-19:3.
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hearing on July 7, 2015." Despite Board counsel’s post-hoc attempt to sanitize the
record on what clearly were articulated as the subcommittee’s recommendations to
the remainder of the Region 2 Board and to Region 2 staff present at the July 7%
hearing, the combined effect of this subcommittee effort, the recusals, and the
absence of transparency and additional Board member participation at this critical
stage of the public participation and hearing process deprived Petitioners and the
public of their full rights and cast a dark shadow over the propriety and legitimacy of
the permit adoption process’s ultimate outcome.

iv. At the November 18, 2015 permit hearing, members of the public were, for the very
first time, given notice of and access to copies of the Staff Supplemental and the
Chair’s Supplemental, both of which modify or effectively modify the terms of the
Final MRP 2.0 Order and its compliance requirements.”® Although the Region 2 staff
and counsel took pains at the hearing to try and characterize these Supplementals as
mere “clarifications” and “outgrowths,” the transcript of the proceedings makes clear
that the members of the Region 2 Board understood that the Supplementals
represented more, and even the staff appeared to concede at one point that one aspect
of the Chair’s Supplemental contained new requirements.'® Moreover, even if these
Supplementals really only contained clarifications, at the very minimum, the public
should have received notice of them at east 10 days prior to the hearing in order to
have a real and meaningful opportunity to review and prepare testimony on their
implications."”

v. Even more significantly, Region 2 staff did not provide requisite notice to the public
that “numeric performance criteria” for mercury and PCBs loading reductions
contained in MRP 2.0 were intended as NELs rather than as NALs until they released
their Response to Comments document on October 19, 2015 in conjunction with the
announcement of permit adoption hearing.'® Indeed, the ambiguous nature of the

l41d

1> See Attachments 1 and 2 and Reporter’s Transcript of Proceedings, November 18, 2015, Item 7 (RT-Nov18,
Attachment 6 hereto) at 17:18-21, 51:9-54:20.

' Reporter’s Transcript of Proceedings, November 19, 2015, Item 7 (RT-Nov19, Attachment 7 hereto)) at
115:18-126:14.

' See Cal. Gov. Code § 11125.

18 Response to Comments, available at

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water issues/programs/stormwater/Municipal/mrpresponsetoc
omments/C11-12_Response_to_Comments.pdf, p. 4-10. As it appeared nowhere in the May 2016 Tentative
Order, Fact Sheet, or associated public comment/hearing announcement, Region 2 staff’s attempted explanation
about having provided prior notice in various meetings and other informal communications of their infenf to
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term “numeric performance criteria” in the permit and its fact sheet resulted in
extensive testimony at the June 10, 2015 hearing on the non-trash-related aspects of
the draft permit and generated an associated formal request for clarification in terms
of the NEL vs. NAL distinction in written comments which followed on July 9,
2015." Hence, as a practical matter, the Response to Comments document’s first
time insistence that the numeric performance criteria were NELs and not something
else effected a material change in the nature of the permit’s requirements and the
associated potential third party liability consequences to the co-permittees in the
event they are unable to fully comply with them. As such, it should have commanded
a revision of the draft permit/Fact Sheet and a re-opening of the written public
comment period.

vi. The final deliberations of the Regional Board members at the adoption hearing on
November 19, 20135 concerning their resolution of key contested issues (including
concerning the imposition of NELs rather than NALs for mercury and PCBs)
occurred in a lengthy, 1 hour and 45 minute closed session that was also
insufficiently noticed and which was otherwise unauthorized even in the context of an
adjudicative proceeding of this nature.”” This precluded direct observation by, and

have performance criteria serve as “enforceable limits™ or a “metrics approach” is irrelevant and did not exclude
the possibility of them being NALs in this regard in any event. RT-Nov19 at 128:6-129:22,

19
See e.g.,
hitp://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water issues/programs/stormwater/Municipal/agencies/SCVU

RPPP_Legal.pdf)

% Region 2°s October 19, 2015 Public Notice of Adoption Hearing, available at
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water issues/programs/stormwater/Municipal/mrppublicnotice
/MRP_Public_Notice.pdf provided no mention of a potential closed session whatsoever. The Agenda for the
November 18-19, 2015 Region 2 Board Meeting, available at
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/board _info/agendas/2015/November/11_18 15 agenda.pdf,
does not provide notice of a closed session in conjunction with its specified item on MRP 2.0 (ltem 7). Instead,
Agenda Item 11 just contains a boilerplate omnibus reference to a closed session for “Deliberation,” the
authority referenced for which is Government Code section 11126(¢c)(3). There is also a further explanatory
note contained in a boilerplate attachment to the Agenda that explains that the Board may adjourn to a closed
session at any time during the regular session to, among other things, detiberate, based on the authority
provided by “Government Code section 11126(a), (d) and (q).” Putting aside for 2 moment the question of
whether any of these statutory references provide authorization for a closed session in these circumstances,
what they clearly do not do is override Government Code section 11125(b)’s independent requirement to
provide clear advanced notice to the public of “an item” to be discussed in closed session.

Moreover, in terms of providing authorization for a closed session on the MRP 2.0 adoption item, these
references are either inapposite or non-existent. Even Government Code 11126(c)(3) extends only to
deliberations on proceedings conducted pursuant to Government Code section 113500 or similar provisions of
law. But Section 11500 ef seq. concerns only proceedings conducted by administrative law judges and, to the
extent Government Code section 11400 ef seq. is considered simtilar, its general rule is that even an adjudicative
hearing “shall be open to public observation” and may only be closed for certain limited purposes, none of
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full accountability to, members of the public, as both the spirit and the letter of the
Bagley-Keene Act demand !

B. Region 2’s inclusion of NELs as opposed to NALs for mercury and PCBs load
reductions in Final MRP 2.0 Order was the result of the flawed public participation
process and inaccurate statements by Region 2 staff and counsel concerning the State
Board’s position on the issue. Bevond this, the NELs in question were otherwise not
adequately justified on the record and their adoption therefore reflects an abuse of
discretion.

i. The above-described flaws in the public participation process leading up to the
adoption of Final MRP 2.0 Order assume even greater importance in light of
confusing, inaccurate, and sometimes misleading statements Region 2 staff and
counsel made to the members of the Region 2 Board following the conclusion of
public testimony at the permit adoption hearing.22

After having confirmed that the requirements in MRP 2.0 were best management
practices (BMP) and other required actions-based measures, consistent with their
TMDL implementation plans, and that good faith compliance with them would create

which presented themselves here. See Cal. Gov. Code §§ 11425.10(a)3) and 11425.20(a)(1)-{3). Government
Code section I 1126(e), which was not referenced on the Agenda, also does not apply here since there is no
significant exposure to litigation against Region 2 and, in any event, Region 2°s counsel did not timely prepare

and submit the requisite memorandum detailing the specific reasons and legal authority for closing the session
on this basis. See Cal. Gov. Code 11126(e)(1), (e)(2), and (&)(2¥B) and (C)(ii).

Finally, even if the above were not the case, the transcript of the open hearing reveals that the closed session’s
purpose was not deliberating evidence but rather, ultimately without apparent success, for the Board members
to try and craft new permit language to resolve the NEL v. NAL issue in a manner addressing the co-permittees
concerns. RT-Nov19 at 158:18-159:13. (Indeed, as has been observed relative to general permits issued in
California, the line between adjudicative and quasi-legislative action and associated procedural rules governing
the board members blurs in a proceeding to develop a single set of requirements governing a large number of
co-permittees, like the 76 present here such that erring on the side of transparency concerning the Region 2
Board members’ decision-making is in order relative to this closed session issue.)

*! See Cal. Gov. Code § 11120 (“It is the public policy of this state that public agencies exist to aid in the
conduct of the people’s business and the proceedings of public agencies be conducted openly so that the public
may remain informed . . . . The people insist on remaining informed so that they may retain control over the
instruments they have created.™)

* Indeed, as described in more specific detail below, Regional Board counsel contributed to the flawed process
and its biased outcome in a manner contrary to law by cencurrently serving as an advocate for the staff's
favored position on NELs and as a supposedly neutral advisor to the Board members at the permit adoption
hearing. Nighilife Partners, Ltd. v. City of Beverly Hills (2003) 108 Cal. App.4™ 81; Quintero v. City of Santa
Ana (2003) 114 Cal.App.4th 810. Cf. Morongo Band of Mission Indians v. State Water Resources Control Bd.
(2009} 45 Cal. 4th 731. (While it is not precedent, see also Los Angeles Superior Court’s decision in County of
Los Angeles, et al. v. State Water Resources Control Bd., No. BC122724 (2010).)
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a safe harbor for the co-permittees, staff and counsel then left the Board members in a
state of confusion by respectively saying that the mercury and PCBs requirements in
the permit were not-fully action-based and ultimately acknowledging that failing to
meet the numeric criteria would render the co-permittees subject to enforcement and
third party lawsuits even if they implemented all required actions.”

Then, contrary to the State Board’s own conclusions and use of them, just before the
improper closed session at the adoption hearing, Region 2 staff and counsel also told
the Region 2 Board members that NALS would not be effective regulatory
mechanisms and suggested that the State Board would see anything other than NELs
as insufficiently rigorous.*

Rather than engaging in this distorted advocacy, the Region 2 staff (and counsel to
the Region 2 Board in particular), should have presented the Board members with a
more objective delineation of the State Board’s position on the issue of NALs v.
NELs; informed them that the State Board has not precluded the use of NALs as an
“ambitious, rigorous, and transparent” alternative to NELs to date; and left the
decision on whether to use NELs or NALs in the Region 2 Board members® hands in
a far less tainted manner. Indeed, the staff’s characterization of NALSs as toothless
“kick the can™ regulatory tools that are meaningless and cannot be enforced conflicts
with: (1) the State Board’s own use of them,* (2) the State Board’s Expert Panel’s
express recommendations concerning the use of NALS in municipal stormwater
permits,” and (3) the guidance the State Board recently provided on this issue in
WQO0-2015-0075.

# Cf RT-Nov19 at 12:18-17:12 and 155:9-18 with 145:12-147:5, 151:5-11, and 157:11-158:16.
* RT-Nov19 at165:16-166:21, 168:19-169;12, and 172:19-173:11.

* Storm Water General Permit Order No. 2009-0009-DWQ and Storm Water General Permit Order No. 20 14-
0057-DWQ.

* State Water Board Storm Water Panel of Experts, The Feasibility of Numeric Effluent Limits Applicable to
Discharges of Storm Water Associated with Discharges from Municipal, Industrial and Construction Activities
(June 19, 2006) at p. 8 (“It is not feasible at this time to set enforceable numeric effluent criteria for municipal
BMPs and in particular urban discharges. . . . For catchments not treated by a structural or treatment BMP,
setting a numeric effluent limit basically is not possible.) After the conclusion of the public testimony portion
of the adoption hearing, Region 2 staff asserted that SCVURPPP’s characterization of the Expert Panel’s
conclusions were amounted to gross misrepresentation. RT-Nov19 at 131:12-20. Although there is no
evidence to support it in the record and it is sheer speculation at best, they then went on to assert that the Expert
Panel’s report was outdated and that these experts “were not thinking in the context of Effluent Limits . . .
which are an enforceable numeric . . . performance measure that will be enforced.” RT-Nov19 at 133:1-9
(emphasis supplied.)
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ii.

Indeed, in the latter, although the State Board acknowledged that the Los Angeles
Regional Board’s use of NELs to implement 33 TMDLs in its area was not error
given the number and nature of TMDLs involved, it then went on to specifically
state: “We emphasize, however, that we are not taking the position that [NELs] are
appropriate in all MS4 permits or even with respect to certain TMDLs within an MS4
permit . . . . We also decline to urge the regional water boards to use [NELs] in all
MS4 permits.™’

And with regard to the Region 2 staff’s repeated assurances to its Board that the co-
permittees concerns with NELs could be sidelined and dealt with later through the
exercise of their enforcement discretion, they and counsel should have informed their
Board members that the State Board had expressed a different policy preference
earlier this year when it stated in WQO-2015-0075: “from a policy perspective, we
find that MS4 Permittees that are developing and implementing [alternative
compliance measures) should be allowed to come into compliance with . . . interim
and final TMDLs through provisions built directly into their permit rather than
through enforcement orders” — i.c., enforcement orders that could arise from non-
compliance with NELs per se.®

Beyond these significant process issues, the substantive justification offered by
Region 2 staff for treating the numeric performance criteria for PCBs and mercury
load reductions as NELs also falls short. First, while they are undoubtedly designed
to further implement Region 2°s mercury and PCBs TMDLs and represent an
increment towards getting to the waste load allocations assigned to stormwater
therein, there is nothing concrete in the record revealing how the numeric values of
the NELs were actually calculated.”® Instead, Region 2’s staff state why they think
the load reduction numbers they have identified as NELs for PCBs are feasible to
achieve based on the Bay Area’s recent performance in terms of new and
redevelopment and building demolition and construction.*® But the Region 2 staff’s
economic forecast (which often proves wrong even when done by actual economists)
has no basis in the record and requires no deference given their lack of expertise in
the discipline in question. Moreover, a plethora of testimony at the adoption hearing
demonstrated that even if the staff’s prediction concerning the pace of development

2 WQO-2015-0075 at p. 58-59.
®1d. at31.

 Region 2 counsel’s last minute effort to try and create a record for their being an adequate substantive basis
for the NELs through eliciting a wholly conclusory statement by a staff member is meaningless and improper
advocacy, particularty without the “adequate information” to which she summarily refers actually having been
delineated in the record and subject to prior public review and comnment. See RT-Nov19 at 174:21-175.5.

¥ RT-Nov18 at 26:6-9.
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iii.

and construction ends up being on target, there is stilt likely to be a significant
shortfall in all, or at least many, co-permittees meeting the NELs.”!

At one point, staff testified at the adoption hearing that the PCB numbers were “based
on an updated assessment of controls to reduce PCBs to the maximum extent
practicable” and then indicate that their calculation “started with a numerical
formula.”** But, importantly, this formula and these calculations are nowhere to be
found in the record, and later in their testimony, the same staff member even indicates
that they abandoned the formula-based calculation effort.*® Their testimony then
goes on to explain that they turned to “a number of sources of information™ to come
up with the 3 kilogram PCBs load reduction requirement, but once again, these
sources were not delineated in the permit’s Fact Sheet or elsewhere in the record.*

Indeed, the Region 2 staff member’s further testimony on the issue indicates that the
PCBs load reduction numbers in controversy are no more than speculative
“guesstimate estimates” that represent the idea of “[h]ere is the number, we think it’s
attainable.” > Ultimately, the staff even expressly conceded that “we know that
there’s uncertainty with the basis of our numbers,” while trying to reassure the
Region 2 Board members that they could deal with the uncertainly through their
future exercise of enforcement discretion.*® (Region 2’s counsel then further
conceded to one of the Board members that the numbers were uncertain and that the
co-permittees would be in non-compliance if they did not meet them despite their
good faith efforts to implement all required actions.*”)

Finally, in the course of the adoption hearing, Region 2 staff revealed that, when all
was said and done, their position on NELs was really based on their preference to
avoid having to specify additional required actions and then expending the additional
effort necessary to oversee and enforce on them if bad actors emerge among the co-

! See e.g., RT-Nov18 at 138:8-142:18 and 158:7-159:22. See also RT-Nov18 at 67:19-68:11; 95:12-16;
104:13-105:8; 112:19-113:11; 117:1-11; 128:24-130:3; 136:1-11; 201:19-205:8; 231:-232:22: 241:1-23;
244:17-245: 15; 248:25-249:4; and 259:9-24,

2 RT-Novl19 at 133:12-22.
¥ 1d at 135:22-24.
3 Jd. at 136:14-16.

%> Jd. at 137:18-19 and 145:5-6. Relative to some communities that are not likely sources of PCBs, the Region
2 statf’s testimony even went further to characterize the requirements as they might default down to them as
“unrealistic.” RT-Novl19 at 152:2-6. See also id. at 167:4-18.

3 Jd. at 148:3-20.
3 1d, at 150:18-151:11.
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permittees and refused to meet their implementation obligations.*® Instead, they
ultimately admitted that their insistence on NELs reflects their preference to employ a
psychology of “coercion.” * Not only is this an inappropriate basis for calculating
the numbers used for the NELs, while they voted to include them based on the
mistaken understanding that the State Board would disapprove the permit if it
contained NALs instead, the need for undertaking a coercive, rather than cooperative
state-local partnership approach vis-a-vis the co-permittees, was not a view that was
shared by the members of the Region 2 Board.*

8. A statement that copies of the petition have been sent to the Regional Water
Board and to the discharger, if different from the petitioner.

Copies of this Petition have been provided to Region 2, the member agencics of
SCVURPPP and SMCWPPP, and, through their respective municipal stormwater
programs, all other co-permittees to MRP 2.0.

9. A statement that the issues raised in the petition were presented to the regional
board before the regional board acted, or an explanation of why the petitioner
could not raise those objections before the regional board.

Both SCVURPPP and SMCWPPP actively participated in the public comment and
hearing process on MRP 2.0.*' As demonstrated through the above citations to the record
and in Attachments 3-7, all issues raised in this Petition were previously presented to
Region 2 prior to its final action in adopting MRP 2.0 on November 19, 2015.%

[n closing, Petitioners wish to note that the vast majority of MRP 2.0 was not the subject of
significant dispute and is a tribute to an otherwise high level of cooperation between it and its
fellow municipal stormwater programs in the San Francisco Bay Area and the Region 2 staff.
SCVURPPP and SMCWPPP raise the issues in this Petition to ensure an improved, more

3% See RT-Nov19 at 135:12-17 and 144:24-145:6.
¥ RT-Nov 19 at 170:3-172:14.

“RT-Nov19 at 158:18-160:1, 165:6-15, 166:22-168:5, 179:24-182:2, 185:18-187:6, 190:25-192:13, and
194:14-165:6.

41
See e.g.,
http.//www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water issues/programs/stormwater/Municipal/agencies/SMC

WPPP.pdf,
http.//www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water issues/programs/stormwater/Municipal/agencies/SCVU

RPPP.pdf, and
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water issues/programs/stormwater/Municipal/agencies/SCVU

RPPP_Legal.pdf.
2 As to the process issues, see also RT-Nov18 at 252:13-254:14,
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transparent, and publicly legitimate permit will be put in place that avoids the prospect of
resource consuming litigation and allows for a high level of cooperation and creative
approaches to continue to make meaningful and substantial progress on the highest priority
water quality issues in the Bay Area.

Thank you for your consideration.

Respgcetfully submitted

Vol et

Robert L. Falk

Program Legal Counsel

Santa Clara Valley Urban Runoff
Pollution Prevention Program

7
V7 A

Matthew Fabry, PE /

Manager -

San Mateo Countywide Water
Pollution Prevention Program

Attachments

cc: Bruce Wolfe, Executive Officer, Region 2
SCVURPPP Co-Permittees
SMCWPPP Co-Permittees

Alameda, Contra Costa, Vallejo and Fairfield Municipal Stormwater Program Managers
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 CALIFORNIA
~AL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD

+ FRANCISCO BAY REGION

MEETING DATE: November 18, 2015

ITEM: 7 - SUPPLEMENTAL

SUBJECT: REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER FOR REISSUANCE — MUNICIPAL
REGIONAL STORMWATER NPDES PERMIT

The following are praposed revisions to the November 10, 2015, version of the Revised
Tentative Order that provide clarification as described,

1. Prevision C.10.b - Demonstration of Trash Reduction Qutcomes

Provide clarification on frequency of visual assessments required by Provision
C.10.b.ii.b.(iif) ~ Visual Assessment of Outcomes of Other Trash Management Actions on
page C.10-4 (Tentative Order Page 107)

Fact Sheet for Provision C.10.b.ii.b.((i)~(iv) - Visual Assessment of Outcomes of Other
Trash Management Actions on page A-99

Add the following after the second sentence, ending with “implemented in the area.”"

The frequency of required visual assessments depends on the rate of trash generation, the
sources and types of trash, trash management actions deployed, and time of year. During
the wet season, October through April, visual assessments in a trash management area
must be conducted at a frequency that determines whether there may be trash discharges
to the storm drain system from sources or areas of trash accumulations before a trash
management action or combination of actions is implemented or between recurring trash
management actions. The degree of trash reduction that a Permittee claims also affects
the frequency of visual assessment necessary to make the claim. Higher reduction claims
typically require higher frequency of assessments.

During the wet season, for claims that a trash generation area has been reduced to a low
trash generation area, this should be at least once per month in what was a very high trash
generation area, at least twice per quarter in what was a high trash generation area, and
once per quarter in what was a moderate trash generation area. Permittees, with
justification, may conduct less frequent visual assessments for claims that a trash
generation area has been reduced from what was a very high trash generation area to a
high or moderate trash generation area or from what was a high trash generation area to a
moderate trash generation area. Frequency of visual assessments during the dry season,
May through September, should be at least once per quarter, including, and preferably,
within the month (September) before the wet season begins. Higher frequencies of visual
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assessments than those illustrated above may be required to demonstrate effectiveness of
trash control actions and claimed trash reduction. Lower frequencies than those illustrated
above may also be acceptable with justification.

2. Provision C.10.b.v - Receiving Water Monitoring

Break up one long sentence and clarify dates in another.

Fact Sheet for Provision C.10.b.v - Receiving Water Monitoring on page A-102

Break up sentence afler question number 4 into two sentences as follows:

The monitoring tools and protocols may include direct measurements and/or observation
of trash in receiving waters, er-is-In scenarios where direct measurements or observations
are not feasible, surrogates for trash in receiving waters, such as measurement or
observation of trash on shorelines or creek banks may provide a practicable means of
monitoring trash.

Fact Sheet for Provision C.10.b.v - Receiving Water Monitoring on page A-102

Provide date clarifications in second sentence of last paragraph as follows:

, Permittees must submit a preliminary report on the proposed monitoring program by

July 1, 2019, a year in advance of the final proposed monitoring program due July 1,
2020, six months before the Permit expires.

3. Provision C.10.f - Reporting (Trash Load Reduction)

Provide clarification on what must be included in a report of non-compliance with a
mandatory trash reduction deadline.

Pravision C.10.f.v. on page C.10-9 (Tentative Order Page 112)
Replace last sentence of reporting requirement C.10.fv.b, with the following:

The report shall include a plan and schedule for implementation of full trash capture
systems sufficient to attain the required reduction. A Permittee may submit a plan and
schedule for implementation of other trash management actions to attain the required
reduction in an area where implementation of a full trash capture system is not feasible.
In such cases, the report shall include identification of the area and documentation of the
basis of the Permittee’s determination that implementation of a full trash capture system
is not feasible.

November 18, 201512,&
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C. 10. Trash Load Reduction

C.10.b. Demenstration of Trash Reduction Outconies

v. Receiving Water Observations-Monitori ing - Permitiees shall conduct recelvmg water
mionitoring W%mmmsmaﬂ%&e%ﬂhﬁwe&mm
mmemwﬁ%mwﬂmm@émmmmm
eFa&etheMeeﬂﬁeﬁs—femh%ehﬁeeﬁﬂH&eﬂ%méeuhwwhme weil-preduce-ysafinl
1Haaia—}ndﬁdnermn{—ﬁﬂrfeﬁﬂatmq-—and develop receiving water monitoring tools and
protocols and a monitoring program designed. 1o the extent possible. to answer the
following questions:

o Have a Permitiee’s trash control actions eiiec{wely prevented frash within a
Permittee’s jurisdiction from discharging into receiving water(s)?

* _Is trash present in receiving water(s). including tr anspoit from one receiving water to
another. e.2.. from a creek to a San Francisco Bay seginent. at levels that may cause
adverse water qualitv impacts?

»_Are trash discharges from a Permittee’s jurisdiction causing or comtributing {o
adverse trash impacts in receiving water( 517

» _Are there sources outside of a Permittee’s jurisdiction that are causing or
contributing to adverse trash impacts in receiving water( 5)?

The monitoring tools and protocols shall include direct measurements and/or
observations of trash in receiving water(s). or in scenarios where direct measurernents or
observations are not feasible. surrogates for trash in receiving waters. such as
measurement or observations of trash on siream banks or shorelines,

2. Development and Testing Plan - The shsepvations shall ba sy ifficientto-determine
Maahe%mﬂe&mmm%mwﬁeemeh—pmm%%m
€4-!S€hﬁ!‘-g—ﬁ3-"—+ﬁt—1—-1—&£:ﬁ-tWI‘“%%&E&%-%#%@H&&&&QE&H@H&L&GH@BS—H&%—}}&-HG%SS&%
B%ﬂl@%@tﬁw%ﬂﬁemﬂﬁe%{ﬁéﬁw}}%&— there-are
ORZOHRE-SOUFERT-OL .ﬁld&ﬁtilemﬁmwi%av&eaww;
wﬁ%ﬁwmmmﬁﬁﬁmg—w&wﬂs}—%rmmees shal]
submil a plan acceptable fo the E\ecutwe Oﬂlccr bv July 1. 2017. to develop and test
a: proposeci receiving water monitoring Prosramads: 5 :d-!:'}d -pF m@ 2t Lq—that includes the

(i} Description of the tools and protocols fohes ) i€

(it}  Description of discharge and receiving water scenarios, which will be
considered, that accounts for the various receiving waters and wasershed,
communily, and drainage characteristics within Permittees’ Jurisdictions that
affect the discharge of trash and its fate and effect in receiving Water(s);

(iif) Description of factors, in addition to those in C.10.b.v.a. (1), that will be
considered and evaluated to detemnne scenarxos and spatial and temporal

T I G TR I I e e

representativeness ofs




(iv) Idéntification.

receivingwater-scenariosiAhats ll‘-Be momtored Auringthis: permlt.term“
(v} Development of a systemn to manage and access monitoring results;
(vi} Opportunity for input and participation by interested parties;
(vii) Scientific peer review of the tools and protocols and testing results: il

{viii) Schedule for development and testinp BEie to GOl AntoalaepIE, with

e

momtonnmat CoDTesentAtlVe Sites artmgno”]ate‘" haniOctober 2015 -ana

R R N .*v"zgﬁ’ﬁ"‘ﬂ'rﬂﬂ m.e_w SRaTRE u"“*""’!a
LT ;

ot

Ifﬁthc_‘Pf‘a‘mm{teescondﬁE?}’ﬁs O roUnian: e‘ﬁé“'ﬁwéentxﬂmﬂmaﬁﬁﬁfaumm’féﬁm

XSS vEOicarahe: PJah‘maiébgsubmttédbng AR WAL TR DNILOFIN G0
beﬁlmnoa] TRta ot HATTHeIO DAL 2 D]

b. Report and Proposed Momtormg Progmm E&Lmerm&&ﬁhﬂ-i—bwaﬁéuemd =Y

fraqueney-may ba-reduced-to-oneeperyear-Permittees shall report progress in the
2018 Annual Report, and submit a grehmmarv repert by July 1, 2019 and a final
report by July 1. 2020 on the Hevelonmensanadesias o taot ViR Watermoniore
1{H+§%néﬁg%ﬁaelﬁ—&ﬁﬁ—a—progosed trash receiving water monitoring program. The
DIouressarelemingty report is not required if the Permittees condugct this work through
an independent third party=approveabvihe ExecutiveiO tioer: that provides input
and participation by interested parties and scientific peer review of the tools and

protocols and testing results and proposed receiving monitoring program.

”-:

C.10.f. Reporting
vi. In the 2018 Annual Report. 5 sress on development and testing of the the receiving

water Ea%“T&pﬁ%}dﬁgt&eﬁﬁg&&mothmg program—rJ1=,v,-@lEﬂ}irhﬂmtJ £ 10y
receivine-water-obsepvations—ineludine-the-lecationsand-times-ofobservationsand
fsseeinted-deterninptions—PeadineEQOncceptance-ofg-monitoring proposal-reference

car-be-muadeto-theexistine Trash Hot SpetCleanupdata:
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Reported by:
Julie Link

Item 8. Municipal Regicnal Stormwater NPDES Permit -
Municipalities and Flood Management Agencies in
Alameda County, Contra Costa County, San Mateo
County, Santa Clara County, and the Cities of
Fairfield, Suisun City, and Vallejo in
Sclano County - Hearing to receive testimony on
Tentative Order, all sections except Provision C.10,
Trash Load Reduction

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417



o

& )

APPEARBNCES
Board Members

Dr. Terry F. Young, Chair

Dr. Newsha Ajami, Board Member
Steve Lefkovits, Board Member
Margaret Abe-Koga, Board Member

Staff

Bruce H. Wolfe, Executive Officer

Thomas Mumley, Assistant Executive Officer

Dyan Whyte, Assistant Executive Officer

Yuri Won, Legal Counsel to the Board

Anna Kathryn Benedict, Legal Counsel to the Board

Angela Tsao, Executive Assistant

Nacmi Feger, Chief Planning Division

Jim Ponton, Senior FEngineering Geologist,
Planning Division, NPS & TMDL Section

Stephen Hill, Chief, Toxics Cleanup Division

Laurent Meillier, Senicr Fngineering Geclogist,
Toxics Cleanup Division North Bay Section

Ralph Lambert, Engineering Geoclogist, Toxics
Cleanup Division

Lila Tang, Chief, NPDES Permits Division

Claudia Villacorta, Senior WRC Engineer, NPDES Permits
Division, Enforcement, General Permits, Pretreatment
Section

Keith Lichten, Chief, Watershed Management Division

Dale Bowyer, Senior WRC Engineer, Watershed Management
Division, South/East Bay Section

Speakers

Keith Lichten, Chief, Watershed Management Division

James Scanlin, Vice-Chair of BASMAA

Joe Calabrigo, Town Manager of the Town of Danville and
representative of Contra Costa Public Managers

Sandy Wong, Executive Director of C/CAG of San Mateo County

Tem Dalziel, Program Manager of Contra Costa Clean
Water Procgram

Jon Kennan, Managing Engineer of San Mateo Countywide
Stormwater Program

Arleen Feng, Monitoring Coordinator of Alameda
Countywide Clean Water Program

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417



APPEARANCES (Contin.)

Speakers

Phil Bobel, Public Works Assistant Director cof the
City of Palo Alto
Jay Walter, Public Works Director of the City of San Carlos
Napp Fukuda, Deputy Directcor of the City <of San Jose
Melody Tovar, Regulatory Programs Division Manager of
the City of Sunnyvale
Rebecca Tuden, Watershed Specialist of the City of Oakland
Cece Sellgren, Stormwater Manager of Contra Costa County
Laura Hoffmeister, Vice-Mayor ol Lhe Cily ol Concord
Eric Anderson, Environmental Safety Coordinator cf the
City of Mountain View
Rebert Ovadia, City Engineer of the City of Concord
Kirsten Pringle, Sustainability Coordinator of
San Mateo County
Nancy Humphrey, Environmental Program Analyst of the
City of Emeryville
Lisa Austin, Associate of Geosyntec Consultants and
representative for Contra Costa Clean Water Program
Chris Sommers, Managing Scientist of Santa Clara Valley
Urban Runoff Program
Laura Hoffmeister, Stormwater Program Manager of the
City of Clayton
Ian Wren, Staff Scientist, San Franciscc Baykeeper
Maurice Kaufman, Public Works Director of the
City of Emeryville
Jascn Rogers, Division Manager cof the City cof San Jose
Shannon Young for Kathy Cote, Environmental Services
Manager of the City of Fremont
Roger Lee, Public Works Assistant Director of the
City of Cupertino
FElaine Marshall, Environmental Programs Manager of the
City of Sunnyvale
Michael Rhoades, Program Manager of the County of
Santa Clara
Sharon Newton, Stormwater Program Manager of the
City of San Jose
Vaikko Allen, Regulatory Director of Contech
Engineering Sclutions
Andrew Russell, Public Works Assistant Director of the
City of Dublin
Dan Cloak, Principal of Dan Cloak Environmental Consulting
Mallika Ramachandran, Public Works Assistant Director of
the City of Brentwood
Michelle Quinney, City Fngineer of the City of Campbell
Jolan Longway, Civil Fnginser of the City of Pittshurg

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LL.C
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417



f’; f

APPEARANCES (Contin.)

Speakers

Amanda Booth, Environmental Program Analyst of the
City of San Pablo
Rinta Perkins, Clean Water Program Manager cf the
City of Walnut Creek
Tracy Clay, Supervising Civil Engineer of the
City of Berkeley
Chris McCann, Clean Water Program Coordinator c¢f the
Town of Danville
Tim Potter, of Central Sanitation
Beth Baldwin, Watershed Management Planning Specialist
of Contra Costa Clean Water Program
Deanna Constable, Administrative Analyst of Contra
Costa Clean Water Program
Erica Maharg, Staff Attorney of San Francisco Baykeeper
Lucile Pagquette, Watershed Management Planning Specialist
of Contra Costa Clean Water Program
Julie Haas-Wajdowicz, Environmental Services of the
City of Antioch
Joanne Le, Source Control Inspector of the City cof Richmond

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94961 (415) 457-4417



Index

Page

Other Business

8. Municipal Regional Stormwater NPDES Permit - 6
Municipalities and Floocd Management Agencies in
Alameda County, Contra Costa County, San Mateo
Counly, Santa Clara County, and the Cities of
Fairfield, Suisun City, and Vallejo in
Solano County - Hearing tc receive testimony on
Tentative Order, all sections except Provision C.10,
Trash Load Reduction

Certificate of Repcrter 163

Certificate of Transcriber 164

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

{} {
P ROCEZETDTINGS
JUNE 10 2015 9:10 A.M.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Now we will be moving
to Item 9. Before we begin, Bocard Member Abe-Koga
needs to make a statement.

MS. ABE-KOGA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Due
to my recent service on the Mountain View City
Council, I will be recusing myself from Item 8.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Thank vyou. And T need
to confer with my colleagues for just a moment.

All right, vyou see befcre vyou three
pathetically starving Becard Members and staff. We
would ask that you give us 10 minutes to eat guickly
and you don’t need to go away, then we will start
Ttem 8. So we will adjourn for 10 minutes and then
be back. Thank vyou.

(Recess at 12:38 p.m.}
{Reconvene at 12:55 p.m.)

Other Business

Item 8. Municipal Regional Stormwater NPDES Permit
- Municipalities and Flood Management Agencies in
Alameda County, Contra Costa County, San Mateo
County, Santa Clara County, and the Cities of
Fairfield, Suisun City, and Vallejo in

Solaneo County - Hearing to receive testimony on

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417
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Tentative Order, all sections except Prowvision C.10,
Trash Load Reduction.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: I thank vou folks for
your patience. This is an important workshop to us

and we'

re glad to have you all hear today. T have a
couple of formalities tc get through.

We are now going to consider Item 8, the
Tentative Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit, or

MRP. Board Member Abe~Koga has recused herself

because the City c¢f Mountain View focr which she was

ct

a City Council Member is a Co-Permittee. Therefore
we will be losing a quorum, but I am authorized
under Board Resclution R2-2004-0094 to appoint a
subcommittee of three or more members of the Board
to conduct workshops on Board business, but not take
action. Accordingly, I hereby appoint Board Members
Ajami and Lefkovits and myself as the subcommittee
to conduct today’s workshep hearing to accept
testimony on all provisions of the MRP, except for
trash.

We will not be taking any actiocn, but will
report any findings and recommendations to the Board
at the next meeting. A transcript of today’s

proceeding will be provided to the full Board so

that i1t can consider all of the testimonies and act

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417
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on the MRP.‘

I suspect that many of you were not here
when we did the swearing in earlier this morning, so
I'm going to repeat the process for you all.

[Swearing in repeated]

All relevant evidence that any person
desires to be considered by this Beocard must be
introduced at this hearing first by the Bgard staff,
second by the Discharger, third by public agencies,
and fourth by any other interested persons.

The Board and Board counsel may ask
gquestions to clarify the testimecny of a witness at
any time. Cross examination of any witness by
others will be allowed following completion of
direct testimony by all persons.

Each person testifving will commence by
stating his or her name, whom he or she represents,
and whether he or she took the cath to tell the
truth. The
hearings will not be conducted according to
Technical Rules of Evidence. The Board will accept
any evidence or testimony that is reasonably
relevant to the issues. L1l Boarg files, exhibits,
and agenda materials pertaining to this matter will

be made part of the record c¢f this proceeding.

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417
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Additional written material will be made part of the
record at the discretion of the Board.

Those wishing to testify in the hearing
will now rise or raise their hand.

Do you promilisc to tell the truth?

MR. WOLFE: 50 do.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Thank vyou.

MR. WOLFE: So Item 8 is a workshop to hear
testimony on the recently released Tentative Order
that would reissue the Regicnal Municipal Stormwater

this to have a worksho

@
Q.

Permit and we've design

ke

this month predominantly on non-trash-related
provisions and a workshop at the July meeting that
will focus predominantly on trash-related
provisions. The public comment period, then, will
close on July 10th shortly afterwards, and our
intention is to hear comments, verbal comments, but
also encourage all parties to submit their written
comments by July 10th, then Keith and his Minions
will pull out the Cray Computer and run all the
comments through and see where we get with the
anticipating that we can return to the Board in the
fall with recommending a reissued permit for your
adcocption.

So with that, I'd like Keith Lichten to

ALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood ])r:vc, an Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417
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{} f
kick it off and give a staff presentation on what 1t
is you have bkefore you.

MR. LICHTEN: All right, well, let’s get
the party started. Good afternoon, Chair Young and
Board Members. I'm Keith Lichten, Chief of the
Watershed Management Division and, as Bruce
mentioned, I’1ll be giving the staff presentation for
ITtem 8.

Before I begin, I’d like to note the large
number of staff working on the permit, including Tom
Mumley, the AEO, Dale Bowyer, the Section Leader,
Richard Looker on PCBs and Mercury, Jan C’Hara on
Monitoring and Pesticides, and among others, Sue Ma
and Selina Lul on everything else. And Yuri Won and
Tamarin Austin provided legal review. In
coordination with many Permittee staff, a numkber of
whom are here today, and other stakeholders, work on
the permit is a team effort. And I would just note
in passing, for those commenting, if you haven’t yet
completed a comment card, but I think most of you
have, please do so and hand it te Tom Mumley down
here at the front table.

Okay, so today I’11 cover our planned
schedule for the Permit Reissuance, describe what

the MRP i1is and 1ts regulatory role, and describe
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significant proposed changes to the permit, focusing
on secticns on PCRBs and Mercury, and new and
redevelopment, and a few relatively more minozr
changes., For each change I’11 describe the purpose,
what the previous Permit, MRP 1.0 says, and what the
new permit would do. 2And as Bruce mentioned, what’s
not here 1is Provision C10, Trash, for which a public
hearing has been ncticed for July.

Here’s our planned schedule for MRE 2.0. I

want to take a moment to discuss how we got here

because that small bullet on the left represents
more than 50 meetings over two years with the
Fermittees, US EPA, and other interests. These were

both brcad meetings about the entirety of the
permit, as well as subject specific work group
meetings such as on Pollutants of Concern and Green
Infrastructure.

Also, we are now in the public comment
period for the MRP 2.0.0 Draft Permit. We've
scheduled that as a 60-day ccmment period, twice the
minimum required 30 days. And as Bruce mentioned,
we have publicly noticed twe testimony hearings on
the MRP, today’s hearing which covers everything
except discharges of trash, and the July 8th

hearing, intended to cover trash, and whatever we

Il
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don’t get to today. Finally, we are planning to
bring this before you for adoption at the Board’'s
October meeting.

So the MRP implements reguirements for
operation of municipal storm sewer systems is to
achieve the Clean Water Act’s goals of getting to
fishable, swimmable watTers. The MRP is the
Municipal Stormwater Permit for most of the
urbanized Bay Area, a total of 76 Cities, Counties,
and Flood Controcl Districts, as shown on this slide.
I should note the boundaries are not exact. You can
see that the permitted area does not include San
Francisco, which of course largely drains to a
combined sewer system with its own permit, and it
excludes some North Bay towns.

Not counting San Francisco, those
municipalities not covered by the MRP are covered by
a separate Statewide NPDES Stormwater Permit for
small municipalities.

Stormwater Permit coverage for most ¢f the
76 Co-Permittees began in the early 1990's, early to
mid-1990’s, during which time most were permitted on
a county-wide basis. In 2009, you consolidated six
separate stormwater permits inte a single regional

permit with consistent requirements for all

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LL.C
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417

12



10

I

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Permittees.

MRP 2.0 includes reguirements intended to
ensure Lhat discharges of pollutants via the storm
drain system are appropriately minimized. It’s
built arcund the program areas shown here which are
brecadly reguired by the Clean Water Act. for
example, Municipal Operations, which includes
ensuring that municipal corporation vards are
operated in a clean way, and Industrial and
Commercial Contreols, which includes a robust
Municipal Business Inspecticn and Enforcement
Program.

MRP 2.0 follows the structure of MRP 1.0 in
which we’ve dedicated sections to each of the
required components. As I said, I’1ll focus on areas
where there are significant changes between MRP 1.0
and 2, These are requirements to reduce PCBs in
Mercury and for new and redevelopment projects plus
a few relatively more minor changes. Otherwise, in
mcst respects MRP 2.0 is similar to the previocus
permit.

SO0 let’s start the discussion of what has
changed by looking at how we implement the San
Francisco Bay PCBs TMDL and its requirements to

reduce PCBs in stormwater runoff.
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As a reminder, there’s a PCB TMDL for the

£ {
i

Bay because PCBs present a significant threat to
public and envircnmental health. At present,
there’s a fish consumption advisory not to each surf
perch at all because of high PCB concentratiocns, and
to limit our consumption of other fish. PCBs are a
probable human carcinogen and can cause oOr
contribute to developmental disabilities among other
impacts.

Sc in the TMDL which the Bcard adopted in
2010, you assigned urban stormwater runocff a waste
load allccation of 2 kilograms per vyear of PCBs, and
you allowed 20 years for that allocation to be met.
The current load is estimated to be 20 kilograms per
year, so that means by 2030, the TMDL calls for
reduction of 18 kilograms per year of PCBs in urban
runcff.

MRP 2.0 would reguire a reduction of three
kilecgrams per year, or one-sixth of the goal. That
reduction would be achieved by Year 10 of the TMDL,
soc halfway through the 20-year period, allowed to
meet the load reduction goal, tThe Permittees would
accomplish about one-sixth of the reduction.

The reducticns invelve significant on-the-

ground work and a degree of uncertainty. Because of
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this, the TMDL has an option after 10 years to
modify the schedule as long as stormwater
dischargers work vigorously to achleve the
reductions,

In order for the Beoard to consider changing
the TMDL schedule, dischargers must hroadly
implement actions that make sense, investigate those
actions effectiveness and, if more are needed,
identify additional actions to meet the overall
reduction.

For staff to be in a position to talk with
you about changing the TMDL schedule, we have fo be
comfortable there has been vigorous effort and
that’s what 1s presented in the MRP.

The TMDL is why we have numeric
requirements in the permit. There is some concern
from the Permittees on this issue, particularly
regarding the near term implementation requirements,
which I’11 discuss in a moment. Those reguirements
are needed to drive that implementation of PCR
cleanup work ccnsistent with the TMDL schedule.,

The specifics of that cleanup work are an
cutcome of work the Permittees conducted under MRP
1.0, Investigation, Planning and Pilot Proiect work,

which 1711 discuss in the next slide.
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So as I said, MRF 2.0 would build on work
done in MRP 1.0. MRP 1.0 provided an opportunity tc
plan and pilot PCB controls in order to implement
them brecadly under MRP 2.0. MRP 2.0 holds the
Permittees as a group responsible for lcad
reductions averaging half a kilogram per year for
the first two years, and averaging three kilograms
per year for the final three years of the permit.
Those reductions are for all Permittees combined.
And there are two check-ins, the first is at the end
of Year 2 when the Permittees must meet that half
kilogram average annual reduction and the second 1is
at the end of Year 4 when Permittees must meet the
three kilogram average annual reduction. And as you
see from that figure off on the right, there are
some areas 1in the Bay of relatively high PCB
concentrations, typically old industrial areas and
contaminated sites, and arsas of moderate PCB
concentrations, often old urban areas.

The Permittees are likely toc achieve the
load reductions by completing near term actions in
the high areas and by implementing longer term
acticons overrtime in both the high and the moderate
areas, more on those in a minute. And MRP 2.0

reguires a system to keep track of the reductions
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obtained. The fact sheet illustrates our current
state of knowledge on Accounting. In addition,
staff has completed an analysis using Permittee data
to demonstrate they can meet the locad reduction
reguirements with a combination of near term and
lenger term actions.

So let’s take a look at those near term
actions, actions that can be completed relatively
guickly, that is, in the Permit’s first two years to
get to that average annual reduction of haif a
kilogram. These include targeted cleanouts of
sediment from storm drains and pump stations and
increasing street cleaning in areas with higher
concentrations of PCBs, referring sites to the Water
Board and U.S. EPA for cleanup, diverting first
flush runoff and dry weather flows to the Sanitary
Sewer and, finally, Permittees have an ongoing
requirement to include appropriate low impact
development green infrastructure controls in
projects they are reviewing and approving now. And
when T say "“green infrastructure,” I'm talking about
using natural systems like plants to help filter
stormwater as a part of the storm drain.

So as I said, they’re doing that now. So

this provides a benefit beginning with the near
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term. And ongoing implementation of this
requirement will help achieve the reduction. Oh,
and so just a couple of pictures, here we have an
exlsting Bioretention cell project on San Pablo
Avenue and, not knowing it was going to rain today,
I thought we’d show a picture from Portland where
there is rain, but then there goes your drought
joke, when it rains outside... And you can see that
water ponds up and slowly soaks into the soil as a
filter, which then would capture PCBs, that’s an
example of a Bioretention or a green infrastructure,
a low impact development control.

So let’s talk abcut a longer term PCB
reduction. These actions include both the near term
measures I Jjust mentioned, and also things that are
going to take time to develop during this permit
term, which will set the stage for implementation of
future permits. And a significant longer term
acticn being developed is green infrastructure
retrofit of public projects, but alsc private
projects, to capture PCB-laden sediment and prevent
it freom discharging to the Bay.

The Green Infrastructure Planning
reguirement which appears in the new and

redevelcpment provision, in which I’11 discuss 1in a

18
CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417



LJ

10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

moment, 1is intended in part to help the Permittees
plan how they get to that long term lcad reduction
of 18 kilograms per year. And finally on PCBs, a
significant potential scurce is discharges
associated with building demolition. Many buildings
constructed from 1950 to 1980 used caulk with PCRs,
and there are estimated to be more than 10,000
kilograms of PCBs in exterior caulk in Bay Area
commercial and industrial buildings alone. That’s a
large number ccmpared teo the long term load

alleccation of two kilograms per year. S50 these PCEBs

0]

can be mobilized both during demolition and when
construction of materials are sent to construction
debris landfills for potential reuse, As a result,
it’s an important source of PCBs to control.

The Permittees are concerned about taking
acticn to controcl PCBs as a part of the demclition
process. We agree that this i1s a significant new
apprcach and we will stay involved. At the same
time, an effective program that controls PCBs while
also facilitating timely construction of
redevelopment projects is likely best managed at the
local level. Potentially, it could be a new
component of the Permittees’ exlisting construction

managemenl programs. We are continuing to discuss
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with the Permittees how they’1ll go about complying
with these permit reguirements.

Let’'s shift to Mercury and take a moment to
talk about how the MRP would implement the Bay
Mercury TMDL’s urban runoff requirements. That TMDL
which vou adopted in 2006 gave stormwater a waste
load allocation of 82 kilograms per year and the
current load is believed to ke about 120 kilograms
per vyear.

Similar to PCBs under MRP 1.0, the
Permittees conducted an investigation and pilot
projects to reduce Mercury. MRP 2.0, as shown on
this slide, would regquire locad reductions of an
average of 48 grams per year of Mercury during the
Permit’s final three years. Now, tThere 1is some
correlation between areas high in Mercury and areas
high in PCBs, although overall Mercury 1is more
broadly distributed.

The Mercury load reductions are likely to
be accomplished during MRP 2.0 via implementaticn of
the measures I just described for PCBs. Over the
longer term, Mercury reductions are likely to be
accomplished via the Green Infrastructure Plans and
retrofit projects implemented through them. MRP 2.0

alsc includes reguirements for further investigation
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of Mercury, including better quantifying the benefit
of certain control measures. Because for the coming
Permit term, PCB actions are likely to result in
Permittees meeting the Mercury reduction
reguirements, I won’t spend more time now on this
provision.

50 let’s shift to MRP requirements for
impacts associated with new and significant
redevelopment procjects. MRP 2.0 would largely
continue MRP 1.0’s requirements, so let me go over
the high points of MRP 1.0, and then I’1ll talk about
what’ s new.

MRP 1.0 required projects with more than a
certain amount of impervious surface, 10,060 sguare
feet for most, or 5,000 square feet for some
transportation-related uses. 3o those projects had
Lo treat their stormwater runoff using Low Impact
Development, or LID measures like the ¢cnes I showed
before.

In addition, MRP 1.0 included requirements
to ensure those LID measures would be appropriately
operated and maintained, and it required some
projects adding a lot of imperviocus surface, an acre
or more, to address their hydro-modification

impacts; that is, to control changes in runoff that
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could increase creek erosion.

MRP 2.0 is largely status dquo. Tt would
continue MRP 1.0’s requirements such as maintaining
the impervious surface thresholds that trigger LID
treatment and hydro-modification requirements.
However, the most significant difference in MRP 2.0

is the regquirement for long term Green

Infrastructure Planning. In addition, at the
Permittee’s request -- and I’1ll go over that in more
detail in the next slide -- it includes an cption to

model hydro-modification contrcl measures in a new
way, which could result in more efficient and
perhaps smaller control sizing. And there are some
other minor changes including regarding inspections.

So let’s talk about the Green
Infrastructure Plan. This started as a conversation
during MRP 1.0 about requirements for street and
road rehabilitation. In lieu of being required to
complete treatment on all of their street and road
projects, Permittees were reguired to complete 10
Green Street Pilot Projects. So MRP 2.0 would
expand on this to require Permittees to complete
Green Infrastructure Plans. The plans are intended
to shift construction of infrastructure such as

parking lots, streets and storm drains from gray to
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green over time. And, as 1 just discussed,
achieving those long term TMDL lcad reductions is
likely to reguire green infrastructure retrofit.

S50 over the longer term, these plans wculd

ot

identify places to retrofit green infrastructu

[a]

e
measures like Bioretention cells. The plans would
also include procedures for mapping and tracking
implemented controls and for use with the TMDL load
reduction acceounting approach. And as I noted
before, the plans, although we think the low hanging
fruit is public infrastructure, they cegld consider
both public and private parcels. And for the
purposes of getting TMDL lcad reductien credit,
reductions from both public and private parcels
count.

So under the plans, the Permittees would
develop a prioritized list of areas with potential
for LID retrofit, Low Impact Development retrofit,
based on factors such as site constraints and
potentials to reduce TMDL pollutant loads. Under
the plans, the Permittees would revise their
internal planning and design processes, including
working to coordinate the Green Infrastructure Plans
with other plans, like their complete streets and

urban forestry plans. Over the long term, our
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intent is that these will make green infrastructure
the regular way of doing business, to help cities
develop, for example, standard green street
specifications and implement them in road procjects
whose green street designs are funded as a part of
regular transportation grants.

Also, the plan requirements are flexible.
While some larger Permittees may chcose to do
individual plans, we anticipate that many smaller
Permittees will work together to develop a general
Green Infrastructure Plan, of which only elements
such as the prioritization of areas to retrofit,
will be specific to one Permittee.

Finally, there are some other changes to
new and redevelopment, these include the option I
mentioned, that the Permittees reguest to develop a
new method to model the ercosive impacts of new and
redevelopment projects in creeks, and that option
may result in more efficient control measure sizing.

MRP 2.0 would also make the hydro-
modification reguirements for Contra Costa County
consistent with those of Permittees 1in other
counties. We are discussing with Contra Ccsta
whether that may result in a need for them to revise

their control measure sizing and there’s a
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placeholder for that in the Permit.

MRP 2.0 would require implementation of LID
stormwater treatment controls on old projectis,
projects approved by Cities a long time ago, but not
vet built, that don’t have any clean water controls
in their design. Under MRP, those were exempted
from treatment.

Also, MRP 2.0 includes a requirement to
ensure that pervicus pavements, which are an
important part of LID designs, are inspected and
appropriately maintained, so they operate as they
are designed.

Okay, well, we’re here in the home stretch
for the staff presentation. There are a variety of
changes to other permit sections, and as I go
through this slide, I want to draw your attention to
the end of your item package where there’s a summary
of proposed major changes, and so that has many of
the things that I’m not going to talk about here.

On Monitoring, for Pollutants of Concern
MRP 2.0 specifies an cverall level of effort needed
to address five Management questions. This 1is an
increase in flexibility as compared to the more
specific reguirements in MRP 1.0. Alsc, there 1is a

new permit section in MRP 2.0; during MRP 1.0, you

25
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adopted the Pacifica State Beach and San Pedro Creek
Fecal Indicator Bacteria TMDL, that TMDL affects two
Permittees, the City of Pacifica and a small part of
San Mateo County, MRP 2.0 includes requirements
implementing the stormwater portions of that TMDL,
such as monitoring, and actions to clean up pet
waste, which was found to be a socurce of pathogens
to the creek and beach.

And my last note on changes 1s about the
section on allowed non-stormwater discharges and
specifically discharges of potable water. This
section has been deleted from MRP 2.0. The intent
is that potable water dischargers will cbtain
coverage under the new statewide NPDES Permit for
Drinking Water System Discharges, and that statewide
permit was adopted just last November.

Freviously, there was no other permit coverage for
such discharges, so we included language in MRF 1.0
as a placeholder until such a permit was developed.

So let me briefly summarize. First, I want
to emphasize that the tentative order represents two
years of work with stakeholders and, on behalf of
Water Board staff, T want to thank the many
Permittees and stakeholders who have dedicated

significant time to this process, and who are
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continuing to do so.
Seccend, the Permit 1is a key tool to achieve

TMDLs, including the Bay PCBs and Mercury TMDLs.

The Permit’s enforceable numeric requirements for

d

both near and long term lo eductions are

j4J]
[

important; that’s because they will push Permittees
to implement controls on the ground. They are
achievable, They are based on numbers provided by
the Permittees during MRP 1.0. And the on-the-
ground work is necessary, both to make progress on
the TMDL, but alsc to trigger the TMDL'’s adaptive
management implementation opticn 1f more time is
needed.

Finally, the Permit’s Green Infrastructure
Planning Reguirements would lay the groundwork for
the gradual mcdernization of urban stormwater
infrastructure needed to achieve the TMDLs, and
would also achieve a host 0of other benefits from
cleaner water overall, to safer streets, to a sterm
drain and floocd contrcl system that can be more
resilient in the face of factors like c¢limate
change. 5S¢ thank you for your attention and we
would be happy to take any guestions.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, do we have

questions for Keith? I have a couple. What a
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surprise.

Near the beginning of your presentation you
menticned that there were two check-in points, o¢ne
in year two and one in year four, to determine
whether the Permittees had accomplished the required
load reductions. On what basis will we analyze
whether or not they have complied with that?

DR. MUMLEY: This i1is Tom Mumley, fcr the
record.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Do we have mcnitoring
regquirements? Are we just loocking at what they've
done and modeling? Or walk me through this.

DR. MUMLEY: So the Permit requires that an
accounting system which is mostly but not completely
recognized in the Draft Permit, the permit requires
a submittal within the first year to complete that
accounting system as to how actions will be counted
and load reductions counted, and sc¢ we expect 1t
will be & combination of documentation ¢f actions,
monitoring, and model benefit, and annual submittals
of associated actions and reductions.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: And this is subject to
EQ approval, I presume, the submittal?

DR. MUMLEY: The accounting system, yes.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right. 1I'm getting
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a déja vu here for a similar provision in the last
MRP that did noct work out so well, so I hope it
works better this time and I would presume -- I
would direct staff to be prepared 1if we do not find
that it’s adegquate, that we be prepared Lo put out
our own. But this is just speaking from experience.
DR. MUMLEY: Yes, well, understood, but you
may note that in the Fact Sheet, we do begin the
prescription of how that accounting should be
implemented and with direction in terms cof what 1is
expected, with a degree of recogniticn cof what we

already know, so we’re in that territory that vou’re

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: I appreciate that, I'm
just laying down a marker, as you know.

Secondly, you mentioned that this would be -- we
expect this toc be achieved as a group and I can
understand how one could use an accounting system to
look across the regicn and see if the regional
regquirements had been met, but it always concerns me
a little bit when we ask people to achieve scmething
as a group with ne default system that assigns
individual accountability or responsibility because
we want to make sure this is implemented fairly and

that there aren’t scme of these folks who were
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picking up all of the burden and others who are
skating along. So walk me through how we assure
equity in this system.

DR. MUMLEY: So first we do propose in the
draft permit a distribution of that aggregate load
reduction on a Ccunty basis, that’s part cne. And
then part two is that the provost (ph) permit
regquires the Permittees that further propose, let
them tell us how they wculd like to see those County
levels distributed amongst themselves, and that
becomes, if you will, the backstop. And our
recommendation is that this be implemented in a
manner that, if the total is met everything is good,
if the total is not met, that it be looked at, which
parts of the total weren’t met, and then which part
of the part of the total wasn’t met when you get
down to the Permittee level. So we don’t have that
last part done, but rather than us dictate --

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: We have a project for
them tc create the allocation.

DR. MUMLEY: Yeah,

CHAITRPERSON YOUNG: Okay. Yes.

DR. AJAMI: Mavbe I missed it and you
mentioned 1t, but is it reguired for them to let us

know when they do -- pbring infrastructure? I was
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wondering if we can create some sort of like a
database or something that would help us to -- Jjust
thinking ahead if we want to model these things and
see how that can impact water supply. I know we are
tracking them, T am not sure 1if we are collecting
the data in a database.

MR. LICHTEN: I"11l speak a little bit to it
and then Tom is free to jump in. We think that
there’s a variety of ways the Green Infrastructure
Plans could be implemented, including via scme work
that SFEI is doing as far as computer-based modeling
and pricritization schemes, which would alsc allow
some level of tracking. Separately, the Permittees
track for their own purposes 0&M Green
Infrastructure Controls, so there’s something to
begin with, at the moment there’s noct an overarching
system. Tom, do you want to speak a little about
that?

DR. MUMLEY: Yeah. I think we all
recognize the value and need to have a tracking
system because already from past actions,
particularly driven by the last permit which
emphasized low impact development-type measures, the
numbers are growing. And municipalities need to

know where they are to ensure that they function

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LL
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417

31



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

E\s (‘““\;
properly, tc inspect them, etc. So it’s just a
matter of time that we’'re going to come to agreement
or terms o©on what 1is the optimum way of tracking and
having accessibility to this information. Clearly,
the development of the proposed Green Infrastructure
Plans provides the need and opportunity to deo that;
the question 1s, can we get something going socner
than later? So it’s not a new issue, by all means,
we’'re well aware what you’re suggesting.

DR. AJAMI: Yeah, and I mean if. they are
electronically tracked, it’s much better than paper
trail, that might be harder to sort of go back and
find, and I’'m assuming everybody at this day and age
tracks everything electronically, but you never
know.

CR. MUMLEY: Correct. By the way, this
issue has gotten and will continue to get statewide
attention, as well, and so there will be ~-- 1if we
don’t do something that meets our needs, it’s likely
something may happen out ©f Sacramento that may or
may not meet our needs, so at a minimum we will want
to be prcocactive in terms of develobment of any kind
of tracking system.

DR. AJAMI: Right. Lgain, 1 can’t

emphasize enough the fact that how this relates back
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to water supply availability and how that helps the
whole regional sort of sustainability in many ways,
not just water quality, but also water availability,
SO..

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Okay, well we have a
few people here to comment. Lf everyone toock three
minutes, I think we would be here until tomorrow, so
I'm going to encourage folks to jump on othersf
bandwagons, you know, feel free to come up and say
"1 agree with whomever,” and we will appreciate your
efforts to be brief. But we do want to hear from
you, so we will get started.

What T will do is to call who is coming up
and then who 1s on deck, and if you can be prepared
and right here, that would be great. We have also,
or Dr. Mumley has grouped the cards basically to
topics, s0o we will be hearing about -- this was the
PCRs and Mercury, basically first with some Green
Tnfrastructure rolled in. And Mr. Scanlin, we would
invite you to come up first, and then we would have
Mr. Calabrigo from Danville.

DR. MUMLEY: The first comments will be big
plcture, general, the first three or four commenters
before the comments drill down into the PCB and

Mercury arena.

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

3 ‘

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Thank you for that
clarification.

MR. SCANLIN: Good afterncon, Chair Young
and Board Members. My name is Jim Scanlin, I'm the
Vice Chair of BASMAA, Bay Area Stormwater Management
Agencies Association. I'm also the Program Manager
for the Alameda County-wide Clean Water prodgram.

And today I’11 be speaking on behalf of BASMAA.
BASMAA 1s a 501 {(c){3) organization
representing 98 agencies, including 84 Cities, seven

Counties, and several Special Districts. And the

Permit covers 76 of BASMAA’s 98 member agencies.
I'’d first like to start off by thanking Keith for
that excellent presentation, very nice job, Keith.
When Keith presents, everything sounds lovely and
fabulous, so thank you for that.

MR. WOLFE [presumed]: Let me write that
down, maybe we can stop right here.

MR. LICHTEN: Can you call my mom?

MR. SCANLIN: Your mom would be very proud.
And thank you for your insightful question, I think
the guestions you raised were some c¢f the same
issues we have,

Thanks for this opportunity to comment.

Again, we’ll be providing additicnal comments at the
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July 8th meeting and providing written comments, as
well. We would like to again thank Water Board
staff, it’s been two years, we’ve been meeting
almost monthly with Water Board staff, in addition
with the Steering Committee, in addition to numerous
work groups, so thanks te the staff.

And we appreciate the focus on the big
issues, PCBs, trash, and Green Infrastructure. We
knew going in two years ago these were going to be
the issues, and we have for th? most part really
focused on those, and we appreciate that. And we’'d
also like to thank EPA staff for their
participation, it’s been very helpful to have them
at many of these meetings, as well.

So I'm just going to provide a brief
overview and some context for the comments that will
follow. Again, we focused on the high pricrity
issues, we've made a tremendous amount of progress.
Te date, we still feel there are additional issues
that we need to resolve prior to the adoption of a
permit. Again, the high pricrity issues, C.3.J, the
Green Infrastructure, C.10, Trash Ccntrols, and
C.12, PCB Controls.

So first abecut C.3.J, Green Infrastructure

Planning. This provision continues to be the most
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challenging and uncertain portion of Provision C.3.

Second, the prioritizaticn and mapping of potential
unplanned projects is a major rescurce ilntensive
effort and additicnal flexibility and additional
time will be needed for that.

Third, the timeframes for establishing
targets for the amount of impervicus surface
retrofitted do not line up well with the C.11 and
C.12 provisions,.

And finally, the requirement to meet the
C.3.D sizing criteria may not be feasible. Many of
these rocadway projects are where space 1s very
censtrained and that’s C.3.I.1.49. Can I get a
couple extra?

Moving on to C.12, over the past --

CHAIRPERSCN YOUNG: I'm scrry, we're
allewing Mr. Scanlin some extra time because he’s
speaking on behalf of so many people. And T think
that was that thing over there {(clcck) in the
corner, which somebody else is going to keep track
of for the rest of you. Please go ahead.

MR. SCANLIN: ©Okay, thank you. As Keith
alluded to this, as well, over the past 10 plus
years, BASMAA member agencies have made a clear

commitment to assist Water Board staff. We’'ve been
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collecting monitoring data to assist in the TMDL

development from 2000 to 2008. We’ve implemented

(PRI

significant pilot implementaticn projects to better

T

understand the cost effectiveness and feasibility of

managing PCBs. We’ve spent over $10 million largely
with assistance from an EPA grant that we received

for our Clean Watersheds for Clean Bay Program,
We’ve been collaborating with Water Board
staff and SFEL to better understand the distribution
of PCBs and Mercury in watersheds. And we've also
been collaborating with BACWA, the Water Bocard, and
the California Department of Health to implement
strategies to communicate risks associated with
eating Bay fish. This commitment continues moving
forward into MRP 2.0, however, the Tentative QOrder
lacks a clear and feasible pathway for Permittees to
attain compliance with the load reduction
regquirements. Most factors that would be key
to meeting the criteria are uncertain and many are
not within the Permittee’s control, making
achievement of the compliance uncertain, These
factors include PCBs are a legacy pollutant that are
long-lived and ubiguitous, but generally at a low
level in the environment; there are no clear best

management practices and the BMPs we know of are
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uncertain as far as their performance; and as you
brought up, there’s no agreed-to accounting method
in the Tentative Order.

Despite these uncertainties, the Tentative
OCrder 1ncludes a commitment to regulatory
performance of the three kilograms per year, which
we're very concerned about. It also includes a
requirement tc develop a major new environmental
program for building demclition projects. We feel
this would be akin to the lead abatement or asbestos
abatement programs that have been developed in the
past, and we feel that those should be led by state
and federal efforts, rather than done at the local
level or led by local agencies.

The local agency speakers to follow will
flesh out the details of these concerns and others
and reccmmend permit revisions to address these
cocncerns. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Questions for Mr.
Scanlin? Not at this time. Thank yvocu so much. All
right, we will have Mr. Calabrigo followed by Sandy
Wong, please.

MER. CALABRIGO: Well, thank vou, Chair and
Members of the Beard. I'm Joe {alabrigo, I'm the

Town Manager in Danville and I'm here on behalf of
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the Contra Costa County Public Managers. And I
would hasten to add that I believe that I am
actually the only local government administrator
that has had the opportunity to sit through the
meetings that Mr. Lichten referred to, and so while
I"ve enjoyed the experience very much, I have to
tell you that there’s a great deal of technical
detail that’s been talked about at those meetings
that is still way over my head, but there are a lot
of people here today that are prepared to address
these with you.

In Contra Costa, we're going to be giving
our elected officials an update of the new MRP at
our Mayor’s conference that will be coming up in
July. S0 since July of 2013, we’'ve heen able to
carry on an ongoing dialogue with your staff
regarding some of the experiences and lessons that
we have gained from the current MRP, how to apply
that experience toward the new MRP that we’re in the
process of developing now, and then, very
importantly, ensuring that these new requirements
are going to provide for a clear path to compliance
on behalf of all the Permittees.

Now, as someone who was schocled as an

Urban Planner, I think that the new MRP includes a
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very significant step for all of us, which is the
development of Green Infrastructure Plans that, £from
a local government perspective, are going to
radically change the way that public drainage and
transportation projects and infrastructure will be
built and maintained over the next several years,
decades. It’s also going to reqguire us as
Permittees to plan and implement programs to reduce
PCB loads, increase trash load reductions from 40 to
70 percent, and a number of the various things that
Mr. Lichten referred to. These are really
significant changes.

Through the process, the Permittees have
also advocated for relief on selected, what we would
consider to be lower priority tasks, that we believe
will yield little in the way of demonstrable results
in order to allow efforts and resources to be
focused on some of the higher priority areas that
we’ve talked abcocut, the Green Infrastructure
Planning, trash lcad reduction, and PCB controls.
And we've presented, I think, comprehensive
information and rationale to support these reguests.

This approach really acknowledges that the
newer additional funding socources that are going to

be required in order to implement these new
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requirements have yet to be identified. Again, I'm
wearing my Administrator hat, but you know that in
Contra Costa County we tried this in 2012, and 60
percent of the respondents gave us a thumb’s down.

S0 we're being asked to make commitments
without any assurances that we’ll be able to secure
adequate funding to pay for capital ocoperating and
maintenance costs. So again, we need to allocate
the limited resources that are available in ways
that will focus on and maximize the effectiveness of
the major new mandates that are contained in Lhe new
MRP.

I also want to emphasize that as local
government, we view ourselves very much as partners
with the Water Board in carrying out this mandate,
but we also need you to recognize the enormity of
the effort and the revenue uncertainty that comes
along with 1it.

As local governments, we think that we’ve
worked diligently to meet the current MRP
requirements and that we’ve presented thoughtful and
extensive input and feedback to your staff regarding
the new MRP. And while we’ve appreciated that
opportunity and your staff’s willingness to engage

with us and hear this feedback, we believe that too
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few 0of these ideas have been incorporated into the
Draft Tentative Order. So you're going to be
hearing from variocus speakers today asking you for
consideration regarding relief with respect to
certain issues, and also providing éermittees with a
clear path to compliance. And so I’d urge you to
consider their testimony and then direct your staff
to continue tc work with these stakeholders to
address these 1ssues. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON YQUNG: All right, thank you.
Any guestions? Who at the front table 1s watching
the clock and resetting the clock? Okay. It might
be nice if somecne of you guys would Jjust like hold
up something when there’s only one minute to go, so

people don’t have to concentrate on looking at the

clecck. Is it visible enough? Okay. I can’t see
it. I just want to make sure that something is in
their field of vision. But now you’ve been
forewarned, you have to look at the clock, All

right, Sandy Wong and followed by Tom Dalziel,
please.

MS. WONG: Thank you, Madam Chair and Board
Members. Sandy Wong, Executive Director for
City/Ccocunty Asscciation of Governments for San Mateo

County, C/CAG. C/CAG represents 21 Jjurisdictions in
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San Mateo County and I pretty much ditto the first

two speakers before me.

NI
s

We as part of our job 1is tc help our
member agencies to comply with the stormwater
reguirements and I just wanted tc mention one thing
here regarding PCB and Mercury. Because it's
largely a legacy issue, and there’s a lot of
uncertainty regarding the effectiveness of the
control measures, we would like to urge you to input
more time in the new permit to allow our staff to
work with vyour staff in developing these control
measures that are effective and alsc achievable.

And I really want to thank your staff for
the last two years in working with us, we do have a
full time stormwater program manager dedicated to
this program, and he has worked with all of your
staff in the last two vears, and we really
appreciate that. And 1t has a huge improvement over
the first permit.

Funding is a major issue from local
agencies because they have a very limited amount of
funding. C/CAG, in the last year we looked into
exploring ways To sgek new funding initiatives for
this, and we’ve done analysis and it shows that even

if we are successful in getting a new funding
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initiative, we still have a large shortfall gap. So
my short message is to ask you to be aware of our
limited funding situation and give us more time to
craft more effective controeol measures. Thank vyou.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank you
very much. So now we have Tom Dalziel followed by
Jon Konnan.

ME. DALZIEL: Thank you. My name 1s Tom
Dalziel. I'm the Program Manager for the Contra
Costa Clean Water Program. Shortly after the defeat
of our countywide funding initiat;ve in 2012, our
municipalities began a review of our stormwater
programs looking to identify ways to improve
efficiency and maximize cur program’s effectiveness
in the next permit term.

Through this effort, we developed the
following three principles, guiding principles for
the next permit, the first being to establish
priorities focused on actions that will improve
water quality, 2) identify and prioritize the
actions that integrate multiple benefits, and 3)
assure a clear path tc compliance. Working
collaborativeiy with your staff over the last two
vears, we've developed a Plan cof Action that is

nearly consistent with these guiding principles, and
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that’s the Green Infrastructure Plan.

This plan recognizes that our pollutants of
concern, Mercury, PCB, and all the others, are
disbursed throughout the built environment, and that
achieving cur water quality goals to reduce or
eliminate these pollutants from receiving waters
will reqguire signiticant change in the way we
design, build, and maintain our drainage and
transportation infrastructure. We’re committed to
setting this into motion and it’s a long range plan
to retrofit the built environment by permanently
disconnecting drainage from imperviocus surfaces to
local waterways. Green Infrastructure will be
implemented over the coming decades as
transportation and drainage infrastructure is
rebuilt, and privately owned urban land is
redeveloped,

The good news 1s we’ve been doing green
infrastructure for 10 years now on new and
redevelopment of private parcels. During the last
five years, we’'ve also implemented a number of pilot
green street projects. Much was learned from these
projects, such as accommodating all the wvarious
below ground and above ground utilities, dealing

with the multiple modes of transportation, wheels,
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chairs, bicycles, pedestrians, cars, buses, and then
also incorporating these LID drainage design
features all within a highly constrained public
right of way 1is extremely challenging and expensive.

Over the next permit term, our public
works, planning, transportation, capital
improvement, maintenance and finance departments
will be working to develop prioritized plans and
maps for planned and potential retrofits, new
streetscape guidelines, new street design standards,
and funding methods for capital construction and
ongoing O&M.

There 1s currently insufficient pubklic
investment needed to adeguately maintain our
existing drainage and transportation infrastructure,
so we need to acknowledge that new revenue sources
and mechanisms will be needed. We are working on
this now. We’ve already begun discussions regarding
the need to focus and coordinate funding streams and
on changing transportation agencies’ project design
and approval proccesses. BASMAA also received a
grant to assemble a roundtable of regional, state
and federal transportation agencies and other
relevant stakeholders to identify & chart to see

that that happens. With this grant, there will alsoc
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be a design contest for development of effective and
efficient typical street designs that incorporate
green infrastructuzre. This will not be enocugh. We
will need new, yet to be identified funding streams.

We are working on a coalitiocon on a
statewide funding initiative that, 1if ultimately
successful, will allow us to fund our stormwater
programs similar to the way we fund water, sewer and
refuse services. The work and effort is worthy and
the benefits to water quality will be significant
and measurable. However, local government and state
government must be partners in this menumental
effort and recognize and accommodate the inherent
uncertainties that prevail such as the availability
of funding and the rate and pace of private
redevelopment. We need your help in allowing us to
refocus cur effort and prioritize our actions on
this important multi-benefit solution. I"d like to
leave you with Jjust two thoughts, if I may.

Through our efforts to identify how to make
cur programs more effective, we have identified a
number of less beneficial tasks. These are reqgquired
actions that provide little or no water guality
benefit and are administratively burdensome. These

less than beneficial tasks have been submitted and
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reviewed with vour staff over the past two years.
They’re in our report of waste discharge submitted
in June 2014, and in our program and BASMAA'Ss
comments in the Administrative Draft Tentative
Order. We’d like you to work with us to reduce or
eliminate those less beneficial tasks.

Last thought. The second thought involves
what other speakers will follow-up behind me in that
we need protection, we need a clear path to
compliance with the PCB and Mercury TMDL. A lot of
work has been done on this, I think we’'re close to
finding an answer, but as it is written right now,
there’s no guarantee. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON YQOUNG: All right. In fairness
to everyone else at the botteom of this stack, I
would ask that people really take seriously the fact
that we’re trying to do this in three minutes. You
can write as long of comments as you want when you
submit your package, and they will all be responded
to and we will read them all, as well. Okay, this
is Jon Konnan and we’ll have Arleen Feng next,
please.

MR. KONNAN: Hi, I’'m Jon Konnan with the
EOA. I'’'m here for the San Mateo County Stormwater

Program. I'm going to talk about PCBs, C.12, and
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I"d like to start off with some perspective about
time. I think we should all sit back, relax, take a
deep breath, and consider the timescales that we are
considering.

With PCBs there’'s really one timescale that
matters and that 1i1s decades -- not years, but
decades. PCBs have been in the Bay for decades and
no matter what we do right now, short of dredging
the whole Bay, PCBs are going to remain in the Bay
for decades to come. This is a legacy pollutant
that over many many years has been disbursed widely
in soils and sediments in the urban landscape that

drains to the Bay, and they’re also widely disbursed

in the sediments in the Bay, itself. They breakdown
very slowly. So they’re not going anywhere any time
real soon and there’s no magic bullet. Does that

mean that we should slack off on our efforts? Of
course not, You've heard about some of our
accomplishments earlier from Jim Scanlin and we need
to continue doing everything that we can to reduce
discharges of PCBs 1in stormwater so that the Bay can
clean itself out over time. But the important point
is that we need to be smart about it.

The thing to guard against at this point is

to start to do things in a rushed or hurried way, or
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in an inefficient way just to try to show some

arbitrary short term progress. And building
materials is a good example. You’ll hear some more
details from Arleen next. But if local agencies are

forced to develop in just three years a program to
manage building materials during demolition, it’s
going to result in using scarce public funds in
inefficient ways, and probably with a less than
desirable cutcome. Local agencies should be given
at least the entire permit term to work with U.S5.
EPA and the other stakeholders to develop a program
that is statewide.

So the bottom line with all these PCBEs
controls i1is that the local agencies really want to
do the job in the right way, and they will do the
job in the right way, but you have to give them
enough time to do the job in the right way. Thank
you.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank vou
very much. This 1is Arleen Feng and then we’ll have
Phil Bobel, please.

MS. TENG: I thank you. Good afternoon,

Chair Young and members. I'm Arleen Feng. I'm the

LS

fonitoring and Technical Project staff for the

=

Alameda County-wide Clean Water Program and I thank
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you for the opportunity to comment and also thank
the Water Board staff for their collaboraticn in the
PCB pilots and ongoing efforts that we’ve already

done, as Keith described.

[

I'm going te fecus on C.12.F, Managing PCBRB
Containing Materials and Waste During Building
Demoliticn Activities. There’s been a lot of
discussion in the past and we applaud the
recognition that a comprehensive framework is needed
to address this legacy pollution problem, as C.12.F
dces, However, this same provision undercuts this
understanding with an unrealistic timeframe for
implementation, as Jon mentioned.

As background, befcre the 1979 ban, PCBs
appeared in two broad categories of uses. In
addition to the closed uses of 0il filled equipment
such as electrical transformers and fluorescent
light ballasts, there was a wide range of open uses
including plastics, molded rubber parts, paints or
sealants, caulking, adhesives, and asbestos wall and
roof covering, and that’s not a comprehensive list.

Stormwater programs collaborated with the
San Francisco Estuary Partnership’s PFCB and Caulk

Project from 2007 to 2011, and it focused on Caulk

because clder caulks contained many high PCB
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concentrations, not always but some, and 1t was
expected that they have a majority of the PCBs 1n
many older buildings, but by no means all. And it's
by no means predictable for a given building.

However, the PCBs that are actually emitted
or discharged to the environment as a result of
demolition is a very small fraction of this total
mass of caulk and of the larger mass c¢f PCBs that
are in the building, that 10,000 kilograms of
inventory. And this is a societal problem that that
10,000 kilograms is out there, but it’s not
primarily even a stormwater problem.

So when the project cutlined model
municipal ordinances, it identified major gaps such
as most of the reguirements for abatement ¢f these
materials would probably occur before a municipal
permit was issued.

So in 2010, Water Bocard staff and BASMAA
both commented on U.S. EPA rulemaking, urging EPA to
address these gaps. Recently, EPA announced that it
will propose limited regulatory fixes in March 2016,
but we don’t really expect these to form a
comprehensive program. In compariscon, regulations
for constructicn-related askbestos and lead include

testing and abatement standards, certification and
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approved training including requirements that these
be for state and federal contracts, and a process
for delegating authority to state agencies,
including the Departments of Public Health,
Industrial Relations, Consumer Affairs, and local
Air Quality Districts,

50 we are asking the implementation
timeframes be realistic and contingent upon active
participation and information sharing by U.S. EPA,
as well as the other state agencies. Thank you.

CHATRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank you
very much. Mr. Bobkel and then Jay Walter.

MR. BORBEL: Hello Board Members, Phil Bobel,
City of Palc Alto. Thank you for having all of us
today, we really appreciate it.

The first point I'd like to make is with
respect to the Green Infrastructure Program. That’s
extremely positive, we're very excited about that,
we think it’s great that it’s in the permit, not
everybody may, but for us we’d have to admit that in
the past, with multiple City Departments working on
projects, opportunities get missed. So I welcome
the opportunity to put together a plan and to bring
together all of our City Departments so0 we're sure

that we don’t miss any copportunities for Green
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Infrastructure within the City.

With respect toc private development, we’'ve
had for many vears now & program to deal with that,
but T have to admit that within the City we need a
better system and this is going to give us the teeth
to insist on that better system for everybody, so I
welcome that.

The main problem I see with it, the way the
permit is written, is Jjust that first deadline of a
year says that we submit it, but we have our council
or Board approve it prior to submittal. Most things
of this nature we don’t have approved by our
Council, they don’'t need to, and if you insist on
that, we won’t be able to make that timeframe. Just
getting it through our process, they’ll refer it to
some committee or another board and it won’t happen.
So I think if you just remove that, we can submit
something within a year, at least speaking for Palco
Alto, and that will be a great first step. I think
you called it a structure or a framework, and we can
do something like that.

The second point I’d like to make is with
respect tc the PCB and Mercury proposal. As has
been discussed, 1it’s widely disbursed in the

environment, we can’t find any hot spots in Palo
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Alto for either of those two. We have been looking
for years and doing various tasks asscociated with
the Reglonal Board, some 0of them and some of them
not, and we just don’t think there are any, anymore.

So 1it’s a pervasive problem and a load
allocation to the City wen't help. So therefs a
provision in the permit now that says that there
shall be a distribution of the load from a County
level, which 1s specified in the permit, down to the
City level. And we suggest yvou just eliminate that.
It's not going to help. This is a thing that’s
largely under control, we’re going to deal with
private development through C.3, we'’re going to deal
with our own City development through the Green
Infrastructure Plan, we’ll maximize those
activities, but we have to ask that you omit that
distribution to the local level from it.

Secendly, we'd strongly suggest that even
at the County level these just be goals, not some
kind of enforceable target; that won’t help, it only
creates a lot of friction. Thank vyou.

CHATRPERSON YOUNG: Thank vou, Mr. Bobel.
Jay Walter and then Napp Fukuda, please.

MR. WALTER: Good afternoon, Board Members.

I'm Jay Walter, the Public Works Director for the
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City of San Carlos 1in San Mateo County. And I also
want to comment that I appreciate the time and
effort that’s gone into the last couple years with
the MRP Steering Committee, the effort of your
staff, and all the Permittees that have had a very
active and ongoing discussion as we are ready for
MRP 2.0.0. I do have a couple of comments to
make, in particular for the PCE load reductions.

And previous speakers have commented and I would
like to second the idea that a load reduction
number, which 1s set as a hard target will be much
more difficult to achieve, though added pressure of
a load reduction target wversus the programs that are
designed to reduce PCBs in the runcff, I think, is a
much more reasonable way to go, and I would mention
that the City of San Carlos was one of the agencies
that had a pilot project for PCB reducticn, it was
actually in the Green Infrastructure area. And we
struggle with, as the project was completed and the
information was submitted, with really understanding
the true results of what we had achieved. And so I
Lhink there’s still more work to be done befcre we
begin to prescribe the lcad reduction targets based
on these particular activities.

As it relates to the PCBs and the building
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materials and road sealants, T think that it’s been
mentioned that this is perhaps a larger issue than a
local level concern, it’s a concern obviously but T
believe that along with the lead paint and asbestos
abatement programs that have been proffered at much
higher levels that this is worthy of that same
effort, as well, so that we local agencies don’t get
into the business of creating programs that don’t
work as well as they should, but perhaps should be
managed at a higher level down through to local
agencies, that we can enforce that way.

As 1t relates to Green Infrastructure
Planning, I would like to point out that certainly
it will be challenging to create the Green
Infrastructure Plans and get them adopted by our
Council within the one vyear. The one other thing
that perhaps complicates this, to make you aware of,
is that typically Councils have capital improvement
programs that they plan over a five-year period, or
some other such term. Those are projects generally
that are prioritized by community input and Council
input for the needs within the community. 50 as we
would all go back and loock at implementing green
infrastructure components of our various capital

projects, 1t would require us to reprioritize those
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projects and then possibly defer improvements that
had been community priorities with this moving kind
of to the front of the line. So funding will be a
challenge, it’s not inconceivable, I believe that we
have a lot of good that will come from -- we’ll call
it the infiltration strategies —-- from our streets
and on our properties, but I believe the timeframes
are too tight for us in the current permit language
and I would appreciate the opportunity for those to
be relaxed to a degree. Thank you for the
opportunity to speak.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right. Thank you
very much. Dr. Mumley.

DR. MUMLEY: Yes, Chair Young. Since
multiple speakers have called attention to the time
challenge of going to a Council within the year, 1
want to make sure you understand the intention
behind that requirement and where there actually
might be some adaptability here.

What we are proposing is that we get high
level support for pursuing Green Infrastructure
Plans early on, make sure they happen, so that staff
know that they’re supported, etc. We certainly
understand the actual developing the detailed plans

and the financing stuff is going to take time, s0
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it’s really a matter that we want to hear a clear
message from on high from each municipality early
on. 50 we're open to alternatives to having a
Cocuncil action if that’s problematic, that still
would represent an adequate high level support for
that. 5¢ I would welcome comments from Permittees
that would express the version of support that they
could commit to provide in that short term that
would allow us to respond by recognizing that as
hopefully an appropriate alternative.

CHAIRPERSON YOQUNG: Sc as I understand your
suggestion, you’re asking for alternatives to the
City Council among the group of high level pecople in
the Cities and Counties. Basically, you want some
of the movers and shakers to sign on to it and
you’'re pretty open as toc who the mocvers and shakers
are. But what I thought I also heard was that maybe
that didn’t have to be approval of the entire plan,
it could be approval of a concept that is going to
be embodied in the plan. Is that correct?

DR. MUMLEY: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: So we have two options
for people tc comment.

DR. MUMLEY: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON YOQUNG: Thank you. All right,
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Napp Fukuda and then we will have Melody Tovar,
please.

MR . FUKUDA: Thank vou. Napp Fukuda, Deputy
Director Environmental Services Department of the
City of San Jose. And I saw you looking at me, Tom,
to kind of lead me in addressing that, and actually
we have someone from our Planning Department who can
probably speak better to that than I can, at least
green infrastructure and the timeframes, approvals,
etc. etc.

So thank you again for the opportunity. I
want to echo the efforts that Water Board staff has
said, certainly we appreciate 1t and I think we've
come to a meeting of the minds, 1f you will, on many
issues; however, I still believe we are very far
apart on some very contentious provisions, as you've
heard so far. And I don’'t want to belabor issues,
so 1’11 try and brush through those as quickly as
possible because you’ve heard those, but I think
it’s important to say that San Jose 1s very
concerned and does believe that Provision C.12 does
not provide a clear and feasible path to compliance
and that is a very important point.

We've done a lot of work te date. I mean,

I think that’s something that at least is inferred
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that the Permittees have nct done anvthing, and we
have. San Jose has keen a part of that. We’ve been
working through the EPA funded Clean Watersheds for
a Clean Bay Project, which is lcoking at priority
watersheds within the Bay Area, San Jose having cne
of them, the Leo Avenue Project, which we gained a
lot of experience on. The intent was Lo source
identify some properties and refer those, what we
found, we did refer Union Pacific to the Water Board
tc leck at control actions, to see the efficacy of
those, or determine the efficacy. You know, we
installed HDS Units to see if that would work, the
street sweeping studies, etc., blind planning (ph}.
So we’ve done a lot of work and gained a lot of
experience through that.

Based on that, and knowing that some of the
required actions to meei this three kilogram per
vear goal, the uncertainties are just too great in
aour opinion. A Jot of the load reduction is gocing
to be attributed to demolition to buildings. You
knew, the uncertainties of that projection of how
much PCB loads or sediment is going to get to the MS
Board (ph) and the lack of management control wversus

with the management control is very variable and

really uncertain.
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But bevond that, even 1f we could agree on
that, I think what hasn’t been emphasized 1is a lot
of this is out of the control of a loccal agency. As
much as local jurisdictions would love to say “build
here, demo that building, do this,” we have no
control over how many of these vintage buildings
will be taken out of service over the permit term,
so it’s very difficult for us to project now what
load reducticon credit we would get, if ycu will, or
actually benefit at the end of the day because we
simply do not know how many of those buildings are
going to gelb removed. Beyond that timeframe, you
know, it’'s been said before, so really we wculd ask
the Board to consider moving away frcm a numeric
limit in PCBs and move to more ¢f a performance-
based or, if you will, more reliant on an approval
of establishment of a program tc deal with these
things with the intent of those programs meeting
those load reducticn goals.

And lastly, again it’s been said,
timeframe. I think timeframes are really

challenging the way they’'re proposed now, and we

should ask the Board to consider that. Thank vyou.
CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right. Thank you,
very clear. Ms. Tovar and then Rebecca Tuden,
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please.
MS., TOVAR: Good afternocon. Melcdy Tovar,

Regulatory Division Manager with the City of

Sunnyvale. And before he tries to leave the room, I
just want toc wish Napp a happy bkirthday. So
I"11 use my time to echo much ¢f what Napp said. We

would agree wheclly, so give that teo him for his
birthday, I will just add what people have said,
that we appreciate staff’s work on the permit so
far, I'’ve had the privilege of participating in
quite a number of the work group and steering
committee meetings over the last twoe vears, and I
get Just a tiny bit smarter every time; it’'s a slow
process, but we're getting there. I do want to
emphasize that the POC Section, I think of
everything in the permit that I’ve locked at so far,
and we have looked in detall, that is the section I
think where we still have the most to go in order to
get to a permit that makes sense for us as
implementers, S50 again, I’l1l echo the championing
mantra of today of we need a clear and feasible path
to ccmpliance for PCCs, And I’'11 add that that’s
not just for us, that’s also the same path you take
Lo get to a reasonable assurance of meaningful

cutcemes for water guality. It’s the same path we
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have to take to get to defending and championing the
investments that we wili need to cur own agencies.
So 1it’s all part of the same package, 1t 1s not just
about the big C word.

And then I’'1ll just add that some octhers
have said it, but let’s take a moment for the
context again, this permit wants big things for
water guality from stormwater in the next five
vyears. In addition to POCs, we have the ongoing and
very expensive work of trash reduction to continue,
we are committfted to that. And it has the very
exciting and game changing work of Green
Infrastructure Planning, game changing. But it’s
also going to take a lot of work and commitment from
the agencies, and so we’re looking at the balance of
all these things and how we move forward
successfully.

On POCs for recommendation, T will
emphasize the opportunity of looking at the PCB in
building materials problem as a statewide, 1f not
national sclution oppocrtunity, and that it’'s
essential that those agencies be involved in the
solution and that we not lock at local government as
the end all and be all for how we solve that. Huge

uncertainties in how much of that material is really
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in building to building, huge uncertainty. And what
fraction of that actually gets to stormwater. And
tremendous uncertainty in what the real gap is
between that actually getting to stormwater and the
current ccntrol methods already in place Vis a Vis
the construction state stormwater permit that these
same properties already have to implement. So
there’s a lot to work out. We also haven’t seen the
opportunity toc engage the building industry, which
we think is going to be an essential voice in
develioping a program at the right time.

And I was reflecting earlier this week that
this 1s not unprecedented for us as Permittees on
the Water Board. I think it’s in our current permit
that the brake pad initiative for copper control was
one of those things where the Board rightfully
recognized big change needs to happen, local
government can’t do 1t alone. But local government
must be and should be compelled to be at the table.
We think that there is a mirroring opportunity with
PCBs through this next permit, and I ask you to take
that into consideration.

I711 also add it might be worth it to get a
clarification from the staff on the three kilograms

versus 18 kilograms, the three is envisioned to
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truly belong to us, the 18 does not belong to us
exclusively as MRP dischargers. Thank vyou.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, we have
Rebecca Tuden and then Cece Sellgren.

M3, TUDEN: Good afternoon, Madam Chair,
members of the Board. Rebecca Tuden, City of
Oakland. I_also want to echo, I want to thank the
Board staff for being very available and discussing
the permit with us, and very collaborative in
looking over the PCB reduction estimates and the
technical documents behind that, it was very
helpful.

I also waﬁt to say that Oakland knows we’re
on the hook for a lot ¢f PCB reduction. We have
legacy land use, industrial, right along the
waterfront, we know that there’s a lot of
opportunity to reduce PCBs there and we’re committed
to doing that.

We participated in the Green
Infrastructure, the BASMAA EPA grant funded six tree
wells in West Oakland. We’ve done screening
inspections and sampling where appropriate of over
60 properties, and where we can with redevelospment,
notably the Oakland Army Base and the upcoming

Brooklyn Basin, we’ve made sure that PCB issues and
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reduction and getting to those necessary levels has
been addressed.

Locking forward, we have some concerns, not
about our commitment, but about our ability to
achieve what's been asked of us, and mainly we’ve
already discussed that these best management
practices, these institutional controls, are based
on estimates of reductions. Your staff has said,
and everybody has said it, they’re estimates. In
fact, the permit calls for us to revisit and
document those estimates further along. We all know
that estimates are just that, and if the Cities go
ahead and implement everything perfectly, and we can
say “what if,” but 1f we do that and those estimates
are wrong, what can we do? We become liable,
vulnerable to third-party lawsuits. And we just
urge you to put a provisicn in to revisit that
issue, 1t’s good government to plan ahead and expect
the estimates to be revisited and updated, and what
to do if under your discreticn the cities are
meeting their implementation goals, but the
estimates are in error.

And adding tc that, there are a number of
the implementation, the best management practices

that are out of our control. Already mentioned are
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demolition, we can’t control how many buildings are
demclished.

And another big one for us is referrals.
We’ll refer properties that are not City-owned to
State agencies, EPA and Federal agencies. EPA’s
cleanup are orders of magnitude less stringent than
the TMDL standards, DTSC even less so. Case 1n
point, we have a property on the waterfront on a
creek that has been referred almost two years ago --
DTSC and KPA are batting around who 1s going to
clean it up, nothing has happened. Sc that, you
know, we don’'t know exactly how much 1s on the site,
we know that the levels are very high, and that
could be a significant opportunity for meeting these
TMDL goals, but nothing has been done because it’s
out of our hands. Thank you very much.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank you.
Ms. Sellgren and then Laura Hoffmeister.

MS. SELLGREN: Good afternocon. My name is
Cece Sellgren. I'm the Stormwater Manager for
Unincorporated Contra Costa County, as well as the
Flood Control District. I'm talking on behalf of
Unincorporated County today. I also want toc echo
the thanks to Regicnal Board staff for all the

efforts that they’ve put in working with us, it's
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been really wonderful. I also want to recognize
Luisa Valiela from U.S5. EPA, she’s also been at the
table and has been I think instrumental in many
ways.

There’s a lot of folks, thinks they want +to
talk about, but T want to talk about PCBs, of
course, and path towards compliance, and
particularly T want to talk about what
municipalities can do and what we can’t do. And
you’ve been hearing a lot about that. So we've got
the three pathways, we're going to deal with Caulk
in buildings, we’re going to do the G.I. Plan, and
we're going to go after those parcels that are
currently bleeding PCB tainted sediment into our
MS4ds., And when I think about that one, I wanted to
say a few things to that effect. So first of all,
we started off with 1,000 parcels in Unincorporated
County that were old industrial and ceould
potentially be sources of PCBs, and we went through
a process of whittling that down, it got down to
less than 50, and then we went out and we’ve done
sediment sampling on adjacent road right of way, and
that’s going to come down to even less. And then
when we get down to that final number, we’re going

to actively and vigorously use our enforcement
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response plan to go after those guys. And, you
know, some of them are actually going to say, "“O0Oh,
wow, I'm sorry, yeah, we're going to put in sediment
controls and we're going to keep it froem going
there,” but a lect of them are going to tell us to
buzz off. And so we're going to go further into our
enforcement response plan and we’'re going to put
pressure on them, and we’re going to fine them, and
you know, “Wow, we’'re going to give them a $500
fine, ooh, that’s going to go really far with them.”
And then, you know, the next stage of that
enforcement response plan 1s coming to you guys, the
Regional Board, okay? You know, really, I can throw
a rock at them, you guys can throw a boulder at
them, $500.00 versus $10,000 a day, it’s a huge
difference. So we're really really really going to
neced your help. And it’'s very discouraging here,
Cakland telling me the story about how DTSC and the
Regional Board really haven’t done much for them,
and it makes me very very concerned about my ability
to meet my obligations as a municipality.

The second issue I wanted to point out is
that, when we look at where are the greatest sources
of PCBs in the environment, they are not in our

older abandoned, they are not even in our old
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industrial, they are in PG&E and other utility right
of way and railrcad right of way. And I have

absolutely no authecrity at all to do anything about

that. Indeed, I mean, I can’t do anything about
those guys. I can't touch them. I can write a
threatening letter, and they can laugh. But I can’t

do anything about that. And they are overwhelmingly
the sources of PCBs that are getting into stormwater
and I need your help to deal with that. I can’t do
it. I need you guys to do that. And so we as
municipalities, we can’t achieve that reduction of
stormwater just based upon our own stuff. We need
you guys to help us do that. Thank you very much.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank vyou.
Eric Anderscn -- did I say that? No, I’m ahead of
myself.

MS5. HOFFMEISTER: I"'m Laura Hoffmeister.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Ms. Hoffmelster. And
then Eric Anderson.

M5. HOFFMEISTER: Good afternoon, Chair,
Bcard Members. Taura Hoffmeister, Vice Mayor of the
City of Concord. A couple topics I want to just
touch on tonight, or this afterncon ~-- I'm used to
night meetings -- the PCB and the Green

Infrastructure.
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I think it’'s very important to take some

time before now and the adoption of the permit for
you to direct staff to continue to work with the Co-
Permittees on providing some additional clarity and
to work on realistic timeframes. As an elected
cfficial, as was mentioned earlier, I can tell vyou,
the one year 1s not going to work for the Green
Infrastructure. I serve on the Infrastructure and
Franchise Committee in my City, 1t takes us
typically three months to get through a topic, and
then we have to go to the community meetings, and
then we come to the Council meetings, and by then
we’'re more than a year down the road. And I think
we can come up with some realistic objectives that
meets all of our goals. What I'm concerned about 1is
the timeframes and the lack of clarity will set up
Co-Permittees for failure, for noncompliance. We
don’t want that, you don’t want that. I think we
all want to be in compliance, we want to be
achieving the goals, I think we need tc make sure
the goals are realistic to be achieved in a
reasonable timeframe. I'm not saying kick the can
down the road to the fifth year ¢f the permit, but
we need to back cff. I think the one year is a

little bit aggressive, 1t depends on what’s going to
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be asked for in the one year. There’s a lot of
terminology in there, but it’'s not real clear as to
exactly what we’re going te need to make that
compliance.

And I don’t want this te be like we did
with, as the Chair mentioned, 1 think i? was a
reference to the Trash Management Plans, where we
got into it, we submitted something, and then at the
end of the day it was not the right thing, or just
to meet the timeline, And it wasn’t maybe the right
thing or there’s misunderstandings between staff and
the Co-Permittees, and maybe even the Board on what
was expected tce be included in that, what we were
trying to achieve, how were we supposed to prepare,
and what information was supposed to be in the plan.
And I think 1it’'s well-serving for us to take a
little bit of time between now and October to get
the right timeframes and the right clarity in the
permit on those two things.

As far as Green Infrastructure, I would
hope we could get to the point where the resclutions
that many c¢f the Cities have already adopted
supporting complete streets that have been submitted
te Metrepolitan Transportation Commission would be

the higher level buy-in that you're speaking of
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about the Electeds understanding complete streets
includes Green Infrastructure,. Many many of the
jurisdictions have passed those rescluticns in order
to receive MTC funding for their streets projects,
which would allow us to meet that cne-year timeframe
for Green Infrastructure very guickly by allowing
that to be an opportunity for compliance. And I
would ask that you maybe have staff see 1if that can
be worked into the permit as an option.

And I will touch cn PCBs one last time.
Lead asbestos pollutants are done by the Air Bgard.
I talked to our Building QOfficial in Cocncord and
that is how 1t’'s done. When somebody comes in to
get a permit for demolition, if it’s a building
within a certain timeframe, they go te the Air Board
website, they get the documentation, they pay fees,
so the Air Board gets their money to cover their
staffing, and there’s documents that are submitted
to the City with theilr demo permit that shows that
they have submitted their paperwork tc the Air Board
and then when they get a final inspection they
submit to the Air Board their compliance, the
manifest showing that it was all abated correctly,

and that is submitted for a final inspection to the

"City. So I think working with the Regional agency
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such as the Water Beoard in a similar fashion, as
what has been done with the Air Board, would be the
most success feor the lead asbestos, you know,
moedeling it after the lead asbhestos program to
include the PCB. Sc I ask vyvou for those
considerations and direction to staff te continue to
work with us on those.

CHAIRPERSON YCUNG: All right, thank you

very much. We’ll have Eric Anderson and then Mr.
Ovadia.

MR. ANDERSCN: IRV i)kl My name 1is Eric
Anderson. I werk for the City of Mountaln View.

I"d 1like to thank you for the opportunity to provide
comments. I'm focusing my cecmments today on
Provision C.12 of the permit, which reqguires
implementation of the PCB Contrecl Program.
Specifically, I would like to Jjust talk
about Mountain View. A significant porticen of the
old industrial area of Mountain View has either heen
redeveloped or is planned for redevelopment in the
near future, This reduces the potential opportunity
areas fcr PCB controls. Evaluating the City for PCB
control ocutside of the old industrial areas becomes
challenging due to the diffuse nature of the PCB

socurces nct asscclated with the old industrial land
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uses.

And our concern 1s that these source areas
may not even be able to be identified during the
permit term. We’re left with the feeling that we
don’t know what to do to comply with the numeric
load reduction criteria and we support a BMP-based
approach.

Identifying PCB control areas in the City
may reguire extensive and costly monitoring programs
and potentially minimal PCB reduction opportunities.
We would like to echo the suggestion for long term
planning to identify PCB sources and contrels and
coordinate better with the Green Infrastructure
Planning. We want our Green Infrastructure projects
to really be targeted to those poctential PCB control
areas.

With regard to the reguirement Provision
C.12.F, to develcp and implement a program to manage
PCB containing materials and waste during building
demolition, I"'d again like to support previous
speakers’ comments that we don’t feel this 1s a Bay
Area problem, and that it really is not the correct
avenue to put the burden on the Cities to develop
such a complicated control program. And the Cities

don’t really have the resources or the expertise to
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develop those types of preograms.

And really, reguiring Cities or County
Programs to develcp these programs we feel would
result in inconsistent implementation throughout the
Bay Area. Ard just to follow-up what other people
have said, we suggest initiation of a State or
Federal Program with a strong stakeholder process,
including the building industry and other
stakeholders. Thank you for your time,.

CHAIRPERSON YQUNG: Thank you. He talked

th

cg fast, I'm still writing. All right, I'm sorry i
I'm mispreonouncing your name, this is Mr. Ovadia,
and then we’ll have Kristen Pringle.

MR. OVADIA: You got it right. So thank
you. Thank vyou, Madam Chair, members of the Roard.
I do want tc echo a lot of the comments that were
made by the speakers before me, particularly with
regard -- sure, it’s Robert Ovadia, I'm the City
Engineer for the City of Concord. So I'd 1ike to
again echo the concerns raised by the speakers
before me, particularly regarding giving us a clear
path tc ccocmpliance,

There are a lot of things that are reguired
in this new proposed permit, but there 1is no clear

path tc compliance, and a lot of the comments alsco
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mentioned that a lot of the issues are beyond the
control of the local agencies. And so we do need
vour help in terms of helping us as a regioh comply
with the desired reductions in pollutants 1in our
stormwater. We all want to get there. But
providing us a clear path to compliance with the
appropriate level of support will help us get there.

Additionally, I wanted to talk about
timing. There are a lot of prescriptive timelines
here in the permit, some as short as three months
after adoption. And it’'s really unrealistic to
expect that the second that the permit gets adopted,
we're dropping everything that we’re docing to comply
with the reguirements of reporting.

Shortly after adoption, we have an annual
report that’s going to be due for the year, and we
would ask that those first reporting periods, which
I believe are listed as February lst, at least be
extended out to the annual report.

Secondarily, I’'d like to also echo the
timing on the development of the Green
Infrastructure Plan. It is goling to take us a while
as staff to develcop the framework, as well as push
it thrcocugh the apprepriate levels within our

organizaticns to get them approved as frameworks.
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Additionally, there’s a reguirement to begin
implementation by Year two, which we don’t have the
money currently programmed in our capital budgets.
As was mentioned before, typically there’s a longer
outlook with high priorities already established
within our community. As much as we would like to
start implementing these items, we need the time to
develop the plan, as well as find the resources to
implement. So with that, I'd say thank you.

CHAIRPERSON YOQUNG: All right, thank vyou.
All right, we have now Kirsten Pringle and we’ll
have Nancy Humphrey next.

MS., PRINGLE: Hi, my name is Kirsten
Pringle. I work for San Mateo County’s Qffice of
Sustainability. We are a new office, We’ ve been
tasked, among many other things, to do the
stormwater reporting and general oversight for
stormwater tasks in the Unincorporated Area of San
Mateo County.

I"11 let other people talk about Green
Infrastructure and PCBs, I'm here to talk about
something new, which is Section C.14 of the Permit,
which addresses the City of Pacifica and San Mateo
County Fecal Indicator Bacteria and Controls.

The County 1in collaboration with the City
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of Pacifica worked hard to discuss and address
comments from the Water Board, We met many times
with Water Bocard staff and we really appreciate the
many opportunities for comment and discussion that
we got toc have. And we had multiple iterations of
our TMDL Monitoring and BMP Plan. And because of
this, and we're really prcud of the final product,
we think the MRP should better reflect the plan that
we submitted and that was approved, and rather than
have specific reguirements in the permit itself, we
would like the permit to have references to the plan
that we created.

We also have concerns with Section C.14.A
of the plan which has reguirements for sewer line
maintenance and repair, Although the County is
definitely committed to maintaining and repairing
cur sewer lines, and we work closely with the City
of Pacifica in which our sewer lines discharge into,
we believe it 1s not appropriate to have sewer line
requirements in a steormwater permit,.

A large part of our regquirements for C.14
involves the microbial source tracking to
characterize the sources of bacteria in the San
Pedro Creek Watershed. Similar or ldentical studies

have been done in the past and during our
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discussions around the BMP and Monitoring Plan, most
of the results of these studies were largely
ignored. And so we would like to have assurances
that the monitoring or the characterization
monitoring that the County and the City of Pacifica
will be doing will be taken intoc account in future
evaluations of this watershed.

Finally, the County would like to
acknowledge that the reference study done to create
the TMBL for the San Pedro Creek Watershed was based
on a watershed with a much different ecology than
the San Pedro Creek Watershed, and this is what the
waste load allocations were based on. We would like
acknowledgement of just the great differences
between the two watersheds in the MRP Fact Sheet,

50 those are all my comments. Thank you so much for
your time, and thanks again tc the Water Board staff
for werking hard with us on both the plan and this
draft permit language.

CHATIRPERSCN YOUNG: All right, thank you
Ms. Pringle. We have now Nancy Humphrey and then
Lucille Paguette.

MS. PRINGLE: Hi. Goocd afternoon, Madam
Chair and the members of the Board and staff, thanks

for listening to our comments.
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I'm Nancy Humphrey from the éity of Oakland
~— ne, I'm not, I'm Nancy Humphrey from the City of
Emeryville! There’s a reason for that. The City of
Emeryville has been a leader in stormwater
management, stormwater poellution prevention for a
locng time, and it’s a value of the City and a value
of my group, the Planning, and the City Council, and
everybody. So again, like others have said, 1 don’t
object at all to moving forward on these things, but
I just want to do it in a way that we can accomplish
it, that it’'s accemplishable without putting us in a
position where we’re spending undue resources in the
wrong places.

I‘'m here to speak today about PCBs and
we’ll be required, Permittees and jurisdictions will
be required to reduce PCBs to certain levels that
are not stated yet, that are only alluded to, and
the process even to identify what those levels will
be hasn’t been determined. And anyoné who has done
a public process before knows they’re time
consuming. So I'm worried about that. I'’m worried
about being held to numerical limits that have not
been identified vet. And I don’t know whether the
process to identify them will be suitable. As

others have said, we need a clear path to compliance

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417

82



o

L

10

3

12

13

14

15

16

—
oo

19

20

22

23

24

25

on this and, as it stands, I don’t see cne.

In addition, as others have said, much of
the control cf PFCBs will be dependent on what
happens on private property, when and where. We
Can;t say hcow much mid-century building stock will
be demclished and when, that’s not ours to say. So
we can put contrecls in place, but we can’t promise
how much is going toc be done. So the timelines on
determining that and on being held accocuntable for

that are too short for us. Plus the data aren’t

Fh

really clear on what savings we can get from various
tyvpes of controls and actions.

And obviously, again, as Becky said,
failure to meet these reguirements opens us up to
potential lawsuits. We want to make progress, but

we don’t want to be subject to lawsuit for things

that were out of our control, c¢r that were

And last, I beg you to understand that the
reporting reguirements as they are, are really
burdensome, they’re very very time consuming, and I
really would ask you not to ask us to report on two
different permits in one reporting periocd, 1t’s
already probably six weeks of staff time, four to

six weeks to prepare the annual repocrt, it could be
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doukle 1f we were reporting on two, aéd we don’t
have that kind of time. Thank vyou.

CHATRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank vyou
very much. In just a minute we’'re going to have
Lucille Paguette, and then Lisa Austin, but I want
to ask a guestion of staff first.

We’ve been talking about demolition of
buildings and I just want to make sure that mny
assumptions are correct. The PCBs are released when
the buildings are demolished, right? Tf they are
still standing and still being maintained, then
we’'re not seeing a lot of PCBs being released. Is
that what’s going on? Nodding doesn’t get in the
record.

MS. OfHARA: I'm Jan O0’Hara with Planning
Division and T did take the ocath. We do see some
data that existing buildings can have some PCBs 1in
the immediate soil based on the data we have now, I
was Jjust loocking at that yesterday, but we think
that the actual demoliticon process 1is more
important.

CHAIRFERSON YOUNG: Okay, all right, thank
YO .

DR. MUMLEY: This is getting a little kit

into the weeds, but there is ancther pathway in thart
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scme demclition now results in recycling of building
materials, and they go through a recycling prccess,
where scme PCB containing materials could end up
being reused and potentially be exposed elsewhere.

CHAIRPERSCN YQUNG: All right. Thank vyou,
that helps us understand what’s gocing on with
everyone’s comments. Ms. Paguetlte and then Ms.
Austin.

MS. PAQUETTE: Thank vyou, I'd like to
reguest to push my card to Section C.8 when we talk
about C.8. Would that be all right?

CHAIRPERSON YOQUNG: Sure.

MS. PAQUETTE: Ckay, thank vyou.

CHATIRFERSON YOUNG: Then we’ll have Ms.
Austin and then Chris Sommers, please.

M5. AUSTIN: Okay, thank you, Madam Chair
and members of the Board. I'm going to speak to the

clear path tc compliance issu

[0}

and hcecpefully bring
some new ideas to the table.

MS. WH?TE: Cculd you please just restate
your name?

MS. AUSTIN: Oh, I'm sorry. Lisa Austin
with Geosyntech Ccocnsultants, and I'm here on behalf

of the Contra Cocsta Clean Water Program.

S0 staff has stated in meetings with
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Permittee, with BASMAA and Permittees, that they
believe the numeric performance criteria are needed
te encourage PCC Program implementation by the
programs, and we would counter that that’s really
not needed. As vyou heard the program staff and the
Permittees have been implementing programs over MRP
1.0.0 and proactively seeking ocut scurces and
implementing stuff for the last couple years. And I
think they have demonstrated a good faith effort to
kick start the scurce control programs.

So what we've requested 1s that you don't
adopt a permit that has a high likelihocd of
nocncempliance, not only a clear path to compliance,
we really don’t want to have a permit that has
numeric performance criteria that we don’t think we
could comply with, even if we had full
implementation of programs.

As an alternative, we’'ve requested that the
load reduction performance criteria not be a point
of compliance, instead they should ke expressed as
action levels -- similar to the way the numeric
targets are in the Industrial General Permit, it’s
an action level that the permit shculd include
contingency language, then, that would allow for

compliance of a good faith demonstration of solid
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efforts and actions by the Permittees,

consistent

when the permit reguirements fall short of achieving

the load reduction performance criteria,

after just
compliance
compliance

tc whether

especially

twoe years. As you noticed, there’'s a

point at twc years, and there’s a
point at four years, and we guestion as

that compliance check-in at two years 1is

really needed given all the reguirements and all the

planned development that has to go on in the first

year.

The second topic is that we would like to

request that the reguirement to submit a load

reduction accounting method early in the permit

term,
would like
that is,

that would

the permit.

accounting
parameters
staff, and
compliance

Sheet.

CHAIRPERSGON YOUNG:

very much.

as in April of 2014,

be omitted. Instead, we

to have the interim acceounting method,

the accounting method that you asked about,

determine the compliance, be written into

As staff has written

LU o T

the majority of an
method in, but there are some key
that need tc be worked cut still with

it would provide a much clearer path to

if those parameters were in the Fact

Thank you.

All right, thank you

We have Chris Sommers and then we are
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going to have a group of people who are talking
about Green Infrastructure primarily. Ch, and going
back to Green Infrastructure, we're going to hear
from Laura Hoffmeister again on that subject.

MR. SOMMERS: Ckay, I'm Chris Scmmers, a
Managing Scientist with the Santa Clara Valley Urban
Runoff Pclluticn Prevention Program. S50 I've been
involved -- I’'m going to talk a little bit abcut
PCBs, I'm going to try to summarize kind of what you
heard today with regard to PCBs and Mercury. I've
been involved with this for about 14 years now prior
to the TMDL development, through the TMDL
development, adoption of those TMDLs and all the way
through the first MRP.

You know, to echo really everybody, we do
appreciate staff’s work on this, it’s been a long
process. It’s been shorter than the last process on
the new MRP 1.0.0, it’s a very low bar to jump over.
You know, I think moving forward agencies really
need a permit that clearly recognizes the knowledge
that we’ve collectively gained over that timeframe,
and also acknowledges the uncertainties that really
remain, both with the TMDL itself, as well as how
we're going to collectively control these

contaminants over time. Secondly, we need a permit
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that continues to move Permittees in the right
positive directions, in feasible directions, and
really practical timeframes. You heard a lot about
timeframes today. And then lastly, and this will
probably be the last time you hear it, they really
do need a clear path to achieving compliance with
whatever the permit says at the end of the day. We
think that we’ve given an alternative approach, as
Lisa mentioned before me, that accomplishes all of
these objectives, these goals for this permit and,
importantly, has the same water guality benefit at
the end of the day. We’ve given that framework and
we really urge you to direct your staff to
reconsider that framework when considering the
written comments and the oral testimony. And we
really are concerned that i1f they don’t do so, we're
going to bhe here, you know, three, four vyears from
now gaying we’ve done everything we can to deal with
this 1issue, but we’re not achieving that number.
And we’re really concerned that not only the
enforcement possibilities on behalf of staff and
you, but also there are always the third-party
lawsuit issues that are out there that we’re also

concerned about. So best intentions, may not reach

it, is some clear path to compliance to make sure
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that the agencies doing good work aren’t held kind
of under the compliance issues and enforcement
associated with that, even thocugh they’re doing the
good work that they can do. Thanks.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right. Thank you
very much. We are now going to switch gears, as 1L
mentioned --

MR. LEFKOVITS: First can I'ask a guestion?

CHATIRPERSON YOUNG: Yes.

MR. LEFKOVITS: Since I'm still new to PCB,
can you just kind of help me understand how PCBs 1in
building materials are collected and removed in the
construction process? Is there only one way? Or --

M5. O"HARA: No, I think there’s a few
ways. There are examples within the State of
California where, say, larger projects have gone in
and tested and then removed all the PCBs before they
deme the building, and they weligh out that coption
thinking that will be the cheaper way, they’1ll have
less to send to a Class 3, 27 17 I forget the
numbers —- at the hazardous waste landfill in
Nevada, and the rest of the materials can then go to
the demc waste facilities.

Another option is to assume that they have

PCRBs 1in certain materials and then segregate those
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materials and send those to Nevada tec the hazardous
waste landfill. There’s a few opticns.

MR. LEFKOVITS: And in a 10-story building,
how much PCB can be extracted, or might be in there?

MS. O HARA: Well, the interesting thing
about PCBs in caulk is that the caulk can be a
certain percentage of PCBs, it’s like hundreds of
thousands of parts per million. We see 263,000 ppm
in caulk. So a little bit can be put into the
environment and it could be a large load reduction
relative to what they need to achieve.

MR. BOWYER: Generally this is material
used in seams in the building, the caulk, so the
molisture can’t move in from the exterior. So it
would be a one-inch wide bead of material that you
see all over the place in cracks in the sidewalks
and in seams in the walls of buildings, and sc you’d
have to physically scrape that out with a sharp tool
and that would be the means of removal.

MR, LEFKOVITS: Thank vyou.

DR. MUMLEY: I'’d also point cut the studies
that we’ve done with the municipalities to date,
that indicate an average, a mid-range cf PCBs of

five kilograms per builaing, so with an aggregate

estimate of maybe 10,000 --

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417

91



I

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

{) -
DR. AJAMI: Per cone-story guilding?

DR. MUMLEY: For a building, midrange of
the buildings and we’re talking mainly - two to
four? Two to four stories, something like that.
Yeah, Richard is pointing ocut, Jjust fyi for your
future reading page, A104 is a description of what
we know about PCBs in buildings, a couple summary
paragraphs.

MR. LEFKOVITS: Thank you.

DR. MUMLEY: That should give vyvou some of
the hasic facts.

CHAIRPERSON YCUNG: Nco, actually there’s a
typo on page -- no, I'm just kidding. 11 right,
we’ll hear from Ms. Hoffmeister on this subject, and
then have Ian Wren who is cur first non-Discharger
person come up and talk.

M3S. HOFFMEISTER: Good afternoon again,
Chair and members of the Board. I'm now wearing the
hat as the City of Clayton Stormwater Program
Manager. I wanted to Jjust touch on one thing on the
FCBs while you Jjust mentioned it. One of the
difficulties in the assessment ¢f what we have out
there in the community, in & lot c¢f ocur communities,
as was mentioned, 1950's to 1980's, if you go into

any one of the City Departments, you ask for their

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417

92



(-t

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Building Permit data, a lot of them don’t have data
in a computer database that will tell you how old
the buiiding is at a particular address. A lot of
this is going to take field work and field research
and talking to pecple in the community to find out
what age is this particular building, does it fall
into that category that we would put on a list, that
we would be able to do as part of the plan? So
that’s another reason fcor the timeframe.

But I did want to talk about a couple
things under Green Infrastructure that I don’t think
are in the permit, or it’s not clear in the permit.
For the City of Clayton, the smallest community in
Contra Costa, and probably one of the smallest ones
in the entire Bay Area, we are completely built out.
We are not planning for redoing any streets, curbs,
gutters, sidewalks. All of the new development,
we’ve got one new one that will be coming in, the
first one in about eight years, and it will comply
with all the C.3 stuff, it’s not a re-do, 1t’s
virgin land, and it will be built.

But in terms of redo of your community
where Green Infrastructure is being talked about,
redevelopment, not new development, where 1is there

the cpportunity for us to get an exception or to
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have some sort ¢f carve-out, or to have some sort cf
option of compliance without having to go through
and do a whole generation of plan, or how do I
document to you, that we’re not going to be doing
anything new over the next 20-40 years in town? I
don’t know, it’s not in the permit. And I think
there’s some additiocnal work that needs toc be done
to identify that because the way it’s structured
right now, I’d have to do a plan on stuff that I
would be saying basically, we have no plan to do any
changes. T’d submit it to the staff and they’d say,
“N¢, that’s not a plan, you need to put together a
plan.” Well, my plan is we’re not going to be doing
anything. And we’ll go back and forth on this. So
I think there’s more work, again, for clarity to
make sure that we meet the expectations of what the
Board 1s trying to achieve, and that we are found 1in
compliance and not by default noncompliance because
we didn’t get it right to the staff. And there’s
not this one-size-fits-all for the communities,

And then the other item I wanted to talk
about briefly was grandfathering under C.3.J, I
believe it is, I may have that wrong, but we do have
a concern about entitlement processes that have been

already completed or in the process. We have a
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vesting tentative map process that’s in place right
now. The Draft EIR has been completed, the public
comments have been received, and this is the project
I was talking about. They used the
Hydromodification Plan that’s in MPR 1.0. We’'re in
this transition now with some possibkle changes for
Contra Costa in the Hydromodification Plan under MRP
2.0.0, and this EIR will not get to the final Public
Hearing stages until probably a vear from now. Do I
need to have the deveioper go back and completely
reengade the consultants, spend ancther 510,000 or
more To redo all the work, to re-notice this to the
community, have them have another opportunity to
come back and comment ¢n a new draft EIR? So
there’s scome work that still needs to be done, I
think, in this MRP 2.0.0. And I711 put in one last
plug. We're in MRP 2.0.0, I think this was great
ional collaborative method; 1.0 was

doin this re

U
ug

cur first attempt intec this, I would suggest that,
as we try to economize and be more efficient on both
sides as we go forward in the future, I would ask
that you have staff look into creating some sort of
online database that we can actually type our annual
reports intc a computer program that’s on the State

Database, like I dc¢ with the trash management plan
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for the Waste Board, like I do for the gas tax for
the State Controller’s Cffice, like I do for all the
other State agencies. This is the only agency where
we have to submit it and then it’s resubmitted, and
then it’s posted in PDF. I think there’s great
computer technology out there that 1f you hosted the
template and we logged in and did curs, the staff
could also check to see how each City is doing as
they work on them over time, and get them in by the
deadline, and that would be a lot mcre efficient and
effective. So hopefully vou would take that under
consideration and see maybe before toco long in the
MRP 2.0.0 annual report process we could be more
efficient at getting the information into the Water
Bocard. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right. Thank ycu
very much. We’”ll now have Ian Wren followed by
Maurice Kaufman, please.

MR. WREN: Good afterncon. My name is Ian
Wren with San Francisco Baykeeper, and I would like
to focus on the C.3.J provision. We applaud the
Regional Board for proposing a proactive approach to
implementing Green Infrastructure into the existing
urban landscape. Retrofitting the existing storm

sewer system with Green Infrastructure 1is like the
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most powerful tool for reducing loads and dampening
peak flows to sensitive creeks in the region. Green
Infrastructure zlso likely represents the most cost-
effective implementation of the Clean Water Act’s
maximum extent practicable standard.

We ask though, consistent with a lot of the
comments heard tcday that the Board require more
specificity and clarity from this provision. The
current language reguires Cities to develop a
framework for development of Green Infrastructure
Plans. Such a big language in the absence of
specific reguirements is likely to result in
extensive process and development of reams of
additional annual reporting documentatiocn.

More specificity will help achieve the
clear compliance pathway Permittees have requested

repeatedly here already. For example, with the

[

argeted siting of Green Infrastructure, numeric
volumetric standards, and influent-effluent
monitoring at Green Infrastructure facilities, such
a provision could serve as a partial proxy for
numeric<c PCB load reductions.

We request that, at a minimum, a sample

framework he developed by staff with metrics for

implementation, particularly where receliving waters
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are listed as impaired for runoff-related

pollutants.

Finally, based on initial review of the
Draft Permit, T was gquite surprised by the general
lack of clear requirements and the continuation of a
pattern that effectively judges compliance based on
the volume ¢f documentation submitted each year. We
have seen around the state a trend in M34 permits
whereby an exchange for perceived cooperation by the
Permittees, Regional Boards adopt very vague permits
and require an abundance of reports for review by
staff that simply do not exist. Permittees
literally submit tens c¢f thousands c¢f pages of
repoerts each yvear and staff cannot be expected to
intelligently review all of this.

In summary, we hope the Board reguires
clear requirements and streamlined reporting to
facilitate adequate review and enforcement where
needed. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Al right, Newsha, did
yvou want Lo make a statement?

DR. AJAMT: I actually wanted to sort of
follow-up to the previous speaker who menticned
about the City that they are not, yeah, Ms,

Hoffmeister. And the fact that some of these Cities
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have been already developed and they’re not growing
or develcping anymore. And I think Ian also
mentioned something right after about the whole
clear specification of what it means for them to
implement Green Infrastructure. I wonder like, you
know, are we Jjust locking at future development, or
also we are looking at like maintenance that happens
within the existing cities, and maybe that can also
include sort of reimagining what already exists.
Does that make sense?

MR. BOWYER: Nothing lasts forever, so the
urban infrastructure will fail eventually.

DR. AJAMI: Right.

MR. BOWYER: And when it’s rebuilt, we want
it to be rebuilt -- I'm sorry, Dale Bowyer with the
Water Beoard, I did use the cath -- so this is a
retrofit requirement.

DR. AJBMI: Right.

MR. BOWYER: So cobviously we’re asking
municipalities to look for the low hanging fruit,
the cppcocrtunities. And of course that is when
infrastructure wears out and is replaced, that’s the
ideal opportunity. So that’s what we’re asking
folks to include in their planning is that when you

do rebuild, rebuilt it including stormwater quality
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as part of the dimension of how you:re rebuilding.

DR. AJAMI: And that was my sort of
impression and I was really surprised to hear that
you imagine a city would not need to --

MS., HOFFMEISTER: Let me be clear for the
record. We will not need - 1970’s 1is the oldest
street, oldest curb, gutter, sidewalk in town, most
of them were done in the 19%90's, soc we’re talking 40
or 50 years down the road from now, and we’re going
to spend money today toc create a Green
Infrastructure Plan for, I don’t know what it’s
going to look like 40 or 50 years down the road, and
we don’t have the money to do it, and the streets
are completely built out, we’re not doing anything
with them.

DR. AJAMI: So you think your streets would
last &5 years?

MS., HOFFMEISTER: Forty toe 00 years. We
resurfaced the street, but we’re not rebuilding the
streets, we're not tearing them ocut, we’re not
putting in new curb gutter and sidewalk, they’re all
fairly brand new, they last 40 to 50 years.

DR. AJAMI: But even resurfacing the
streets can be part of your --

MS., HOFFMEISTER: Ne, no. No.
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DR. AJAMI: No? Ckay, I'm sorry, okay. I
thought --

MS5. HOFFMEISTER: That’s different.

CHAIRPERSCN YQUNG: This 1s an interesting
issue which the staff and Permittees can pursue.
And thank you for waking us all up, Newsha, that was
very nice, You know, that’s why we’'re here is to
clarify things. Mr. Kaufman fcilowed by Jason
Rcgers, please.

MR. KAUFMAN: Hello, my name is Maurice
Kaufman. I'm the Public Works Director for the City
of Emeryville, alsc City Engineer, and I thank you
for letting me speak today. Emeryville, as vou may
know, has really changed over the last 30 years.
We’ve redeveloped the entire city. We’ ve been very
progressive with implementing stormwater treatment
requirements per MRP 1.0, but I'm very concerned
about MRP 2.0 and the implications that we’ll have
to be involved with, and in particular there’s a lot
of requirements in here that are really not clear.
The PCBs for one, and I did a lot of what everybody
has been saying here. Reporting. We’re a very
small city. It takes a lot of staff effort to try

to keep up with all the regulations fhe Regicnal

Board has. We’ve got the sanitary sewer 1ssues that
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we’ve got to comply with, now we’ve got the MRP 2.0
requirements, all the reporting involved with all
these, it’s very burdensome. We are planning on
keeping up with it, but I’d like te say that if you
could extend some of these timelines and be more
clear in the reqguirements in the permit, it would be
very helpful for all.

And with respect toc malntenance of streets,
we’'re doing -- we have a street rehab program that
we do, a lot of maintenance trying to keep the
streets in good shape, but we also have projects
where we’'re redeveloping and building new streets.
On those streets, we do plan on doing C.3
implementation. We’re working with developers to
make sure that they’re building their private
developments the way they’re supposed to, as well as
the new streets are going to involve stormwater
measures. But to design those streets to treat the
private property runoff is scmething that I believe
was called for in this new permit, that’s going to
be very difficult for a built-out city. So if you
could keep those in mind. The other thing as far as
PCB loading, if you put a loading in there that'’'s
not achievable, I believe there’s anti-backsliding

requirements, so you can’t actually take it out once
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it’s in a permit. And so it really subjects the
Permittees to NGOs and the lawsuits out there, so if
you can keep that in mind as you approve this, T'd
really appreciate it. Thank you.

CHAIRPFERSON YQUNG: All right, thank you
very much. We have Jason Rogers and then Kathy Cote
or Shannon Young. There’s an option here, whichever
one you choose.

MR. ROGERS: Jason Rogers, Planning Manager
and CEQA Manager for the City of San Jose, and I
Just want to say thank you for allowing me to
participate in this very thought out discussion. I
think obviously with MRP 2.0 going forward, that’s a
positive path, but there are definitely some issues
that we as a very complex, unigue, and large city
are seelng with respect to the permit as it is
drafted, specifically with the Green Infrastructure
Plan. In concept, 1t's a great idea, but I think
when thinking about how to develop a framework, how
to be able to implement it, there’s a lot of things
that still needs to be fleshed out.

Just to kind of give scale, the City of San
Jose has about approximately 5,100 acres of
impervious surface. Over the last five years, the

City has been very diligent in trying to retrofit
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the impervious surface with C3, and we accomplished
that with only hitting one percent, and that’s about
498 acres of our impervious surface. So even with
how the permit has it drafted that we have to
identify certain thresholds, certain measures,
certain amounts by certain years as targets, on the
scale and the size of a municipality or Permittee,
it becomes difficult to be able to figure out that
path of compliance.

Also in the concept and the scheme of this,
the permit also has it drafted such that plans and
documents that are related to planning, specific
plans, massive transportation plans, other plans
that are associated should be updated. There’ s no
clarity as to what documents need to be updated.

The City 1is very progressive in the sense that over
the next 20 years, over the next actually just 10
years to put it in a gqualitative standpoint, we're
locking at updating approximately -- creating 20 new
plans associated with our General Plan to get to
this vision that we’ve created for ourselves. ¥e)
that would mean really looking at all the resources,
the extensive reach-out, and thinking about how this
Green Infrastructure Plan ties into that.

I think one of the other big significant
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things that we also have taken concern with is
C.3.B.I. This is the grandfathering clause. When
thinking about it from the Water Board’s issues and
how tryving to get projects or get land that’s
already been approved up te today’s standards,
however, we as a city lack the land use authority to
be able to acquire development that’s already
received this discretionary permit, that received
its administrative permit, to come back through ocur
process, and then it gets back into whether or not
the Water Board actually has the authority to
challenge vested rights. S0 there needs to be some
clarity as to when that actually is applicable in
standards.

I would also think about the C.3.E.2, the:
gross density definition as how you have it. Right
now most Jjurisdictions probably look at using net
density because we don’t calculate an actual site’s
development capacity based on roadways, parkland,
and other public amenities, so what we’re really
trying to do in this area -- thank you.

CHAIRPERSON YOQUNG: You may finish vyour
sentence.

MR. ROGERS: I appreciate that.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: But we appreciate your
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attitude.

MR. ROGERS: To complete tThe thought, most
in the development community, most who are in
planning are using net density because we do factor
out roadways, we do factor ocut open space, we do
factor out other public amenities, sideways and so
forth. So when we’re really trying to create this
infill, high density environment that’s going to
meet the needs, that’s really been laid cut to us,
just not through our local jurisdictions, City
Council, Mayors, Board of Superviscrs, but also
though ABAG, what we’re really doing 1s now
hampering the actual opportunity to be able to
provide for those developments, be able to provide
for those guality developments that are willing to
meet the necessary demands alsc laid cut in this
permit. So .we need to think critically about how we
look at definitions, how we think about how we bring
forward vested rights, and how we think about the
Green Infrastructure Plan.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: 2ll right, thank yocu
very much.

DR. MUMLEY: Chair Young? I think this is
a good time just to explain one of the issues that's

been raised, I mean, others may raise it as well.
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It was the comment regarding the sun setting of the
grandfathering as a kind of -- because we are saying
in the proposed permit that older projects are no
longer exempted from the new treatment requirements.
But we’ve asked, we’'ve said to Permittees we
recegnize that this may have some legal
implications, so please tell us if they exist, we
can be responsive, We’ve only gotten general
statements to date, so again it would be helpful if,
not verbally, but in writing that we can get the
actual projects so that we do not have a permit that
requires them to do something they cannot do, but we
think there are projects where there is opportunity
to change the designs for one reason or another,
that they’re not bound by some legal reason. And
that’s what we’re asking. If they’'re not bound
legally, then we would ask them to pursue low impact
development treatment, If they are, then they are
bound legally, and obvicusly we can’t require them
to do what they can’'t do. So we just want some
clarification on their part so that we can clarify
in the permit what will or what won’t be exempted.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: A1l right. S0 we need
help making the language match our intention.

DR. MUMLEY : Correct.
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CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: By gettiég additional
information on specifics.

DR. MUMLEY: We alsc assume there’s not a
large number of these, you know, following either
bin, so it hopefully would not be a major effort to
clarify which projects are subject to this
constraint.

CHATRPERSON YOUNG: Okay.

MS., YOUNG: I'm actually Shannon Young.

CEAIRPERSON YOUNG: We have now Shannon
Young, thank vyou. And then we’ll go to Roger Lee,
please.

MS. YOUNG: I'm from the City of Fremont
and I'm here, my manager, Kathy Cote, we weren’'t
sure about the timing, so she had to leave for
another meeting. So I'm speaking on her behalf.

I first want to start off by saying thank

you to the Water Board staff for a couple items that

were an improvement from our perspective, from MRP
1.0, and 1in particular we're happy to see the

eliminaticn of the screening points from Provision

C.5 that we feel was a big use of staff time and for

very little water guality benefit.

!

And the other piece that we’re also happy

to see 1s the retention of the 10,000 sguare foot
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threshold in provision C.3. I know this Green
Infrastructure Plan is in lieu of lowering the
threshold to 5,000 sgquare feet, but we are happy
because we think that the decrease in impervious
surface threshold would have greatly increased staff
time for, again, very little water guality benefit.

The other thing that I would like to say is
that, of course, Fremont concurs with much, okay,
everything that has been said here today, and so the
two pleces that I want to talk to teday again are
the timelines, and also the annual reporting. And
I”"1l1l mention that piece first. I concur with the
speaker, I think it was from Emeryville, who said
that having to report on two different permits and
one annual repcrt, it’s a nightmare. S0 I guess
depending upon when implementation and when we have
to report, it may be, you know, hopefully the second
vear in that we’re reporting on MRP 2.0, so we don’t
have that problem that we did with MRP 1.0

Regarding the timeframe, people have
mentioned it multiple times and I’'m going to mention
it just cne more time with the framework. We won'’t
be able to take that to a higher body, City Council,

without having details worked out. We won’'’t be able

te get the buy-in unless they understand the
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resources that are needed and the finances that are
needed to implement those plans, so even sort of on
a conceptual plan, we can’'t really go to Council
with a conceptual plan, we need to be able to know
what these items are going to ke and that will be
like a two-year process, more likely than one year.

And then, again, another gentleman
mentioned the first implementation timeline of two
years in, so we had two years, seven years, and then
everywhere after that, that two years 1s going to be
really hard to hit, particularly 1f we consider that
a two-year timeline for submitting the framework is
actually more realistic, having to start
implementing the program in two years 1s golng to be
rough. Of course, we will be continuing the ongoing
C.3 regulated projects which also include sometimes
retrofitting of existing streets and rocads, but that
Green Infrastructure implementation 1is going to be
rough to meet in two years. So thank vyou.

CHAIRPERSON YQOUNG: All right, thank you
very much. We have now Roger Lee followed by Elaine
Marshall, please.

MR. LEE: All right, good afternocon, Madam
Chair, membkers of the Board. Thank vyou. So it's

always good to start off these things with
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positives, everything T1’ve heard here today
underlines how much we do care about the

-

environment, I’'ve yet to hear an excuse to
shortchange that. Also, confident staff and a lot
of very intelligent people have worked on these
issues over the time. I'"ve been involved with the
stormwater program here --

MS. WHYTE: Excuse me, could you please
state your name and affiliation?

MR. LEE: I apologize, yeah, I'm Roger Lee,
I'm the Assistant Directer of Public Works for the
City of Cupertino. About 15 years I've been
involved in the stormwater program, and I’ve been
proud of that. I’m talking specifically about the
Green Infrastructure element of the permit and how
it’s just not practical in terms of the time and
that a lot of people have spoken about that.

You know, imagine each city, each 76 Co-
Permittees, creating some very specific standard
drawings and specifications for Green
Infrastructure, having general guidelines for that
purpose, having project designs, amending their
plans, General Plans, transportation plans, for

green infrastructure, And we talked before, streets

are long life, 40 to 50 to 60 vyears, and to try to
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de scmething like that in one year, 76 times, not
having that ccnsistency 1s not quite efficient.

More time shculd be spent on getting very cohesive
plan among all the Cc-Fermittees. I have no doubt
that there's going to be commonalities, that we can
get direction and truly kneow what the intent of the
Board is as to what is green infrastructure, that we
could all share among cur 76 agencies sc¢ that, as we
put tocgether theose very specific things that have
long lives, that we do it in the right direction the
first time. These are long lived assets that have
very finite amount of rescurces that are availing
them. And in the end it talks about our credibility
with cur Councils because 1f we are saying that
these are things that are reguired, and we're
recommending, saying that the Becard is telling us to
do this, staff has told us to deo this, and we make
these financial contributions for which every one of
them has an opportunity cost, “If I dec this, I decn’t
do something else.” And as time goes by and we find
out what those commonalities are, and what we really
should be doing, and what pollutants ¢f concern are

really the most important, that’s where we need to

LW L o

-

spend those resources at. therwise, we will have

already built it. Those assets are gone, they're
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So I'd like you to think about that. And
also, some of the constraints that we have in
building and the public right of way. We had
challenges in C.3 about space and cost, well, that’s
life, right? In the street, these are dedicated
right of ways. We have utilities above, we have
utilities belcw, we have people who are driving,
cycling, and walking. These are passionate users of
those tacilities. There’s not a lot of space. But
again, let’s loock at those commeonalities sc we do
things right. Give us the five-year permit term to
find those commonalities before we start making
these long term commitments to these finite
resources, Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON YOQUNG: All right, thank you
very much. We have Elaine Marshall followed by
Michael Rhodes,

MS. MARSHALL: Good afternoon, Chair Young
and members of the Board. My name is Elaine
Marshall, I'm an Environmental Programs Manager with
the City of Sunnyvale, I wanted to take a couple cf
moments today to talk about some of our priocrity

concerns with the New and Redevelopment Provision of

the Permit, specifically the Green Infrastructure
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Planning, as well as the grandfathering provision
that we Jjust discussed.

We recognize that Green Infrastructure
Master Planning is a game changer for us and for all
the Permittees under the permit, and we appreciate
the opportunity that the Tentative Order provides us
to take a broader and an integrated view to align
Green Infrastructure goals and objectives with other
citywide plans and policies. As envisiocned under
the Tentative Order, the level of effort and the
resources that will be required to carry this out
effectively and successfully is significant, and the
timeframes stipulated in the Tentative Order are
aggressive.

At the same time, we alsc recognize that
implementation funding 1s uncertain. Under MRP 1.0,
multiple Green Street procjects were grant funded,
and we recognize that grant funding cpportunities in
the future are limited and in some cases
diminishing. Sunnyvale recently developed and
submitted a green street proposal in response to the
Bay Area’s call for projects for the next round of
Prop. 84 funding, we were not selected for inclusion
in that grant application package, in fact, there

were no Green Infrastructure projects included in
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that portfolio. So I just wanted to highlight that
these challenges will continue going forward.

And as tc the grandfathering provision, I
do recognize what Tom had clarified earlier, and we
lock forward to working with staff. We have been
talking with our Community Development Department
and we know that we do have a handful of these
pipeline proiects that have been approved, have
entitlements for development. These include
multiphase projects where the entitliements and the
approvals have already been in place and
construction has already started on parts of the
project and future phases have already been
entitled. S50 we also know that we have another
project that has been tied in vyears of legal
gridlock.

So we do loock forward to working with staff
on creating a mechanism fcor ensuring that we remain
in cempliance and within our legal realm in terms of
being able to work with these projects that have
already been approved. So thank you for your time.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank vyou.
Just so everybody knows what we’re doing, we're
going to keep going until about 3:30 and then take a

very very short break, and then we will come back
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and keep going.

All right, we have Michael ERhodes and then
Sharon Newton, please.

MR. RHODES: Thank you, Madam Chair and
Board Members. My name is Michael Rhodes. I'm the
Program Manager of the County of Santa Clara’s Clean
Water Program, representing Unincorporated Santa
Clara County, and I‘d like to provide you a
perspective on the Green Infrastructure reguirements
from a smaller Permittee in that we control a lot of
land area, but have a very little amount of urban
development within that land area.

As such, we lack redevelopment opportunity
areas, our private development projects would make a
significant contribution towards Green
Infrastructure retrofit totals. The infrastructure
that the County itself manages such as rural parks,
hillside residential areas, and freeway-like
expressways, really don't provide us rich
opportunities to implement Green Infrastructure
retrofit projects. And as such, those that would
address Mercury and PCB reductions really don’t
exist as opportunities for us.

And so we're deeply concerned about what

our obligation would be towards meeting the assumed
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Green Infrastructure project proportionality that
the Tentative Order suggests in its accounting
scheme.

We do see opportunities in integrating the
Green Infrastructure objectives intoc our various
leng range capital plans and sustainability
programs, but any retrofit projects undertaken by
thoese programs would be undertaken by the County
itself, rather than private development, And as
such, the pace at which those projects would be
implemented and the range of projects that we could
feasibly implement would be far different than that
of other Permittees.

And so in summary, we would urge the Board
staff and the Board itself to recognize that there
will be diversity in the rate and range of projects
that can be implemented under the Green
Infrastructure requirements. Thank you for your
consideration.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Very good. Thank vyou.
We have Sharon Newton followed by Vaikko Allen.

MS. NEWTON: Good afterncon, Madam Chair
and members of the Board. My name is Sharon NewlLon.
I am the Stormwater Program Manager for the City of

San Jose. And my comments are specifically focused
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on the funding and lead timing considerations that

are necessary when developing and implementing Green

Infrastructure projects.

Funding will be a key consideration as we
make plans to incorporate Green Infrastructure in
the City of San Jose; in fact, funding will be and
actually already has been a limiting factor
associated with Green Infrastructure projects. The
City currently has four green infrastructure
projects at various stages of implementation. All
four of these projects have been opportunistic. We
were only able to pursue their implementation
because the City was able to obtain over $5 million
in Proposition 84 grant funds. Without this grant
funding, these Green Street projects would not

happen. Even with the grant funding, the City has

had to commit an additicnal $1.5 millicon in matching

funds for just these four projects. Even for a city

of our size, this is a significant investment.

While grant funding may support the cost of

constructing these Green Infrastructure procjects,

they do not help with the cost of ongoing operations

and maintenance. Cities such as ours must identify
funding to cover O&M expenses, and these costs are

not always highlighted in our discussions when we
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talk about Green Infrastructure projects, but they
can represent a significant additional demand on
already limited maintenance resources,

The City of San Jose currently faces a $646
million backlog in transportation infrastructure
maintenance. The addition of Green Infrastructure
in the public right of way and on city-owned
properties will create a new maintenance demand that
will only increase the existing backlog unless
additicnal funding can be identified.

The current Tentative Order references
early implementation of Green Infrastructure
projects to ensure no missed opportunities.
Certainly, adequate funding will be a limiting
criteria in assessing these opportunities and an
important criteria in developing and implementing a
Green Infrastructure Plan.

Finally, T want to make a point regarding
the lead time for implementing Green Infrastructure
projects. The City applied for grant funding for
its first set of Green Infrastructure demonstration
projects about three years ago, and construction on
our first project just began in April, so very
recently. I make this point just to emphasize that

there is a significant lead time for implementing
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Green Infrastjucture projects. Scme of these delays
are foreseen and just part of the process, but
others occur for reasons that are often impossible
to anticipate. So we ask the Water Board to take
these factors into consideration as Green
Infrastructure reguirements for the MRP 2.0 are
finalized. In particular, we reguest that the Water
Becard consider extending the timeframe for Green
Infrastructure Plan development. Thank you fcr this
opportunity to comment.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: A1l right, thank vou.
Mr. Allen and then Andrew Russell, please.

MR. ALLEN: Good afterncon. My name 1s
Vaikko Allen, Regulatory Director for Contech. I"11
try to make three points in three minutes and
without further ado, here we go. The first two are
focused on Secticns C.3.C, the Low Impact
Development section.

The current permit reguires that
infiltration or rainbow tc harvesting, basically,
retention BMPs be considered prior to allowing
biofiltration BMPs to be used in recogniticn of the
fact that systems that have no discharge are more
effective than systems that doc have a discharge when

it comes to pollutant load reduction. This is
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consistent with other permits in the state, large
Phase 1 permits, especially throughout all of
Scuthern California.

The proposed draft puts biofiltration on
par with retention BMPs, and there’s a little bit of
justification, but T would suggest that you go back
and take a close look at that to make sure that
really is warranted for the full range of pollutants
of concern that we know are present in stormwater,
including metals, nutrients, bacteria, and those
sorts of pollutants. That's pcint 1.

Number 2, again on the LID section, the
section that covers bio-filtration design is very
prescriptive, it gives five inches per hour as a
soil infiltraticon rate, and refers toc a standard
from the previous permit regarding the bio-soil
composition. These are decent standards, they're
thou

i i1 o)

very prescriptaive

gh, and there is no
performance objective that is stated anywhere in the
permit that these standards are directed to meet, or
intended to meet.

What I would love to see instead is a
performance standard that we can innovate around to

try to create better BMPs that are perhaps more

affordable as we’ve heard today that cost 1is
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definitely a consideration. At a bare minimum, what
I would like to see in this permit 1is that where
those prescriptive design reguirements are included,
there also be an allowance for the Regional Board to
approve alternative designs that provide the same or
better load reduction. That allows innovation to
occur and, frankly, it’s not happening here and the
reason 1is because we dcon’t have that allcwance in
the prior permit.

Last point is in a different section, that
section C.3.E, the Alternative Compliance Section.
I just wanted to point out that it is possible if
you’' re pursuing the alternative compliance path to
do offsite treatment in the watershed, and vou
potentially have up to five years for that other
project to come online and be treating water from
the time that your project 1s completed. And that
other preocject may also be treating water, probably
will be treating water, from a different part of the
watershed. What that leaves 1s the possibility for
runoff freom your site, from the site in gquestion, to
be untreated and be discharged from the site really
forever.

T think that there needs to be a baseline

performance standard implemented for site runoff

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417

122



10

11

13

14

15

16

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

even when alternative compliance is -- almost made
it. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSCON YOUNG: All right. Thank you
very much. We have Andrew Russell and then Dan
Cloak, please.

MR. RUSSELL: Heonocrable Chair and Roard
Members, I1’'’m Andrew Russell, System Public Works
Director and City Engineer for the City of Dublin.
I was also a member of the MRP 2.0 Steering
Committee and I appreciated the opportunity to 'work
with staff since July 2013 on this project. I alsc
appreciated the collaborative effort and approach
taken by Water Board staff, BASMAA staff, and the
member agenclies on several components of the MRP.

That said, City of Dublin has scme concerns
with the Draft MRP, namely Green Infrastructure.
I'"m aiso going to hit on PCRBs one more time and the
annual reporting.

Regarding Green Infrastructure, the timing
to develop the framework, as you heard from others,
is really infeasible for the City of Dublin. The
Draft MRP gives Cities only 12 months to develop a
framework and then have it approved by their
Council. We feel this i1s noct enough time to have a

comprehensive plan or comprehensive framework that
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sets the pricrities for a 10-year horizon.
Alsce, there is a lack of directicon and
information for development of a Green

Infrastructure Plan. There are noc guidelines or

reference plans we can use to develop Dublin’s plan.

We are concerned that we will expend cur limited
rescurces on the develcopment of such a plan, which
will then be rejected by Water Board staff as being
inadequate, similar to our experience on the short
term Trash Reducticon Plans in MRP 1.0.

Dublin is concerned about the practicality
of implementing the Green Infrastructure
requirements, the development of the Green
Infrastructure Plan, and the construction of
projects will be very costly. The City of Dublin
does not have the staffing resources or technical

expertise to develop the plan, therefore we will

need to hire a consultant to help us with this task.

Finally, Dublin is not convinced c¢f the
water guality benefits that will be achieved from
the Creen Infrastructure Plan and the tile to the
TMDLs. The cost benefit ratio for scome GI projects
will simply be too high to justify project planning
SICEA-NECITICE N =t T nl=h i el el i N el i Again, the water

quality benefits are completely undemonstrated at
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this pcint.

Regarding PCB load reduction, Dublin is
concerned that the permit includes default language
that would assigned the specific load fractions
based upon the County populations within each City.
We feel this approach is flawed. The City of Dublin
has a relatively high population, however, we have
very little old industrial and old urban areas. The
majority of Dublin has been developed over the past
10 to 15 years and using the default apprcach would
result in Dublin’s reguirement of having a high
factor tc achiewve, but we have no PCB sources in
order to achieve those gcals. Again, how do we
comply?

And finally, for annual reporting, Dublin
requests as others have that, regardless of when MRP
2.0 i1s adopted, additicnal reporting requirements
not be split between two different permits. Annual
reporting is extremely time consuming now and it
would be even more onerous 1f we were to report on
two separate permits. And I will direct staff to
the Subdivision Map Act with respect to development
agreements and vesting rights. The fact that
through the econcmic downturn the state has extended

vesting rights for subdivision maps, and so I would
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just ask staff to take a look at those things when
they talk about the grandfather clause. Thank vyou.

CHAIRPERSON YGUNG: Thank vyou. We’ll have
Dan Clecak and then we will take a break, but
immediately after tfthe break we’ll have Mallika
Ramachandran.

MR. CLOAK: My name is Dan Cloak, I'm a
consultant and I work for California municipalities.
I'"ve been doing stormwater work for about, well,
since 1992. And I’'m here for the Contra Costa Clean
Water Program today.

First of all, I just want to say what a
moment it is to have Green Infrastructure being
discussed and incorporated in this Permiif, 1it’'s
something that I think a lot of us have thought
about, dreamed about for a long time. We worked
closely with staff I think in a very coocperative way
to get that information and those ideas into the
permit and from what I’'m hearing here, there’s a lot
of concerns about, “Gee, how are we going to do 1t?2”
And, “When are we going to do 1t?” Bult generally I
think what you’re hearing is two things, one 1is

their support for it and the cother is, “Man, this is

I "

a big shift and it’s a really big effort.

I den’t think that we’re going tc succeed
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unless we get some relief from some other permit
requirements and, as you can expect in any permit of
this length and complexity, and with this kind of
history, there’s a certain number of things that are
just "“why do we need to keep doing this or do it the
same way. over again?”

I specifically want to address the issue of
some requirements that are specific to Contra Costa
with regard to Hydromodification management. Contra
Costa, you know, initiated and innovated Low Impact
Development as a way of meeting stormwater NPDES
regquirements, reallv going back to the 199%0's. Over
and over we’ve figured out ways to do it in the face
of permit reguirements that were actually oriented
towards non-LID facilities, so we adapted those
criteria in order to do LID because we thought it
was better for our communities.

In the case of Hydromodification
Management, we took a standard that Water Board
staff created and that the Board adopted that really
pushed us toward doing detention basins once again,
rather than doing LID. We managed to adapt those,
we wenl back and forth with staff over a very long
period; I think frankly the expenditure for Contra

Costa municipalities was about a million dollars to
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convince Water Board staff that we could do this
using LID. That included a study that was mandated
in the 2009 Permit, reguired us to find five
locations, and actually monitor the performance
during rainstorms of LID facilities to show that
they were effective. We followed the reguirements
of the permit to the letter. We implemented the
study, we got the results, and we wrote a report and
submitted it in 2013. The results of that report,
by the way, have been used throughout the state now
in their own policies, including the Statewide
Permit in Region 3 and elsewhere.

We were surprised and disappointed to see
that the permit now reguires Contra Costa, and only
Contra Costa, to submit yet more reports on the same
subject covering the same material. And we would
very much like those to be removed. Thank you.

CHATIRPERSON YOUNG: You’'re free to move
about the country for five minutes. Thank vou.

(Break at 3:30 p.m.)
(Reconvened at 3:45 p.m.)

CHATRPERSON YCUNG: Now we will have
Mallika Ramachandran and then on deck Michelle
Quinney, please.

MS. RAMACHANDRAN: Gocd afternoon, Bcard
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and colleagues. I am Mallika Ramachandran,
Assistant Public Works Director for the City of
Brentwood, I’ve been involved in the Clean Water
Program since 19385, so in the last 20 years I’ve
seen 1t evolve and very positive changes, I'm very
happy akout that. With that, I want to talk about
the Green Infrastructure and the grandfathering.

I want to say more time 1is needed to
develop a feasible cost-effective solution that will
stand in the face of legal challenges. Shifting
from gray storm drain systems to green is great, but
there are technical and legal challenges that must
be addressed, including loocking at tributary areas,
drainage patterns, right of way constraint, capacity
of the system, hydraulic censtraints, design
standards, health and safety, right of way issues, I
talked about it, and location and maintenance and
operation of systems that accumulate toxins.

The requirement in this permit doces not
address environment as a balanced system, nor does
it address conflicting requirements and site
constraints. Here is a build-out street and this is
what we need for Green Infrastructure, and here is
your private property or your buildings. S50 how do

we implement this and retrofit existing systems?
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So I ask for more time. We need to look at
this as a whole and not just little pieces that you
say you’'re going to repair the streets, or implement
this? It’'s very difficult to implement this thing
without loocking at all the other things that we have
in place.

In terms of the grandfathering clause, the
City has no authority to (indiscernible) Subdivision
Map Act. Once the development prcjects are approved
with the best intent maps, the City dces not have
the legal authority to go back and change conditions
of approcval. These conditions travel with the map
and we ask for flexibility on projects that have
been approved, 1like pre-2005 projects have been
approved.

So again, we need to look at this and lock
at all the other legal implications and ordinances
we have in place, and other regquirements that may
conflict with this; one thing that ccmes to mind, we
have the drought mandate, and now we are talking
about Green Infrastructure that cannot be
implemented withcocut water. So how do we do this?
And how do we implement this within a timeframe we

are asked teo implement? So a lot of other things

]

come into play. The timelines in the permit? There
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is no way we can implement and meet those
raquirements. You want to retrofit a street project
and go through the funding requirements, CEQA,
develop the project, and actually go easilyv three to
five vyears. S0 to say to start implementing in two
years, 1t’'s not feasible. So I ask this Board here
to take a locock at this, get scme Engineers involved
in this process to look at pilot projects and look
at real case studies and how we can come up with
feasible projects. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON YQUNG: All right, thank you
very much. Michelle Quinnev and next up Jolan
Longway.

M5. QUINNEY: Good afternoon, Chair Young
and members of the Bocard. My name is Michelle
Quinney. I am the City Engineer for the City of
Campbell. And I'm here today to share some first-
hand experiences that the City of Campbkell has
gained from the Hacienda Avenue Green Street
improvement project. As such, my remarks will be
focused on the Green Infrastructure requirements of
the MRP and we’ll support the recommendations that
have been made by all the previous speakers.

The Hacienda Avenue Green Street

Improvement Projects was one of 10 pilot Green
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Street projects included in MRP 1.0. We were
excited te participate in the pilot project and hope
our experiences will help provide implementation
perspectives for the upcoming permit.

Campbell was very fortunate, at least from
a Green Infrastructure standpoint to have a unique
opportunity on Hacienda Avenue. We had badly failed
pavement, 90-feet wide by about a mile long, and our
maintenance crews could no longer maintain it; it
was falling apart. This extra-wide street
highlighted the need for public safety, we had cars
that were making all sorts of wild maneuvers, s0 we
needed tc narrcw the street down. With the extra-
wide street, we had the ability tc consider
repurposing some of the existing public right of way
for a better community use, and this is a rare case
in all of our capital improvement projects and our
maintenance projects, we rarely have this
opportunity.

The surrcunding ccmmunity, because of the
condition of the street was very supportive of
anything we were going to do out there. So all
these factors made this a unigue opportunity for us.
Unfortunately, not all capital improvement projects,

especially in a smaller city such as Campbell, will
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have circumstances that will allocw the incorporation
0of Green Infrastructure improvements intc a project.

Our project would not have been possible
without significant grant funding. The availability
of grant programs 1is essential for the
implementation of Green Infrastructure improvements,
In the end, it took us three grants, three different
grants, and five additional City funding sources to
move this project forward. Fach of these grants and
funding sources has specific requirements for the
project, which added complexity to both the
development and delivery of the project.

The Hacienda Project required a significant
amount of planning pricr to even making this project
a reality, the first funds were allocated to the
project over eight years ago. Advanced coordination
with the community to gain support for the new Green
ITnfrastructure projects also took significant time,
but 1t was a central component of the preoject. The
installation of the bic-infiltration basins along
Hacienda Avenue was a concept that tcok much
additicnal time for the community to understand and
finally embrace.

The installation of the Green

Infrastructure improvements necessitated major
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utility relocaticns and prompted several major
utility upgrades for the neighborhood, and that
process alone took over twe and a half years.

OQur City standards for Pubklic Works design
and construction did not apply to the project, sc it
was necessary for us to create a new tooclbox. Long
term maintenance and adopting future City standards
that addressed Green Infrastructure are things that
we need tfto consider in the future, so those we still
have to address.

And in closing, | hope that some o©f these
shared experiences help support the recommendatiocns
made by the previous speakers and that consideration
will be given to these in the new MRP sc¢ that it is
ultimately written with requirements that have an
achievable path tc compliance. Thank vyou.

CHATIRPERSON YOUNG: Thank you. We
appreciate you sharing that experience. Jolan
Longway followed by Amanda Booth, please.

M5. LONGWAY : Good afterncon. I am Jolan
Longway. I am the NPDES Coordinator for the City of
Pittsburgh and I also wecrk in the Land Develcpment
Section of our Engineering Department. So I'11 be

putting con my development hat and be talking about

Provision C.3.B.1 with respect to projects that have
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had approvals prior to 2005, that did not include
any LID.

So with that said, these are projects --
for the City of Pittsburgh, there’s only about two,
I"1l speak about one of the projects. The rights to
that project were vested in accordance with the laws
and the conditions that we imposed on them, our
standards of design that were in place at the time
their application was complete. So to require
changes or additicnal conditions 1is outside of cur
authority.

With that said, 1f you did reguire the
Cities to open up these entitlements, keep in mind
that when these maps were entitled, it not only
entitled the develcopers toe the number of units that
they’'re entitled to develop, it alsoc secured public
improvements that had to be constructed. For one of
the projects that’s in the hillside, it requires two
water tanks. So to reopen or reevaluate design
would also require reevaluation of ocur Water Master
Plan, which is going to include consultants that
have to redo mcdeling to determine what number of
units the developer will be entitled to construct,
at what elevation. These projects are also bound by

development agreements, which means, you know,
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agreements go both ways, the City could lose ocut on
secured Iimprovements that we’ve already negotiated
in the past.

So what we're asking for is for more
flexibility for the Cities to handle the C.3
situaticn with land develcpment. This Green
Infrastructure project, vou know, for cities like
us, we rely on develcopers to help assist with
infrastructure projects, so if we have a good
partnership with them, that’s the only way we're
going to be able to see these Green Infrastructure
projects come toc fruition. So if we could keep the
language the same, allow the Cities to have more
flexibility, I think we would achieve compliance.
Thank vyou.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank vou.
Amanda Booth followed by Rinta Perkins, please.

M3. BOOTH: Good afternoon, Board Members.
My name 1s Amanda Booth and I’'m the Environmental
Program Analyst for the City of San Pablo. I'd like
to thank you for the opportunity to comment today
and appreciate all the hard work that’s been put
inte this so far.

San Pablc understands that the Water Board

LhaA [N | e S U

has concerns with contaminants and we want to work

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafacl, California 94901 (415) 457-4417

136



——

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

with you to build Green Infrastructure projects;
however, currently it’s unclear how compliance with
the early implementaticn section of C.3.J is going
to be determined. We would want permit language
that creates a defined review process so that we can
aveid noncompliance due to lack of clarity.

San Pablo is a disadvantaged community that
is builzt 6ut, so we would like to see a review
process and review language that allows us to
consider requirements such as space constraints and
effective capture locations. You know,
communications with large old industrial areas and
old urban areas like ours burden the responsibility
of a lot of these pcllutants of concerns, and so we
want to make sure that we're effective with the
minimal resources that we have, And toc do that, we
have to be clear on the path to ccocmpliance for our
early implementation review and the C.12, which you
already heard plenty about earlier today. And
that’s 1it. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank you
very much. Rinta Perkins and then John Steen or
Steer, one ¢of the two.

MS. PERKINS: Good afterncon, Madam Chair

and members of the RBoard. Rinta Perkins, Clean
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Water Program Manager with the City of Walnut Creek.
Thank you for the opportunity to comment and I wish
to extend my appreciation to your staff for their
collaborative efforts.

I'm here today to provide two comments on
Provision C.3.E, Special Projects. First of all,
we’'d like to ask that the definition of floor area
ratio and gross density be modified to include
parking structure and exclude areas dedicated to the
public for pedestrian activities or access.

The current language is a disincentive for
Smart Growth development in suburban downtown across
the region. This is especially true for Walnut
Creek where waters approved height restriction limit
the ability for redevelopment to achieve the minimum
density required to be eligible for special project
credit. With 10-foot setback all arocound, 85 percent
lot coverage is not achievable. Because a project
must consider cther sethack as defined in the
California Building Code. The remaining 15 percent
area compete for fire access, building access, and
utility reguirement that preclude the installation

of LID areas. The depressed nature of this LID
design in a tightly constrained site present a

H Lo il

barrier c¢or full hazard to achieve the necessary
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configuration.

As an example, we have a project in our
downtown last year, where Applicant originally
proposed to build a public plaza on their frontage
and internal courtyard. The project met the
criteria for a Category B Special Project, except
the density to achieve 100 percent non-LID credit.
The public plaza was a reguirement tied to both
density and a general plan amendment. Because the
project could not be increased in height to achieve
the required density, it ended up incorporating
flow-through planters in its courtyards without the
public plaza.

8o the solution is simple, by modifying Lhe
definition as we suggested, you support local agency
effort of Smart Growth development, as well as Lo
provide community enhancement through benefits of
parking and public amenities in redeveloped downtown
while providing water quality benefits.

Our second concern, we’'d like to ask that
the criteria for transit-oriented development, or
Category C of the Special Projects provision, be
nodified. The limits placed on the Location Credit
within the Tentative Order are out of line with any

transit-criented development guidelines around the
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country, and particularly within ocur own region. As
an example, Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) has
transit-oriented development guidelines that start
at a half mile, while the Tentative Order 1is much
more restrictive at a quarter mile. So we ask for
vour consideration on this issue. I thank ycu for
yvour time.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank you.
Mr. Steen or Steer, I'm sorry, I just can’t -- he
had to leave, all right, we apolcgize for that.
Tracy Clay will be next from Berkeley, and then
Chris Mcmmmmmm (!) from the Town of Danville.

MS. CLAY: Okay, good afternoon members of
the Board. I'm Tracy Clay, I'm a Senior Civil
Engineer for the City of Berkeley, and I'd like to
come here today to support my fellow municipalities
and Permittees, and also support the testimony
provided by BASMAA and Alameda County Clean Water.

But on behalf of Berkeley, I'd like to give
testimony primarily on the Green Infrastructure
provisions. Berkeley has been really really
successful in looking forward towards Green
Infrastructure, and they really support it, and they
have been successful in passing a Bond Measure to

fund 1it. Iin 2011, we did a Watershed Improvement
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Plan, a Master Plan that identified Green
Infrastructure as a key component to meet our water
quality and our stormwater objectives, or flooding
cbjectives., In the past, the City was looking
toward hardened infrastructure to meet our
stormwater and flooding requirements, the new
approach in Berkeley is to do Green Infrastructure,
Low Impact Developments, use of cisterns in
roadways, you know, they want to do the right thing,
that’s what I'm saying.

Sc a few years ago, 2012, the City passed a
Bond Measure, 1t was a combined Bond Measure for
road improvements and Green Infrastructure for $30
million. And over the last two years with that
money we’ve been able to fund six Green
Infrastructure projects and what we’ve done 1is we’ve
combined those with the Road Improvement Plan and,
you know, I think that’s what vyou’'re going for, is
as you move forward with general road improvements
and general infrastructure replacement, yocu want us
to implement Green Infrastructure where possible.
And it’s been a really good program. And we’ve done
the first two years, we have three years to go, we
have six more Green Infrastructure projects that

we're working on, and we love the planning approach
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that you guys have outlined, but just not now.
(Laughs) We would like to continue to focus on ocur
Green Infrastructure program and implement i1t over
the next three vears. I think we see ourselves
moving into another planning phase after this
construction, you know, design and construction
phase is done. And I imagine other organizations
are the same.

The other thing is, is Green Infrastructure
is difficult to implement in a constrained urban
environment. I could speak more to that, but I
can’ t.

And we also want you guys to be mindful of
how much it’s going to cost us with the monitoring
and reporting. So thank vyou.

CHATRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank you
very much. Now we’'re going to have Mystery Chris,
and then Tim Potter afterwards.

MS. MCCANN: Thank vyou, Madam Chair and
Board Members. I apologize for my handwriting. My
name 1is Chris McCann, I'm a City Planner for the

town of Danville and I'’ve been working there running

the Clean Water Program for over 15 years. I'm
proud to say the town’s community values have always

aligned with Clean Water program goals, generally.
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We’ve preserved our creeks, clustered development,
preserved hillsides and protected them, our
maintenance activity is reduced, pesticides before
it was ever required, and we've expended extensive
resources picking up trash. So, you know, we agree

with the Green Infrastructure Plan and we’re heading
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towards that direction with the Board. However, the

C.3 regulations, the Clean Water requirements have
been pretty onerocus over the years, and they’re
cantinuously ramping up in the past 10 years, town
resources have significantly been impacted and had
Lo be ramped up to implement new programs, new
review procedures, new accounting, new tracking
efforts, and have completely changed how new
development is reviewed, implemented and built,

I wanted to specifically speak about now
since we’ve had about 10 years doing C.3 program,
the O&M inspections, because we're starting to get
significant number of projects on the ground, we
have 13 projects built, we probably will have
another two more over the next year or so. We’ve
been implementing O&M programs for the past 10
years. Of course, we had to wait a couple vears

after the first project to have it just be

functioning before we can inspect it. We inspected

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LL.C
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417



10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

25

CoN -

F ;
the oldest ones first and we kind of have a
precedure how we do that, and we’ve gotten better
over the years. We learn all the time how to do
things better.

I'd like to address the MRP 2.0's reguired
fregquency of inspections in this area, though. Over
the past 10 years, we were able to comply with the
requirement of one inspection per five years for
each project; however, in the future, as you know,
as new projects come on line, this is going to be
more difficult for Cities to accomplish with the
same staff resources that we always have had =~- in
cur case. So what’s new in MRP 2.0 in Section
C.3.H.I.i.vi.b, this section deals with the 0O&M
inspections requiring at least 20 percent of all
previous years’ regulated projects to be inspected.
I personally feel this is & little overly
restrictive and prescriptive, and that also includes
a provision of the one inspection per five years:
that provision is fine, we’re going to try to meet
that.

We request, though, that the 20 percent per

year be omitted simply because not all projects are
the same. We have some projects, one 20-unit

il L S

condominium development, that might have two IMPs in
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dealing with, not a big deal, but then I have like a
smaller subdivision that 1s still considered one
project to you guys, but has 10 lots, 10 homeowners,
10 people I have Lo coordinate with, and 10 problems
potentially, or more.

So in general I would just like toc ask vyou
to delete that provision, I don’t see why we need
it, and I think we can do our job probably just as
good without it, Thanks.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank you.
We now have Tim Potter followed by Beth Baldwin,

MR. POTTER: Thank you. My name 1s Tim
Potter. I work with Central Contra Costa Sanitary
District, but I’'m actually here representing the
Contra Costa Clean Water Program to speak on the
proposed change to Section C.4.D of the draft MRP
that requires reporting of all enforcement actions
for potential discharges that don’t comply with the
Municipality Stormwater Ordinance, so kind of
shifting gears for you here.

First, a guick background. Since Fiscal
Year "96-797, Central San has supported 10 of the
Central Contra Costa County Cities and with

compliance with thelr permit requirements to conduct
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inspections and enforcement at commercial and
industrial sites under an Interagency Agreement. We
conduct field enforcement that includes using wverbal
warnings, written warning notices, as well as
written Notices of Violations that are identified in
the Cities’ Enforcement Response Plans in response
to observations during the inspection efforts that
we conduct.

These enforcement tools achieve a very high
rate of return tc compliance and we’re very proud of
them. Since the adoption of the first MRP in 2009,
Central San has been conducting field work
associated with compelling and documenting timely
corrective actions according to the MRP standards
which are basically before the next rain event, or
within 10 business days. The reports that we
generate to communicate work conducted under the
Inspection Service Agreements also include
documentation of this timely return to compliance.

Since Water Board’s inspection of two
Central Contra Costa County Cities in 2010, we’ve
been conducting field work and documentation,

documenting the timely return to compliance for all

pctential discharges in addition to discharges of

11w o S LS e S O o i I

non-stormwater pollutants when a written enforcement
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document has been issued for that noncompliant
condition.

This effort for this level of follow-up
for, again, the potential discharges recorded under
a written enforcement document does require
additional resocurces, basically more cost to the
Cities, and in many cases with minimal benefit to
the water quality environment.

So the recommendation that we have for you,
the concern with the proposed MRP Tentative Order 1is
that there’s an unqualified reference toc reporting
all enforcement actions listed in a City’s ERP in
Section C.IV.D.i1i11.2 and 3. As drafted, this text
could be interpreted to include situations when
verbal warnings are used as the initial level of
enfeorcement for relatively minor conditions observed
during an inspection.

As noted previocusly, requiring this level
of reporting for conditions addressed with a wverbal
warning will increase the resources needed to comply
with this standard, withecut really any benefit to
protecting water gquality. This text should be
modified to clarify that verbal warnings are not
subject to the same level of reporting as written

warning notices and NOVs, and we ask that you make
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sure bthat cHanges reguired in reporting are wvalue
added. Thank you very much.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Bil right, thank you
Mr. Potter. We have Beth Baldwin and then Deanna
Constable.

MS. BALDWIN: Good afternoon, Madam Chair
and Members of the Board. My name 1s Beth Baldwin.
I'm with the Contra Costa Clean Water Program and I
want to thank you for the opportunity to speak to
you today.

I would like to address Provision C.5.e
regarding the control of mobile scurces. First, we
believe there’s just simply not encugh time to
address all of the 2016 Annual Report requirements.
This 1ncludes enforcement strategies, outreach and
education to mobilile businesses, inspections and
enforcement, etc. Many of these activities, we
believe, would kest be served at a regional level
and that type of coordination takes time.

Second, 1in addition for a Permittee to
develop an inventory of mobile businesses operating
in his or her Jjurisdiction will take significant

resources and, at best, vield an incomplete list.
e businesses ¢perate across City and County
lines and many of these businesses do not obtain
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business licenses and, furthermore, some
municipalities do not even reguire business
licenses. So you can see the challenges with
developing a complete inventory. We recommend
instead that the inventory be developed regiocnally
and that it is regquired only once during the permit
term. Furthermore, we request that language should
be added to the permit that clarifies that the
inventory is not absolute; that is, it is simply not
possible whether conducted at a regional level or by
an individual Permittee to identify each and every
single mobile husiness operating in his or her
jurisdiction.

Finally, we believe that the language
should be added toc the permit that explicitly states
that Permittees may refer to their countywide annual
reports for activities that are conducted at the
County or Regional level. Thank you for your time
and consideration on these comments,

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank you
Ms. Baldwin. We have Deanna Constable and then
Erica Maharg.

MS. CONSTABLE: Good afterncon, Chair and
Board. Thank you for the opportunity of speaking to

you. My name is Deanna Constable. I work as an
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Administrative Analyst for Contra Costa Clean Water
Program and I work supporting the Public Informatiocn
and Participation Program, so I’m speaking today on
C.7.

I'd like to draw your attention to several
points that we’d like to support amengst our
program; one is that in C.7, in general, we would
like to ask for a consclidation of all of the
references to C.7 to be brought into C.7 and not
having to chase them exactly through C.9 and other
places, to be able to be responsible for all of
those provisions.

Also, in regards to C.7.a, which Permittees
mark and maintain storm drain inlets with
appropriate pcllution preventicn messages, we would
like to have this provision actually be moved to
where we think 1t shpuld be, which is in C.2 and
C.3. It really shouldn’t be in C.7, we believe.

Also, very 1important to Permittees 1is the
changing of the language from an “advertising
campaign” to an “outreach campaign.” We believe
that that term is constrictive because there’s so
many ways of doing cutreach, for example with sccial

media, and that we’'d like to be akble to have that

i

flexibility., And I think flexibility is a big term
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for us in public information. One of the things
that I’ve been tasked with is the idea that we would
like to have more flexibility in how we do our
campaigns. The people that I work with, these
Permittees, they really care about making a campaign
that is effective, and they’'re very frustrated that
they start with a campaign, they’re told that they
have to do one that’s trash and one that’s
pesticides in this current MRP, and then they have
to stop and they have to start again. They believe
that the effective use 0f their resources 1s to have
a campaign that maybe is one, and that can be then
grown out tc whatever is needed, for example trash
or pesticides, depending on what’s happening at the
time, but tc have one campaign that can grow with
them and thus effective resources. For example, if
you think of Spare the Air, there’s a lot of money
that’s put to that message and it continues, that
messadge continues and people know of 1it. We would
like to be able to have a branding that pecple know
about stormwater, instead of having tec do these
little campaigns that then end and the resources are
dead.

So we ask for more flexibility with that

and I Jjust have to say thank you so much to everyone
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here, C.7 is an important component of the MREP.
Thank you.

CHATRPERSON YOUNG: Okay, thank yocu very
much. Erica Maharg and then Lucille Paquette.

MS. MAHARG: Good afterncon. My name is
Erica Maharg and I am a Staff Attorney with San
Francisco Baykeeper and T did take the oath. Thank
vou for the opportunity to comment today. Baykeeper
will be submitting detailed comments, written
comments, at a later date. But today I wanted to
focus on the Water Quality Monitoring Provisions
that are included in Section C.8.

As you know, the NPDRES Permit system, as
regquired by the Cléean Water Act and Federal
Regulations, requires that monitoring in a permit
assure compliance with the permit terms including
protection of beneficial uses. To be effective and
sufficient, therefore, the monitoring provisions
must focus on monitoring a Permittee’s compliance
with the permit itself and specifically determining
whether stormwater discharges are causing or
contributing to violations of water gquality
standards.

Unfertunately in many ways 1t appears that

the water guality provisicns as written fail to do
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this. For instance, the draft permit spells ocut the
intended purpcses of the creek status monitoring,
and basically the purpose is to determine whether
water guality standards are being met in receiving
waters, generally. Similarly, the priority
information needs which guide the whole pollutants
of concern monitcoring refer to stormwater runoff,
but they never specifically state that assuring
compliance with a permit is the intended purpose of
the monitoring provisions, So, while understanding
the overall health of receiving waters is important
and Baykeeper completely support this type of
monitoring, the permit’s monitoring must evaluate
and should focus on whether the discharges actually
regulated by the permit, which are stocrmwater
discharges, are complying with the permit, or
contributing to violations of water guality
standards. And also, this purpose should be more
clearly stated in the permit.

As noted previously, the monitoring
reguirements in the permit right now increase the
flexibility to Permittees, And Baykeeper is
concerned with the increased discretion given to
Permittees 1n developing a monitoring scheme for

pollutants of concern. And specifically, we're
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concerned that the monitoring provisions do not
require actually monitoring, except for toxicity
during the wet season, and it seems illocgical that
the permit would not specifically require sampling
when the discharges are actually occurring, which is
of course during storms and during the wet season.
So we ask that the Permit be modified -- may I just
continue for one more thought --7

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Yes, you can, there --

MS5. MAHARG: -- to especially reqguire
sampling that occurs during storm events, or when
appropriate during the wet season. And we also
notice that the Draft Permit doesn’t specify
locations or give guidance about where locations.
would be appropriate, so that would be, you know, at
the outfall or directly downstream of the cutfall,
to determine what the impacts actually are of the
discharges that are occurring.

So in sum, we would ask that the monitoring
provisions be changed to reguire representative
sampling at outfalls during storm events. Thank
you.

CHATRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank you
ch, What T was trying to say was we’ve only

T'Ter}f n'll

1

had two comment cards from people other than
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dischargers, so 1t seemed appropriate to give her -
- not equal time, that would be ours, but some extra
time. S50 we have now Lucille Paquette who is coming
back on this section, and then we’ll have April
Squires.

MS5. PAQUETTE: Good afternoon. Thank vyou,
Chair and Board for hearing my comments and thank
you to your staff for all the work we’ve done. I
kind of want to start on something slightly
different than -

MS. WHYTE: T'’m sorry, please state your
name and --

M5. PAQUETTE: My name is Lucille Paguette,
thank vyou.

M5. WHYTE: -—- and your affiliation?

MS. PAQUETTE: Contra Costa Clean Water
Program. And I'm responsible for the C.8 and C.11
and 12 monitoring reporting. So one thing I'm
noticing and that I want to mention and acknowledge
is this idea of generational planning, right? So
what I see 1is all of us try to clean up and improve
what our parents gave us, whether it’s engineering,
chemistry, what have you. And we’re trying to hand
this to our children and we know we have some big

problems and big challenges, but what I see is I see
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a bunch of really talented minds here who are also
very willing to make smart choices and informed
choices. And my request, personally, is that all of
us here have flexibility with understanding other
pecple’s points of view and struggles because 1
think that’s happening, and I think we have. this
kind ¢f a new generaticn of thinking, 1if you will,
collaboration that maybe our parents didn’t have.
So I'm really excited about that, to participate in
that, and I want to encourage all of us and request
that we could really work together, Baykeeper,
evarybody here is trying tc get this nice -- protect
ocur home.

In terms of the issues I'd like tec bring
up, our creek status and POC monitoring, C.8, I'm
hoping scme of these will be simple fixes, so a
couple things would be for the temperature
exceedance idea there, that all the streams, all the
triggers aren’t a one-size-fits-all, and we’d just
like to acknowledge other specific temperature
thresholds developed through other regulatory
processes, as well, that’s one. I'"d love Lo see a
cap of projects te 10 regionally. In terms of the
POC monitoring, C.8, I'd like to ask 1if you could

align the POC repocort with the Urban Creeks
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Monitoring Report so that all of our monitoring can
be reported at the same time. I think that’s a
really easy fix. And also I'd like to see if we
could provide flexibility in Table 8.4 for the PCB
methods that are required there because I think that
we could usze some flexibility for the screening that
we are doing under C.12, use different methods for
the PCBs, I think that .would be an easy fix, as
well. Thank ycocu for hearing me,.

CHATRPERSON YOQOUNG: A1l right, thank you
very much. April Sguires and then Monty Heving, or
something like that, a citizen of Alameda. Is April
Squires still here? 1 guess not. Then T don’'t know
whether I‘ve got this last name right, H-e- -- maybe
y —— 1-n-g, Citizen of Alameda? Is he still here?
Well, he’s not jumping up, whoever it is. We think
they beth had to leave, all right, unfortunately.
Now we have Laurie Kozaczek, and then I have one
more card and if you haven’'t been called, you’'ll
know who you are, and that will be Joanne Le. S50 1is
Laurie --

MS. DABOVICH: Julie Haas Dabcvich?

CHAIRPERSON YOQOUNG: I'm not seeing the
card, but come on up and you can fill out a card

after. Let me just clarify, so Laurie Kozaczek - so
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vou didn’t need to speak, and he pocketed you, just
testing.

MS5. DABCOVICH: Good evening, we'll call 1it,
my name is Julia Haas Dabovich. I am the
Environmental Rescurces Coordinator for the City of
Antioch. For the past 15 years, I have had the
pleasure of serving on the PIP Committee, formerly
the PIO Committee, for the Contra Costa Clean Water
Program, We are hoping, and I kneow that my
colleague Deanna mentioned it, as well, that you
seriously consider changing the word “advertising”
to “outreach” for starters, that’s kind of ocur o¢ld
school way of doing things, we used to go cut and
film commercials, we had some really good ones,
including guys ranting in the creek about illegal
dumping, but they’re not cost-effective, we can’t
compete with Coke and McDonalds, we couldn’t compete
with Coke and McDonalds then, we can’t compete with
them now, s0 we need to be creative and we need to
be flexible in how we're doing cur ocutreach to
change people’s behaviors. I think we’ve had some
pretty innovative ways to do that, including our
current pesticide campaign, which is actually a
thres-pronged campaign, we have three different

[ 5 N L

things going on that right now including a website
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for gardening, which I'm really excited abkout in the
City of Antioch because our Antioch High School kids
-- School Outreach -- are doing a lot of the tip
sharing on there, as well as the search engine
optimization and stuff like that through two of our
academies, We’ve been doing a lot of still
advertising, but advertising in social media so we
can really target it to the areas that our focus
groups have shown are using either their own
pesticides, are using applicators for those, so we
can do direct outreach in those kinds of ways and
changing the wording on that will really help.
Again, I’'d also like to reiterate that we would
really like to have the option of having one
campaign or one holistic plan that we can develop
for the duration of the permit, and then be able to
implement it and show you that it is effective in
our reporting, as well, Let me make sure T got
everything. I think that’s it. Thank vyou very
much.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank you.
And I have no further cards, and nobody else is
jumping up. Oh, is she here? Very good.

M5. LE: Good evening, Madam Chair and

Board Members and Water Board staff. My name 1is
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Joanne Le with the City of Richmond, the Source
Control Inspector for the Stormwater Program. I'm
here to talk about C.12, PCBs and Green
Infrastructure. I'm sure we’'ve heard enough of 1it,
but I Just want to express my view of 1it.

As you know, Richmond is burdened with
historical, as well as current industrial socurces of
PCBs and staff has done our due diligence to address
this issue over the years. We have identified high
opportunity areas, we participated and received
grant funding from EPA, BASMAA, to construct green
infrastructure to address these issues, and I myself
diligently perform inspections of sites with PCBs to
ensure that PCB sources aren’t contributing to our
collection system and our waterways. But as
speakers have mentioned before, scurces of funding
are running out, we’'re not sure of what’s going on
in the future in terms of grant funding, so I would
like to express that the Board and staff members
take inte account these factors in terms of revising
the permits to assure us compliance when we're
implementing good faith tasks to address these
problems, and not put forth a permit that is subject
to failure to start with and be subjected fo third-

party lawsuits. And that’s all I have to say.

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417

160



10

11

12

i3

14

15

16

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Thank vyou.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, thank you
very much.

Let me make a couple of comments just about
process now. As you heard with the statement that I

read when we started this, we will not be taking any

f

1=

action today, but the three of us individually will
provide some feedback tc the staff and te all of you
about what our thoughts are based on all of the
testimony today, and we will be doing that next
month at the hearing where most of you will have
representatives because it’s the trash hearing of
the MRP, s50 1t’'s the next chapter cf MRP Workshops.

But what we can do now if the Board Members
wish, is to ask clarifying guestions. We can save
our ccnclusions and recommendations and that kind of
feedback for the next hearing. Newsha will be
absent, but she will be providing that via either
the staff or me. 2ut 1f there are particular
questions that you’d like the staff to answer based
on what yocu heard today, then this woculd be a good
fime to get those answers out.

DR. AJAMI: S0 no comments or guestions.

MR. LEFKOVITS: Yeah, I don’t think I have

any specific staff guestions.
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CHA1RPERSON YQUNG: Are there comments the
staff would like to make just based on what you
heard to flesh out our thinking on these issues?
Not required, I’m just providing the option, the
cpportunity.

MR. LICHTEN: I would just offer as
everyone noted we’ve been meeting together and we’re
going to continue t¢ meet and talk. In particular,
it was refreshing to hear some of the more detailed
comments on the Green Infrastructure provision. I
think as we’ve been meeting more recently there’s
been a focus more on PCBs, so we think there’s a
real opportunity to clarify understanding, wording,
and some of the dates there, and we’re going to sit
down with the Green Infrastructure Work Group and
make sure we do that.

CHATRPERSON YOUNG: All right, good enough.
Then we will close this workshop for today. We will
be reconvening, as I mentioned, well, we’ll be
convening another workshop next month on the trash
section of the MRP. And thank you all for coming
and thank yocu for your really thoughtful comments,
many of them were very helpful and positive and
there are things that we can really work with.

(Adjourned at 4:33 p.m.}
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San Francisco Bay Region
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1515 Clay Street
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Kent Odell

Item 6. Municipal Regional Stormwater NPDES Permit
— Municipalities and Flood Management
Agencies in Alameda County, Contra Costa
County, San Mateo County, Santa Clara
County, and the Cities of Fairfield,
Suisun City, and Vallejo in Solano County
~ Hearing to Receive Testimony on
Tentative Order, Provision €10, Trash Load
Reduction and Report of Subcommittee on
June 10, 2015, Hearing on Tentative Order
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Item 6. Municipal Regional Stormwater NPDES
Permit - Municipalities and Flood Management
Agencies in Alameda County, Contra Costa County,
San Mateo County, Santa Clara County, and the
Cities of Fairfield, Suisun City, and Vallejo in
Sclanco County - Hearing to Receive Testimony on
Tentative Order, Provision Cl0, Trash Load
Reduction and Report of Subcommittee on June 10,
2015, Hearing on Tentative Order

MR. WOLFE: Item 6, we’'ve stated in the
Agenda that we would not start before 10:00 a.m.,
so we do have a few minutes.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: We get to have a 12-
minute break.

MR. WOLFE: Sc we'll take a brief --

MR . MULLER: May I make my comments
before we start this?

CHATRPERSON YOUNG: Yes. Your recusal
statements? Does that have to be done at 10:00°7
MR. WOLFE: It can be done now.

MS. WON: Well, actually I don’t know if
people are here, so I would suggest -

MR. MULLER: To wait. Okay. We’ll wait

=
B]
t
-
e
i—‘
O
o
]

{(Break at 9:48 a.m.)
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({Reconvene at 10:201 a.m.)

CHATRPERSON YOUNG: All right, we're
going to get started now with the next item on
the agenda, the Trash Workshop. And I believe we
have a couple of recusals to do and during that
time we’ll hopefully assemble the other Board
Members back again.

MR. MULLER: Again, I den’t know if I
should thank you or apologize, but I'm going to
recuse myself from participating in the Municipal
Regional Stormwater Permit, or MRP, due to the
fact that I’ve been a long time City Council
Member and former Mayor of the City of Half Mcon
Bay 1in San Matec County. The City of Half Moon
Bay 1s a Permittee under the MRP. I'm recusing
myself to avoid any appearance of bias due to my
relationship with the City of Half Mcon Bay. And
so at this time, I will be leaving the dais. And
good luck, and thank you all for your hard work,
it feels like Groundhog Day for all of you, it’s
been a lot of years working on this, so God bless
you.

MS. ABE-KOGA: I also will be recusing
myseltf. Last month 1 did so on the MRP item due

to the fact that I served on the Mountain View
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City Council until January of this vear. The
City of Mountain View 1s a Permittee under the
MRP and I continue tc have contacts with City
staff, although not on the MRP, T understand
that strictly speaking I have no financial
conflict under the Political Reform Act, however,
IT'm going to continue recusing myself to aveid
any appearance of bias due to my relationship
wilith the City o¢f Mountain View. I may decide to
participate in future MRP proceedings, but at
this pecint T am not going to participate on the
MRP reissuance. S50 thank vyvou and good luck.

CHATRPERSON YOUNG: Thank vou. She said
with a big broad smile. Let the record show!

MS. ABE-KOGA: I'm scrry!

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: All right, we are now
going to go ahead and consider Item 6, the
Tentative Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit,
cr MRP, or “Merp,” whatever you want to call it.
We do have a gucrum today and we will conduct a
hearing to accept testimony on the MRP’'s trash
provisions. In addition, we’re going to hear
reports from the Subcommittee on last month’'s
hearing on the remainder of the MRP. At that

hearing, I appointed a subcommittee comprised of
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Board Members Ajami and Lefkovits and me to
conduct the hearing to accept testimony on the
MRP’s provisions, except for trash. I advised
those present at that time that we would not be
taking any action at the June meeting, which was
the last meeting, but we would repocrt any
tentative findings and recommendations to the
Board at the next meetfting. Accordingly, we will
shortly proceed to hear from those who were on
that subcommittee last meeting, as well as other
members of the Board who were unable to attend,
but who have read the transcript. Then we will
move on to considering the Trash provisions. And
Steve, vyou don’t have to step way down there 1if
you don’t want to, you're welcome to move.

MR. LEFKOVITS: Yeah, I spread all my
stuff out already.

CHAIRPERSON YCUNG: All right, so here’s
what we’'re going to do. First we’re going to
hear about all of the provisions except for trash
from the subcommiittee, and then I believe Jim has
some comments based on the transcript. Then
we're going to hear the staff report on trash and
tollow that up with any gquestions that the Board

Members might hawve.
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Following that, we Board members, since
we have studied the trash provisicns and are
pretty familiar with them at this point in time,
are golng to provide to both the staff and you,
the members of the audience, what our draft
reaction 1s to the draft that we see,. And we’re
going to be doing that individually in order that
you will be able to comment on cur comments when
you come up, and alsc in your written testimony.
S0 we want toe, rather than save most of our
comments toc the end, we're going to give them in
the beginning and that way they will be on the
record, and you will be able to kind of see where
we think we’re going tc be going and be able to
comment on that, and T do invite you te do that.

All right, with that we will start with
the Tentative Findings and Recommendations from
the Workshop Subcommittee, which Mr. Lefkovits
and I are the representatives today. I711
present a few, he’ll present a few that I missed,
and then we’ll go cn from there. And I do want
Lo stress that these Subcommittee Tentative
Findings and Recommendations are based on the
Draft Permit Package and on the testimony that we

received at the workshop last time, but we alsc
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will of course carefully ccnsider the written
comments that you folks will be submitting since
the comment period is not closed yet, and that’s
why we're calling everything “tentative.”

Ckay, with respect to Green
Infrastructure, it appeared to us that the
reguirement to produde a framework for developing
Green Infrastructure, including the tasks and
timelines seemed pretty reasonable. Several
commenters did want more time, but we felt 1like
the cne-year due date seemed reasonable for
developing what’s essentially a game plan. We
support the staff’s effort to reguire approval of
the framework for someone high enough in the
hierarchy to have the authocrity cver most of the
departments who are going to be involved,

although whom that might be, we don’t have any

particular attachment to. We found that there
seemed to be considerable specificity regarding
the ccmponents of the framework that needed to be
included, and that guidance seemed Lo us to be
sufficient even thcugh some commenters said that
they wanted more detail, and I’'m sure as time
goes cn, the staff will talk to you. So you'll

get more detail.

CALTFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417

10



[0

11

12

13

14

15

L6

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

25

Several commenters also suggested that
the Regional Board create a template for this
framework which sounds like a very good idea if
the staff is abkle to do so. I would like,
however, to have that not be a mandatory
framework at this point because so many cities
have kind of already developed a framework, and
we don’t want them to have to redo something just
to reformat it.

Finally, on Green Infrastructure several
commenters noted that the funding socurces for
these kinds of projects are uncertain and that
the projects reguire long lead times, and
certainly we agree that those statements are
true. On the other hand, we don’t think it’s a
reason to delay developing a framework because
without a framework that cutlines the potential
projects, you can’t raise money, formulate your
specific plans, and initiate the formal planning
process and get it underway. So things have to
start somewhere and 1t seemed to us that the
staff did a pretty good job of picking a place to
start and a time to start.

All right, the second set of comments,

mest of the comments looked at PCBs. After

11
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hearing that testimony, we suppcrt the numerical
load reduction requirements that are written in
the draft permit. The locad reductions and the
timelines both seem reascnable. In my mind, we
can’t go any slower than what the staff has laid
out and still meet the timelines that are set in
our TMDL, s0 we should plow on ahead and see 1if
we can make a go of this.

The Subcommittee is concerned that two
major elements of the program rely on the
Permittees to develop analyses upon which later
compliance is based. These two that I’'m thinking
of are the within county load allocaticons and the
assessment methodology that is required in
C.12.B.1, and in our opinion this is a sub-
optimal way toc proceed and we think that there

lditional thought put into

@]

needs to be scome a
these parts of the permit. Part of the reascon we
think this is that this kind of approach of
having the Permittees develop the analyses and
the methodology upon which compliance was later
going to be based didn’t really work for us in
the Trash in Section 10 last time around. So,
you know, we learned a lesson and we need to kind

of tighten things up going forward.
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Sc we would prefer that the permit and
the fact sheet define the default allocation
which would apply if the Permittees do noct submit
an acceptable allccaticn on time. And if the
staff cannot produce an allocation in time to put
i1t in the permit, then we suggest incorporating
language in the permit stating that the Board
will adopt an allocation that will be binding if
the Permittees fail to dco so at the deadline when
they' re supposed to submit.

Then, as with the other ccmpocnent for the
Assessment Methodology, we alsc weould like to
have language making it clear that the Board will
adopt a binding assessment methodoclogy by date
certain if the Permittees do not develop a method
on time and acceptable to the Executive Qfficer,
Substantial information already is included in
the Fact Sheet under C.12.A and B that can be
incorporated, and where site specific data are
required, but not produced by a Permittee, and
one example would be the massive PCBs, for
example, contained in a building. We would
recommend that the Board have the cpticn, and by
“"Board” I mean Bocard or Staff, have the option of

either assigning a default value, or declining to

13
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credit PCB reductions for the project.

You can see where I’'m going with this, I

want to make sure everybody 1is really clear on

what’s going to happen 1f deadlines are missed or

if assessment methodologies are not good enough
to satisfy the Executive Officer, soc that we
don’t have a lot of spun wheels and wasted time
in the middle of the permit cycle.

The subcommittee also is still concerned
about the proposal that 1f the group, either the
region or the county, respectively, achieves the
regquired reductions, then all individual
permittees are also in compliance, and we
discussed this a little bit at the workshop last
time. This obviously sets up the free rider

problem, which is classic and we like to avoid

T

1. We prefer that th
de not have cost-effective or timely PCBs
reduction options be held to their individual
allocations, but be allowed tc share the costs
and the reducticn credit from projects outside
their Jjurisdicticns. So sort of an offset-type
arrangement., This seems toc me to be a way to

respond to several ¢f the commenters from small

cities who said that they might not have

CALIFORNIA REPORTING, LLC
52 Longwood Drive, San Rafael, California 94901 (415) 457-4417

12 individual Permittees who

14



10

11

12

[3

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

appropriate projects that they could engage in,
they can partner up with other people who do have
projects, and that’s a way to get the most cost-~
effective reduction across the region anyway.

So we'd like to explore that, we feel
that would provide flexibility, but not let
anybocdy off the hcok for deing their fair share,
large or small.

All right, We're getting there. Several
commenters asked for “a clear path to compliance”
and that’s a quote, suggesting that each city
would have difficulty knowing whether it could
assemble sufficient projects Lo meelt the assigned
reductions, Bnd we're still talking about PCBs.
The Subcommittee found that the draft really
provided considerable detail with regard to the
types of acceptable projects and the way in which
to estimate lcocad reductions from each project.

So that part is pretty clear, you know, being
able to assess what you might be able to go out
and do seemed to be pretty clear in the draft
permit. In addition, the load reductions that
are required for PCBs in the first two years are
pretty minimal, so the permit does build in guite

a nice long ramp-up period for these projects,
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and that’s another reason why we feel comfortable
with the reqguirements.

Finally, there were several commenters
that made other additional requests of this
Bo;rd, one was that Cities might require help
getting the attention of private property owners
and levying fines; we agree with that and we hope
you can get ocur attention and think you will be
able to get cur attention and help with that.

Another commenter menticned that in her
oplnicn much of the load comes from PG&E and
railrcad rights of way, and Subcommitiee feels
that the staff should, yes, follow this up, and
that was a very valuable comment. In addition,
that we should make a state level push to get the
building industry to support removal efforts from
PCBs and we agree, we think that was also a
valuable suggestion, and would plan te try to
follow this up with our contacts in the state,
and you folks can fcllow 1t up with your contacts
in League of Cities and maybe we can get
somewhere.

That’s all I have from the Subcommittee,
although I know that Steve has some additional

items also from the Subcommittee, we' ' re docing a
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tag team.

MR, LEFKOVITS: Thank vyou. I just had
two mcre gulick ones, one was we noted the number
cf commenters who talked about the administrative
burden of reporting and the difficulty of
preparation of documents and submissiocon and
sharing, and we know that the State has been
working on a statewlide information reception
portal. But it seems Lo us like in the meantime
as a stopgap measure, 1f there are Permittees
that want to share information electronically
using whatever they use, Google Docs or Box or
Dropbox, tThere’s some clear efficiency benefits
beth to them internally and also sharing between
them and alsc with us; 1t might make sense to
clarify that they can apply for electronic
delivery of their reporting documents 1in any
reasconable manner that we can accept. It seemed
like a pretty easy thing that we can do in the
short term or as a stopgap.

And the last item is simply the matter of
advertising, the advertising regquirement. I
Think evervone felt like clearly the issue was
reaching people in the community, and 1f

Permittees have alternate methods of
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communication, whether it’'s sccial media or
email, or whatever they are most effective at, it
makes sense for them if they can find a cost-
effective way to reach people rather than buying
advertising time, it seems like an easy fix that
we can make to the permits. So that’s all I

have.

MS. WON: Threcugh the Chair, if I may? I

just wanted to clarify for the record that when
you gave your reccocmmendation and Mr. Lefkovits
gave his recommendation, it’s not necessarily
that cof a subcommittee, it’s your individual
recommendations, and that the subcommittee hasn’t
met tc come up with these recommendaticons. Se if
vou can confirm that for the record, that would

be great.

1T T

CHATIRPERSON YOUNG: The Subcommittee
exchanged emails.

M5. WON: Meaning you and Mr. Lefkovits,
but not Ms. Ajami?

CHATIRPERSON YOUNG: That’s correct
because she is unreachable by email, sc we -—-- 1
guess we’re not a full subcommittee, we’re pieces

of subcommittee.

MS. WON: S0 it’'s Just two Board members
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communicating which is fine, but no subcommittee
has met and the Bocard has not met on these
issues, sc everything is above board. Thank vyou.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Thank you. We always
appreciate Yuril making sure that we know where
we're going. Yes, Mr. McGrath.

VICE CHAIR MCGRATH: So over the Fourth
of July weekend, I read the transcript and reread
the Permit, not every single word, but first of
all I have to thank the public comment process
because they helped me focus on what was
important. So let me go into this, this 1is going
to take a little while.

1’"ve given a lot of thought to this, and

"this is not the first time T’ve gone through an

M54 Permit, and T’ve also worked some with both
development interests in the City of Berkeley in
trying to figure cut, “0Okay, how does this stuff
actually get done?”

So let me start at the 30,000-fcot level,
and I’1ll1 dive down a little bit more. There’s
much to like in this. There’s much more emphasis
on BMPs in the staff recommendation, and they’re
generally good. That 1s necessary because only

some of the local governments use the discretion

19
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that they ask for in the last round when they
said, “Let us figure 1t ocut for ocur ccmmunity.”
Some did that; most didn’t. And so I think the
response of the staff in preparing and
recommending BMPs is wvital and well thought out.

Second, there is much better information
at this stage on the science behind our TMDLs on
PCB and Mercury. And I am comfortable with that
at the big picture level, and focusing both on
the priority watersheds that have been
identified, and at no regret actions while more
specific detailed geographic plans are being
prepared, as staff has suggested that we require.
So I'm comfortable with that.

But I am not convinced that contrclling
these contaminants is a strong rationale at this
time for some of the elements of the LID or Green
Infrastructure that are recommended in the Draft
Recommendation. I do believe Green
Infrastructure and LID is extremely important for
protecting our stream resources from erosion and
from downstream transport to the Bay 1n excessive
amounts, but the trapping of these contaminants
ig a different matter. So this 1is a very

important issue and I do have some technical
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background, so I’'m going to go down a little
deeper.

Having spent many years working on hydro
modifications and erosion, particularly in San
Diego County, I know that LID is not an automatic
fix. With the flashy flows that are generated by
development, it’s the routing of those flows, not
simply the storage that really matters to what
the streams actually see.

And so LID without some watershed
understanding can achieve very little. Second on
this same topic, I’'ve also worked with the
University of Wisconsin in classes given
throughout the country about cleanup of different
contaminants. I was the Port guy. But I sat
through many many days of cleanup stories,
including the Fox River PCBs in Wisconsin and the
like. PCBs, despite being very hydrophobic are
extremely difficult to control in cleanups. And
when you get down to the contrecl methods that
were suggested and the distinction between
removal of caulk and inspection, which I support,
and Green Infrastructure which I’'m not convinced
on, vocu have to think about the mass; if that

mass 18 not bedded, most of the contaminants
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assocliated with PCBs are in the very fine
particles, 1t’s dust. And controlling dust in a
hydrologic system in an urban area 1is almost
impossible. And I'm not at all convinced that
it’'s cost-effective. Certainly, LID and Green
Infrastructure can’t hurt, but if ycu’ve got
exemptions and different criteria, don’t require
actions by up to 5,000 square feet, and don’t
require actions up to about 10,000 square feet,
and you’ve got developed cities, you’re not goilng
to capture very much of that dust. You’re nct
going to have very much land left to do. And I'm
not ccnvinced it’s the best use of our resources.

On the science, con the next point, we do
need to focus some of ocur meonitoring effort on
getting a better understanding of the weathering
process for caulks so we can have a number
instead of an unknown in our models. T think
it’s great that we are now at the pocint where we
can kind of identify tentative loads, but how
those actually flow and what happens with
intervention and how seriocus you’'re mandated to
intervene, I mean, this 1s one o©of those potential
low hanging fruits that I think i1s much more

deserving c¢f control methods.

22
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Now, I do think there’s time given that
the current loads are under it, but I think
there’s some direction here that we have to --
and I am entirely comfortable with requiring
inspection of monitoring of PCBs being added to
local permit system. That system exists, you
know, I've done it for projects that I1’ve done
where my grandkids were in the house,. You bet 1
tested the paper focr lead. You bet I did. I
mean, and it wasn’t very expensive and it wasn’t
very hard, and I knew what I was doing, and T
knew whether or not I was exposing my grandkids.
And T think that’s just simple responsibility.

Coming back up to the general level for
my third significant comment, and this is behind
scme of my reservations about LID, I think 1t is
essential that we make common purpose with local
governments on hydreoclogic issues. They have
responses that they will need to make and they're
in very difficult circumstances for their aging
runoff control infrastructure, their existing
flood control needs, and their needs to respond
to sea level rise. I think we can take those
needs and work with them. I think we can work

with them and fairly readily add in trash removal
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and some elements of settling, but I think those
are far higher priorities for local government
and I think those have a pathway to money. So
those are my big three points. Now I"11 dig down
a little into the weeds.

All of these, I think, c¢an be handled in
Staff Response to Comments and this is a much
shorter list. First, on Vested Rights, that’s a
legal term and I wecrked in an organization where
that legal term was Lested all the way to the
Supreme Court. A project doesn’t necessarily
have vested rights if it’s got local approvals,
but has not done any construction in reliance on
Lhose approvals. I think that may not put the
lecal governments in a pesition where They’'re
willing to add requirements, but T want to make

sure that the egal staff is drawn intc the

-

response tc that comment.

Second, I'm gcing to differ a little bit
with the Subcommittee ¢on the cne-year gquestion.
I've taken a number of things tec and through my
City Council in Berkeley and I know Lhe
difficulties that they have in managing their own
work load, which are not just water guality

issues, I know the issues that we have scheduling
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things, So I urge the staff to look for a
compromise that has some conceptual approval
within that timeframe, but not necessarily
through the local governments’ governing body,
but through the administration.

There was some really excellent testimony
that I would like to make sure gets attended to
in the response, and I’'11 go through those one-
by-one. First, the comment by Cece Sellgren of
Contra Costa County on the triage that has to be
done for those things, I think that was a really
compelling comment. Next, the windsurfing City
Manager, Maurice Kaufman, I know him in other
venues as well, T think dealt with some of the
difficulties of using streets to treat runoff
from private properties, It is kind of the
dilemma of a built-out city, there are places
where we can tear up some of those streets and
put in better controls, but it’'s extraordinarily
difficult and it needs to be cost-effective and
it needs to be something that’s seen by the
community as a huge benefit.

Jason Rodgers again from San Jose, again
from San Jose, had really excellent comments on

the difficulties of retrofitting imperviocus
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surface.

A very strong suggestion from Valkko
ABllen, and I strongly support this, suggested --
and this goes back to the guestion of how much
discretion vou give local governments and some of
them have been very innovative and you don’t want
to stop that, so what he suggested is a provision
for alternative designs that provide some or
better load reduction. I think that’s an
excellent suggestion.

I do want more information from the staff
on the results of the LID policies where tThey’ve
been tried out in Contra Costa County. That came
up in Dan Cloak’s testimony, it also was noted on
page A30 of the Staff Report, and the kind of sum
of the reason that I'm not yet c¢convinced that
this is the best way Tto go after Mercury and
PCBs. And then Michelle Quinies (ph} had really
good testimony on the Hacienda Project and how
you deal with extra wide streets. That is
something that potentially does involve a re-
envisioning ¢f our urban form, and as it
redevelops I think that’s likely. So I think we
need to invest a little in understanding that and

understanding what’s motivating cities to do that
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because in many cases 1t is going to be the
redevelopment process that gives us an
cpportunity to do what controls we can. S50 those
are -- obviously T read the transcript.

CHAIRPERSON YOQUNG: And you said you
didn’t have comments at this time, ockay. Do we
need to provide an opportunity for staff to ask
any clarifying gquestions? Or can we just go for
it?

‘MR. WOLFE: I think it’s fine to move
forward. I"d also note that I think many of the
pecople in the audience were not here when we did
the ocath, so it would probably be worthwhile to
do that again.

CHAIRPERSON YQUNG: All right, I've just
been reminded that we should probably re-do the
cath because most of you were not here when we
did it before. So let’s do that now.

[Swearing in repeated]

All relevant evidence that any person
desires to be considered by this Board must be
introduced at this hearing first by the Board
staff; second, by the Discharger; third, by
public agencles; and fourth, by any other

interested persons,.
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The Board and Board ccunsel may ask
guestions to clarify the testimony of a witness
at any time. Cross examination cf any witness by
cthers will be allowed fcllowing completion of
direct testimony by all perscns.

Fach person testifving will commence by
stating his or her name, whom he or she
represents, and whether or not he or she took the

oath to tell the truth.

The nearings will not be conducted
according to Technical Rules ¢f Evidence. The
Board will accept any evidence or tTestimcny that
is reasonably relevant to the issues. All Board
files, exhibits, and agenda materials pertaining
to this matter will be made part of the record of
this proceeding. Additicnal written material
will be made part of the record at the discretion
of the Board.

Those wishing tc testify in the hearing
will now rise or raise their hand.

Do you promise to tell the truth?

MR. WOLFE: 50 do.

CHAIRPERSON YOUNG: Thank vyou. nll

right.
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MR. WCLFE: S50 I'd like Dale Bowyer to
give staff presentation on the Trash Load
Reduction Provision.

MR. BOWYER: Good morning, Chair Ycung,
Board Members, I'm Dale Bowyer with the Watershed
Division. Today I will discuss the propocsed
Trash Leoad Reduction Reguirements for the
Reissuance ©of The Municipal Regional Urban Runcoff

Stormwater Permit, or MRP 2.0.

Some ¢f you heard last month that the MRP

2.0 includes requirements intended to ensure that
the discharges of pollutants by the storm drain
system are appropriately controclled. It’s built
around the program areas shown here, which are
reguired by the Clean Water Act. MRP 2.0 fcllows
the structure of the first MRP, with provisions
for each of the reqguired components. Last month,
we focused on all of the MRP components, except
Provision Cl1l0, Trash Load Reduction. We focused
primarily on the proposed regquirements to reduce
PCRBRs and Mercury, and for the new and
redevelopment projects.

This month we’ll focus on the proposed
trash reduction reguirements in MRP 2.0, which

had the goal to control discharges of trash from
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storm drain to receiving waters.

Here is a picture of the future that
might await us 1f we don’t solve this water

quality problem. This is not California,

thankfully, however the problems are similar

globally.

CHATIRPERSON YOUNG: Is that you?

MER. BOWYER: I wish, no, not -—- I don't
wish 1in that particular... Many water bodies

throughout our region’s urban areas are impaired

by trash and are listed on the 303D list of

impaired waters. We have currently listed 26

water bodies as being trash impaired, and there

are likely many more. The MRP is the key

regulatory mechanism to address these
impairments.

Let’s briefly review the previous MRP
for the trash requirements and what we have
carried forward into MRP 2.0. The trash

reduction requirements in the previous MRP

included Minimum Full Trash Capture Requirements

where we reguired Permittees to install a minimum

area of catchment with full trash capture
devices, proportional to their size and

population. These are devices that strain
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stormwater to five millimeters, so nothing larger
than five millimeters goes through them except
for high flow bypasses in very large storm flows.
We carried those requirements forward and all
Permittees are currently in compliance with these
reguirements.

There were also annual requirements for
each Permittee to clean up trash hot spots in
creeks or shorelines, alsc based on their size
and population. These requirements are carried
over into MRP 2.0, as well. For the 40 percent
trash reduction requirement by 2014 in MRP 1.0,
we and the Permittees developed a map-based
compliance system after working through wvarious
technical challenges. We have brought that
compliance counting scheme forward into MRP 2.0.
I"11 describe this system later in the
presentation.

Now here 1is a summary of the trash
requirements in MRP 2.0. Trash reducticn
requirements in the propcsed MRP 2.0 include
performance standards for three of the five vyears
of the permit. A map-based compliance accounting
system has been included. The visual assessment

system of deocumenting trash reduction outcomes of
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actions will bhe carried over from MRP 1.0. 11
describe this in detail in a bit.

A compliance value is offered for source
control and offsets for additional creek and
shoreline c¢cleanups are available, and 1’11
elaborate on this later also.

Now 1’11 describe the proposed trash
reduction reguirements in MRP 2.0 in more detail.
The trash reduction requirements in the MRP 2.0
include 60 percent trash reduction from our 2009
starting point by June 2016, 70 percenlt reduction
by 2017, 80 percent by 20192, and nc adverse
impacts to receiving water by 2022, The 60 and
80 percent standards are included as performance
guidelines. For Permittee reports that they have
not reached these levels, they must alsc submit a
report describing planned actions to meet these
numbers and the next compllance limit, as well.
The 70 percent reduction by 2017 standard is an
enforceable compliance limit.

Here TI'11 describe the map-based counting
of trash reducticn ocutccmes that the Permittees
and we have developed. This example is from
Sunnyvale. The FPermittees all have mapped their

jurisdictions for trash generation condition, and
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I have divided their jurisdiction into Trash
Management Areas, or TMAs, the numbered boxes.
Purple represents very high trash generation,
it’s maybe a little hard to see on this slide,
but that’s the freeways intersecting near the top
on this map. Caltrans owns that jurisdiction.
Caltrans 1s under a separate permit with us, and
is working with the Permittees to address some of
these issues. Red areas are high generation,
vellow moderate, and green low generation.
Progress 1s demonstrated by conversion of higher
trash generation areas to lower trash generation.
The gecal is to convert all areas to green or low
Trash generation. The Permittees will
continually reassess the status of their City
trash maps for progress through assessment
efforts, which we will describe shortly.

There are twg primary ways to reduce
trash discharge from storm drain to receiving
waters, installation and proper maintenance of
full trash capture devices, which renders all the
catchment area upstream of such devices green, 1is
the first and most reliable method; the second
reute s tc apply sets of actioens to reduce the

trash available t¢ be washed off the urban
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landscape during a storm such as street sweeping
and picking up trash on land. These efforts have
to be verified with assessment work to document
cutcomes.

Here are the two major types of full
trash capture devices. The Swirl Separatcr on
the left would be used on a storm drain pipe
which might drain a large area up to hundreds of
acres. It has a large capacity, 1s expensive to
install, but relatively inexpensive to maintain;
the Storm Drain Inlet Strainer on the right can
e installed in many street drains and is
inexpensive to install, but treats a small area
and must be frequently maintained at a high cost
per acre treated. Both of these devices are only
effective 1f regularly and adequately maintained.

This map of Hayward shows the blue areca
mapping thé catchment areas for full trash
capture devices installed tc date overlaid cn the
trash generation map. This 1is how we guantified
the prcgress from full trash capture
installation. The catchment area treated by full
trash capture 1is rendered green regardless of its
trash generation status.

Full capture devices need to be carefully
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maintained tec functicn properly. MRP 2.0
reguires maintenance of full trash capture
devices, including specification of fregquency of
maintenance, recordkeeping, and the annual
requirement that a City official certify that
maintenance 1is adequate to avoid trash bypass by
overflow and plugging of these devices.

Now I’1ll describe other trash reductiocon
actions other than full trash capture. Other
trash reduction acticns can include street
sweeping such as new or more frequent sweeping,
or sweepling that gets to the curb due to new
parking restrictions. Also, on land trash pickup
can be effective, say, by a business improvement
district hiring crews to regularly clean an area,
or the organization -of neighborhcod volunteers to
adopt an area. Other actions may include
improved litter barrel placement and maintenance;
at least one Permittee taxes fast food locations
to pay for improved litter remcval in the
immediate area of those restaurants.

In addition, proposed requirements
clarify the Permittees must account for
discharges from private lands inte their storm

drain systems. Some private lots or parking lots
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are directly plumbed to the storm drain, so
bypass street trash capture. These lots need to
implement adeqguate acticons or install full trash
capture. MRP 2.0 contains the language
addressing this issue.

The improvement caused by these actions
must be documented by visual assessment, or other

valid assessment of the trash management arecas to

demonstrate trash reduction cutcomes.

Now let’s look at some specific examples.

Street sweeping 1s only really effective if it is
to the curb. One city found that by shifting
sweeping to an earlier morning hour, they could
get to the curb Lo sweep before cars began
parking and remove more trash.

Many cities are mobilizing citizen
volunteers Lo adopt and regularly clean up theilr
neighborhoods.

This is a solar-powered trash compacting
receptacle on a public street. The advantage to
this 1s that 1t has a large capacity, does not
need to be emptied as often, and it won’t
overflow trash. The primary tactic for assessing
and documenting effectiveness of trash reduction

measures other than full trash capture is through
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visual assessment. This figure shows the four
trash generation categories the visual assessment
determines. These rcocughly correspond toc the
green, vellow, and purple map to trash generation
rates. We do not expect the Permittees to
inspect all of their streets to determine the
condition of each trash management area. We have
proposed that they sample a minimum of 10 percent
of the street miles of a trash management area,
and assess two Lo three times a vyear. It alsc
may be possible to extrapolate the results for
TMAs that are similar in trash load and
management actions.

In addition toc the mapped outcome-based
accounting, we'’ve written in some provision for
jurisdiction-wide trash reduction measures tc
receive compliance value. Source control
ordinances reducing particularly floating and
persistent plastic trash, like single-use bags
and foam food containers can recelive compliance
value up to five percent with adequate prcof of
implementation and assessment.

Here’s a demonstration of the dramatic
difference single-use bag ordinance made in the

City of San Jose. The first phcto is pre-bag
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ordinance, the bags collected in twec hours by one
City worker., The second photo, after
implementation ¢of an ordinance restricting
single-use bags, shows what was collected by nine
workers 1in three hours.

Now let’s discuss some other routes to
meeting the trash reduction requirements included
in the Tentative Crder. Additicnal creek and
shoreline cleanup beyond the reguired hot spot
cleanup can also be valued up to five percent.
This work not only removes trash that could make
its way to the Bay and Ccean, but often involves
cleanup work by citizen volunteers which has
proven public cutreach value. We recognized that
much of the trash impacting creeks often ccomes
from direct discharges, as well as the storm
drains. If a Permittee endeavors to clean a
particular water body that i1s heavily impacted by
ncen-storm discharges such as direct dumping, say
from homeless encampments, with a planned and
ongoing effort with outcome-based assessment
measures Lo document success, this can be valued
up to an additional 10 percent with a specific
proposal acceptable toc the Executive Cfficer. An

example would be the recent massive effort by the
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City of San Jose in the Coyote Creek, Guadalupe
River Areas to remove large homeless encampments
in an ongoing and sustainable way.

This 1s a historical photo of Covyote
Creek and shows the kiﬁd of situation that may be
tackled by such an effort to curtail sources
beyond storm drain discharges such as direct
dumping and homeless encampments.

Another example, citizen volunteers
cleaning up a tidal slough in Qakland on Creek
Coastal Cleanup Day.

This slide shows significant improvement
cn Matadero Creek from repeated volunteer cleanup
efforts.

To better demonstrate trash reduction
outcomes and the effectiveness of actions, the
Permittees will conduct receiving water
monitoring for trash. This can be done in at
least two ways, first by measuring trash in the
water column with nets; second, the Permittees
are already keeping records of volume c©of trash
removed during creek and shoreline cleanups, hot
spot cleanups over time in the same locations.

Here, the amount of trash in the water

column is being directly measured in the L.A.
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River using a crane to suspend tThe net. This
work can also be done for bridges. The
Permittees have a grant to work on this approach
in ocur region.

So in summary, we will have mapped
outcome-based compliance accounting based on
visual assessment. Three of the five permit term
vears there are performance standards for trash
reduction. In addition, MRP 2.0 provides
compliance value for some of the Permittees’
additional efforts, which we all agree are
valuable. And we're moving towards a better
outcome for the future.

That concludes the staff presentation and
I'm available to answer guestions.

CHAIRPERSON YOQUNG: Questions? BAll
right, I have a couple of things that could be
couched as qgquestions, or I can Just lay them out
as comments, and maybe I will do the latter and
those questions will be answered over time and
hopefully to everyone else’'s satisfacticon, as
well.

As I said in the beginning, at this point
in time, I'd like to elicit the comments of the

Board Members based on what they read and what
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they’ve heard so far, so that yocu see what our
tentative thinking is. Based on many gquizzical
expressions, I'm going to go first. Here we go,
diving in.

One thing that I think is really
important here is to -- I should give you some
forewarning, six bullets, all right, bullet
number 1. Starting with the most important, I
feel very very strongly that we have to have an
enforceable and mandatory percentage trash
reduction reguirement in either 2019 or 2020.
Performance Standards do not de it for me when
the follow-up provision is just “write another
report.” I just don’t see any sense at all in
having a five-year permit where we have an
enforceable limit two years into the permit, and
then no enforceable limits in terms of percentage
reductions for the final three years of the
permit. And this is a pretty big ticket item in
my book.

I noted that the enforceable 2019 limit
was 1n the administrative draft, and I assume
that all the folks in the audience here sort of
stood up and complained and it got taken ocut, and

now I'm going to stand up and complain and ask
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you to put it back in. So there we are.

Number 2, in terms of the enforceable
limit in 2019 or 2020, I would recommend 85
percent in 2019, or 90 percent in 2020. We've
experienced in these kinds of cleanup efforts
that it gets harder and harder as you approach
the end of your cleanup process, not easier and
gasier. And a limit of 80 percent in 2019 means
that we will have been going at a 10 percent per
year rate up through 2017, and then we slow down
and then we speed up again, and that doesn’t make
sense to me. I'’d like to have a gradual slowing,
just the arithmetic just doesn’t make sense to
e . I think you’re going to want way more time
in the back end than you need in the front end.
I will also note that the State Board adopted its
trash policy which aiiowed 10 years, period, for
this entire process, for which we have allowed
more than 12 years and we took a year to adopt it
in the first place, so, you know, ¥you guys are so
lucky.

Numkber 3, I think we need to do a much
better jocb in this permit of spelling out the
conseqguences for nonccocmpliance. As we know, many

cities were out of compliance with the 2014 forty
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percent reduction requirement, many more had
inadequate data to demonstrate compliance, but we
sort of allowed it. We had several workshops in
which we, well, this Board repeatedly stated, and
the staff, in public that we were going to put
together a penalty for non-compliance that might
be additional prescriptive requirements in this
permit for those who were out of compliance in
2014 . That does not appear in this permit.

I don’t want to be in the same position
again in 2017. So here’s my suggestion: that we
state upfront in this permit that if compliance
with a 70 percent limit in 2017 is not documented
to the satisfaction of the Executive Qfficer,
Lhen the Executive Officer may require the
Permittee to install full trash capture to serve
up to 100 percent of the remaining very high,
high and medium trash generation areas. And I
would advise a parallel provision for the 2019 or
2020 compliance point, which T hope to see.

You guys look like you want me to do that
again, but you’ll hear about it. aAll right,
number 4 -- these get easier -- we're done with
the big stuff. We just heard in the staff

presentation that there was going to be an option
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for extrapolating the effectiveness of trash
management areas, and that appears 1in Section
Cl0.B.ii.b.1iv. I disagree with that. I would
like to retain the reguirement in all trash
management areas of requiring a visual assessment
of at least 10 percent of the street miles. T
think that’s already pretty genercus, it’s been
my experience through life that & BMP in ocne
place doesn’t equal the effectiveness of a BMP in
the other place unless yocu’ve got exactly the
same people doing exactly the same thing with
exactly the same equipment, and propbably with the
exact same number of cups of coffee that morning.
S0 it’s Jjust too variable. And I'm unccmfortable
with that.

I would be comfortable with maintaining
this provision 1f we had effectiveness documented
by the receiving water observations, but that’s a
different construction.

And what are we at now? Five, Credits
and Offsets. I agree with the proposals for the
Credits and Offsets, I"1l1l note that the
cumulative sum of 20 percent 1is pretty darn
generocus. I deo think that we need to be clear

about the fact that these are at some point going
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to have to be phased cut and this permit we
should discuss in the permit or in the fact sheet
how we're going to do that phase out, And my
preference would be to have the direct discharge
one phase out last because I think that’s gocing
to be the biggest bang for our buck, but, you
knecw, that’s up to yvou guys. But I do think
pecple need to be able to plan about when those
things are going to sunset,

Last, there’s a series of reguirements in
this section that I don’t think are stated
clearly enough, and it would be helpful to
tighten up the language of the permits so that
we're all on the same page at the cutset. And
I"ll give you some examples. I think we need
some additional detail in the frequency of the
visual assessments. I think we need tc do a
better job of describing what the reguirements
are going to bhe for the receiving water
observations, the start dates, the locations,
methodoclogy. I would personally add that the
coverage should ultimately represent areas that
are served by full trash capture, I think we need
that check on the operation of full trash capture

devices, and maybe ultimately alsc add in areas
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that were green in 2014. Those have not been
included at this point in time.

The definition of acceptable full trash
capture system I found cenfusing, maybe nobody
else deces, but I couldn’t tell whether we were
reguiring only the things that had been certified
by the State Board, or whether that was Jjust an
example.

And finally, it was cocnfusing to me to
figure cut how the private lands that are not
cwned by the Municipalities, but plunged directly
intec the stocrmwater system meshed into the 2017
and 2019 equations, whether those were included,
whether those were separate, so I'11l leave 1t at
that.

That’s my draft. So I’11 open it up to
comments from other Board members, as well.
Steve,

MR. LEFKOVITS: I just have one general
comment and it’'s probably just a reflecticn cf my
age. But when I lcok at all ¢f the control
elements in this plan, I think so much abcut them
being a response to behavior, and T just wonder
if there isn’t, you know, when we're taking a

long term perspective, more of an opportunity to
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focus on education and borrowing curricula from
other places about trash, and bringing them into
the schools, try to effect establishing a
behavioral or cultural norm about the impact of
trash in our communities. I think that, vou
know, as I read through this, I just keep
thinking trash 1s a perpetual problem and there
are places where 1t is not a perpetual problem
because the education, the investment in younger
people, and the investment in public awareness
about the impact of trash on theilr community, on
their watersheds, on their wild places, is more
pronounced, And I just wonder 1f there isn’t
some opportunity to encourage innovation and
experimentation with ways to leverage existing
educational resources to educate people why it’s
bad in the first place. You know, I was driving
behind someone yesterday and they opened their
car door on Powell Street and just threw their
trash out and drove away, and I was just
thinking, you know, somebody who saw the Smokey
the Rear Campailgn just wouldn’t do that.

So anyway, that’s just my general thought
abcout it, is that I think that everything in this

presentation to me seems like it’s viable and
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headed in the right direction, but I Jjust don't
see how we ever get ahead of the curve if we take
for granted the supply ©of trash and the bkehavior
that creates it.

VICE CHAIR MCGRATH: I guess it's my
turn., You know, this is hard, this is hard for
local governments and it’'s hard because it's
different, it’'s a different way of approaching
things. There is some progress. July 5th, T
took a long bike ride out along Castro Ranch Road
through unincorporated Contra Costa Cocunty, and T
only saw four illegal dumps, which is a huge
improvement and I’'m pretty sure that neither the
two mattresses nor the bedstead that I saw are
actually going to float away. But some of the

other stuff is, and that’'s a protected watershed,

o5
o)
t

4 1~

a watershed that’'s tributary to water

W

t
supply. So this is hard stuff,. Where are we
right now? I mean, T have sat down with my local
government, which once required the McDonald’'s on
San Pablo toc sweep the region, and you know, the
City Council Woman that T talked to and have been
working with about trying to implement this on
the ground sti1ll thinks that's a pretty good

idea, and so do I. But where are we? We have
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complied with the minimum full capture devices,
vet we still have a completely unacceptable
level cf trash. Because I’'m in the Bay and along
the shoreline, I see maybe a lot more cf it than
other people, we’re nowhere near 40 percent,
nowhere near.

Second, much of the full capture device
work that was done was funded by grants and many
lﬁcal governments don’t have adequate maintenance
funding to maintain those facilities. You know,
I"ve tried to find ocut some informaticn
anecdotally about how well we’'re doing, I'm not
going to vote for another permit after this one
unless I know where we are in funding and what
local governments are decing it well and what
local governments aren’t. But we don’t have a
good story, you don’t have a good stocry to tell
us there, and 1t’s not quite as difficult.

Third, the generation of trash has been
almost completely ignored. The staff
presentation said one local government taxes
activities, I hope it’s not still the McDonald’s
on San Pablo that was there when I matriculated
to Cal in 1967, that means we haven’t done much.

Work by Clean Water Action, who have been
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with me on some of these efforts to Lry to work
with business and local gcecvernment, established
looking at actual trash collected, that &0
percent of the litter is from takeaway packaging,
food packaging. You know, my Peets coffee cup 1is
sitting in my car. There’s no economic signal
that we are sending. Those economic costs are
transferred to the public at large. There’s no
economic encouragement, there’s no penalty, it’s
a classic problem of the comments. And it's
difficult to think about that, and it’s
challenging, but it’s not impossible.

Fourth, on Mr. Lefkovits’ -- Steve’s
comment -- we have majcr institutions, the
schools in my city and the University of
California do little to educate their students or
manage Cthelr behavior that invelve furniture,
bedding and the like; is the University of
California completely without any responsibility
for those people that i1t encourages to come on a
temporary basis? I don’t think so. I think we
have to think about enlarging the number of
people that get engaged in the behaviocral change.

Next, redevelopment provides an

opportunity to address this in two ways, first,
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when vou redevelop a site you have the
opportunity to build some kind of mitigation inte
the approval process for those commercial
activities that are going to generate take
takeaway trash -- I'm sorry, takeaway food
containers that might become trash -- Maybe it
was a Freudian slip.

And second, if you lock at the proc forma
of these, all of them, almost all of them, are
going teo generate more tax revenue than they cost
to serve, and they’'re going to be close to
completely impervicus, so they have a real nexus
tc both a generation of trash, the generation of
high rates of runoff, and the need to mitigate
those things.

New, I realize that that pocses a
difficult problem in governance because we have,
in fact, a situation of haves and haves not. We
have areas where the real estate market 1is just
booming, all along the Peninsula, San Francisco,
Berkeley, certainly is bocming, and even parts of
Oakland. But we have other places, and my heart
breaks for Richmond and Vallejo, where there’s
not the kind of new generatiocn of tax revenues

that is likely to help with this, and maybe we
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need tec grapple with that, mavbe we need to
grapple with trying toc make sure that those
entities that are generating the new development
and the new intensity, and it’s behind where a
lot of my comments earlier today were, that I
think it is more important at this stage to
address capturing trash hydraulically than it 1is
very fine particles. First of all, the
velocities are way way lower and you can do 1it.
And then finally, something that I
expected out of the Chair tec just be able to say,
“Yeah, what she said,” 1s we need to deo a much
better job on monitoring. I agree with her

-

emphasis on this. The structure of this has to

—

go bhack to the total guality managemenlt system
where you plan, you do what you plan, you check
what you plan, and then you make the adjustments.
And with that robust monitcoring which may happen,
folks, we’re not dcing the right things, we're
not spending the mecney on the right things -- I

don’t want to spend money on things that aren’t

effective. I don’t want to reguire any local
governments to do 1it. But I want to see the
problem solved. And so we n